Notice of Meeting and Agenda and Minutes
June 09, 2014

REGULAR, 6/9/2014 1:30:00 PM

BE IT REMEMBERED that on June 09, 2014, there was begun and
holden a REGULAR session of the Commissioners Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, with the following members and officers present and
participating except those absent as indicated:

Honorable Jeff Branick, County Judge

Commissioner Eddie Arnold, Commissioner Pct. No. 1
Commissioner Brent Weaver, Commissioner Pct. No. 2
Commissioner Michael Sinegal, Commissioner Pct. No. 3
Commissioner Everette D. Alfred, Commissioner Pct. No. 4
Honorable G. Mitch Woods, Sheriff

Honorable Carolyn L. Guidry , County Clerk

When the following proceedings were had and orders made, to-wit:
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Jeff R. Branick, County Judge
Eddie Arnold, Commissioner, Precinct One
Brent A. Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct Two
Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three
Everette "Bo'" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct Four

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA
OF COMMISSIONERS' COURT
OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
June 09, 2014

Notice is hereby given that the Commissioners' Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, willmeet at 1:30 PM, on the 09th day of June 2014 at its regular

meeting place 1n the Commissioner's Courtroom, 4th Floor, Jefferson County Courthouse, 1149 Pearl
Street, Beaumont, Texas.

Said meeting will be a Regular for the purpose of transacting the routine
business of the County. Persons with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids for
services who wish to attend this meeting should contact the County Judge's
Office to arrange for assistance.

In addition to the routine business of the County, the subject of said
meeting will be the following:
INVOCATION: Brent A. Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct Two

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct
Three
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PURCHASING:

1. Approve specifications for (IFB 14-017/JW), Term Contract for Road
Building Materials for Jefferson County.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 9 - 46

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

2. Approve specifications for (RFQ 14-021/KJS), Major Drive Extension
Environmental Assessment.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 47 - 47

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

3. Approve specifications for (RFP 14-019/JW), Auditing Services for
Jefferson County.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 48 - 119

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

4. Consider and approve, execute, receive and file a renewal for (RFP 10-
066/KJS), Lease of the Jefferson County Downtown Jail Facility with
LaSalle Southwest Corrections for an additional one (1) year renewal
from June 27, 2014 to June 26, 2015.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 120 - 120

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED
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5. Consider and approve, execute, receive and file a contract with Lamar
Companies for Billboards for Emergency Management. The contract is
for $3000.00 per month with a contract term from on June 16, 2014 to

October 5, 2014.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 121 - 125

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY AIRPORT:

6. Consider and possibly authorize the County Judge to execute a Private
Hangar Lease between Jefferson County and Tertiary Holdings, LLC for

property at the Jack Brooks Regional Airport.

SPEAKER - JASON BYRD/ THE BYRD LAW FIRM - AGAINST
SPEAKER - KYLE KNUPPLE/PRES/CEO O KUSA AIATION, LLC -

AGAINST

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY AUDITOR:

7. Consider and approve budget transfer - Road & Bridge, Precinct 1 -
purchase of truck and mower.

111-0109-431-6042 TRUCKS & TRAILERS $23,000.00
111-0109-431-6011 ROAD MACHINERY $7,000.00
111-0102-431-3079 CRUSHED STONE $30,000.00

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 126 - 126

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

8. Consider and approve budget transfer - Constable, Precinct 2 -
replacement radar and in-car video systems.
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120-3066-425-3084 MINOR EQUIPMENT $5,800.00

120-3066-425-6007 AUTOMOBILES $5,800.00

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 127 - 127

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver

Second by: Commissioner Sinegal

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

9. Receive and file SMG Operations - Ford Park Audited Financial

10.

11

Statements for the Period Ending September 30, 2013.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 128 - 141

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver

Second by: Commissioner Sinegal

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

Receive and file SAS 114 letter for SMG Operation - Ford Park from
Pattillo, Brown, & Hill, LLP.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 142 - 144

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver

Second by: Commissioner Sinegal

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

. Regular County Bills - check #394481 through check #394737.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 145 - 154

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver

Second by: Commissioner Sinegal

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

12. Consider, possibly approve, receive and file certificate of Judicial

13.

Education Requirements for 2014 of County Judge Jeff. R. Branick.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 155 - 155

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

Receive and file executed Contract No. CTIF-01-124 between Jefferson
County and Texas Department of Transportation for infrastructure
projects.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 156 - 169

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

14. Consider, and possibly approve, a Resolution authorizing the County

Judge and Patrick Swain to execute Depository/Authorized Signatories
Designation Form for Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program and receive and file same.(Cheek Community Project Phase 4
Contract No. 713250.)

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 170 - 173

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

ADDENDUMS
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15. Consider, possibly approve a Resolution for Jefferson County to transfer
to the West Jefferson County Municipal Water District to assets
constructed with Texas Community Development Grant funds for
Hurricane Disaster Recovery.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 174 - 181

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

ENGINEERING:

16. Consider and possibly approve an amended Minor Plat of Cutters Ridge
Estates into Lot 1B and Lot 3B. This property is located in Precinct 1
and is within the City of Beaumont's ETJ (extra-territorial jurisdiction)
and meets all of the County requirements.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 182 - 184

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold

Second by: Commissioner Sinegal

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

JUVENILE PROBATION:

17. Receive and file the proposed Juvenile Probation Department budget for
FY 2015 in accordance with 140.004 Local Government Code.

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED
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SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT:

18. Consider, possibly approve, and authorize the County Judge to execute
an Inter-local Agreement between Jefferson County, the City of
Beaumont and the City of Port Arthur itemizing asset sharing of assets
received from the 2014 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
Award.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 185 - 187

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver

Second by: Commissioner Alfred

In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred

Action: APPROVED

DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

19. Consider, possibly approve, and authorize retired Criminal District
Attorney Investigator to purchase the service handgun issued to him as a
Peace Officer, for the amount of $200.00, pursuant to Resolution of
Commissioners Court and as authorized by Chapter, 614.002, 614.051,
and 614.053, Texas Government Code.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 188 - 191
Action: TABLED

20. Consider, possibly approve, and authorize retired Criminal District
Attorney Investigator to purchase the service handgun issued to him as a
Peace Officer, for the amount of $250.00, pursuant to Resolution of
Commissioners Court and as authorized by Chapter, 614.002, 614.051,
and 614.053, Texas Government Code.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 192 - 196
Action: TABLED

Jeff R. Branick
County Judge



JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah L. Clark, Purchasing Agent

1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, TX 77701 409-835-8593 Fax 409-835-8456

LEGAL NOTICE
Advertisement for Invitation for Bids

June 9, 2014

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be accepted by the Jefferson County Purchasing
Department for IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County.
Specifications for this project may be obtained from the Jefferson County website,
http://lwww.co.jefferson. tx.us, or by calling 409-835-8593.

Bids are to be sealed and addressed to the Purchasing Agent with the bid number and name marked
on the outside of the envelope. Bidders shall forward an original and two (2) copies of their bid to the
address shown below. Jefferson County does not accept bids submitted electronically. Late bids will
be rejected as non-responsive. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud in the Jefferson County
Commissioners’ Courtroom at the time and date below. Bidders are invited to attend the sealed bid
opening.

BID NAME: Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
BID NO: IFB 14-017/JW
DUE DATE/TIME: 11:00 AM CST, Tuesday, July 15, 2014

MAIL OR DELIVER TO: Jefferson County Purchasing Department
1149 Pearl Street, 1st Floor
Beaumont, Texas 77701

Any questions relating to these requirements should be directed to Jamey West, Contract
Specialist at 409-835-8593.

All interested firms are invited to submit a bid in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in
this bid.

RESPONDENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE INVITATION.
Deboah(isdo

Deborah L. Clark
Purchasing Agent
Jefferson County, Texas

Publish:  Beaumont Enterprise & Port Arthur News — June 11" & June 18", 2014
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IFB 14-017/JW
Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
Bids due: 11:00 AM CST, Tuesday, July 15, 2014

Table of Contents
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with
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BIDDER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RETURNING ALL REQUIRED PAGES (MARKED WITH AN “ X” ABOVE)
WITH THE BID. ADDITIONALLY, BIDDER MUST MONITOR THE PURCHASING WEB SITE
(HTTP://IWWW.CO.JEFFERSON.TX.US/PURCHASING/MAIN.HTM) TO SEE IF ADDENDA OR ADDITIONAL
INSTRUCTIONS HAVE BEEN POSTED. FAILURE TO RETURN ALL REQUIRED FORMS COULD RESULT
IN A BID BEING DECLARED AS NON-RESPONSIVE.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 1 of 39



Instructions to Bidders

Bid Submission
Bids must be submitted in complete original form by mail or messenger to the following address:

Jefferson County Purchasing Department
1149 Pearl Street, First Floor
Beaumont, TX 77701

Bids will be accepted at the above address until the time and date specified herein, and immediately after
will be publicly opened and read aloud.

All bids shall be tightly sealed in an opaque envelope and plainly marked with the Bid Number,
Bid Name, Due Date, and the bidder's name and address; and shall be addressed to the
Purchasing Agent.

Late bids will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the bidder.

All bids submitted in response to this invitation shall become the property of Jefferson County and will be
a matter of public record available for review.

Courthouse Security

Bidders are advised that all visitors to the Courthouse must pass through Security. Bidders planning to
hand deliver bids must allow time to get through Security, as a delay in entering the Courthouse
will not be accepted as an excuse for late submittal. Mondays and Tuesdays are particularly heavy
days. Bidders are strongly urged to plan accordingly.

Preparation of Bids
The bid shall be legibly printed in ink or typed.

If a unit price or extension already entered is to be altered, it shall be crossed out and initialed in ink by the
bidder.

The bid shall be legally signed and shall include the complete address of the bidder.

Jefferson County is exempt from Federal and State Sales Taxes, and such taxes shall not be included in
bid prices.

Signatures

All bids, notifications, claims, and statements must be signed by an individual authorized to bind the
bidder. The individual signing certifies, under penalty of perjury, that he or she has the legal authorization
to bind the bidder.

County Holidays — 2014:

January 1 Wednesday New Year’'s Day

January 20 Monday Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
February 17 Monday President’'s Day

April 18 Friday Good Friday

May 26 Monday Memorial Day

July 4 Friday Independence Day
September 1 Monday Labor Day

November 11 Tuesday Veterans Day

November 27-28 Thursday-Friday Thanksgiving

December 25-26 Thursday-Friday Christmas

Rejection or Withdrawal

Submission of additional terms, conditions or agreements with the bid document are grounds for deeming
a bid non-responsive and may result in bid rejection. Jefferson County reserves the right to reject any and
all bids and to waive any informalities and minor irregularities or defects in bids. Bids may be withdrawn in

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 2 of 39
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10.

11.

12.

person by a bidder or authorized representative, provided their identity is made known and a receipt is
signed for the bid, but only if the withdrawal is made prior to the time set for receipt of bids. Bids are an
irrevocable offer and may not be withdrawn within 90 days after opening date.

Award

The bid will be awarded to the responsible, responsive bidder(s) whose bid, conforming to the solicitation,
will be most advantageous to Jefferson County — price and other factors considered. Unless otherwise
specified in this IFB, Jefferson County reserves the right to accept a bid in whole or in part, and to award
by item or by group, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of Jefferson County. Any bidder who
is in default to Jefferson County at the time of submittal of the bid shall have that bid rejected. Jefferson
County reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however,
any substantial nonconformity in the offer, as determined by Jefferson County, shall be deemed non-
responsive and the offer rejected.

In evaluating bids, Jefferson County shall consider the qualifications of the bidders, and, where applicable,
operating costs, delivery time, maintenance requirements, performance data, and guarantees of materials
and equipment. In addition, Jefferson County may conduct such investigation as it deems necessary to
assist in the evaluation of a bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of the
bidders to fulfill the contract.

Jefferson County reserves the right to award this contract on the basis of lowest and best bid in
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, to waive any formality or irregularity, to make awards to
more than one offeror, and/or to reject any or all bids. In the event the lowest dollar offeror meeting
specifications is not a awarded a contract, Offeror may appear before the Commissioners’ Court and
present evidence concerning Offeror responsibility after officially notifying the Office of the Purchasing
Agent of Offeror’s intent to appear.

Contract

A response to an IFB is an offer to contract with Jefferson County based upon the terms, conditions, and
specifications contained in the IFB. Bids do not become contracts unless and until they are executed by
Jefferson County, eliminating a formal signing of a separate contract. For that reason, all of the terms and
conditions of the contract are contained in the IFB, unless any of the terms and conditions is modified by
an IFB Amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by mutually agreed terms and conditions in the contract
documents.

Waiver of Subrogation

Bidder and bidder’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subrogation
against Jefferson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or property damages
resulting from bidder’s performance under this agreement.

Fiscal Funding

A multi-year contract (if requested by the specifications) continuing as a result of an extension option must
include fiscal funding out. If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the contract, said
contract shall become null and void.

Bid Results

Bid results are not provided in response to telephone inquiries. A preliminary tabulation of bids received
will be posted on the Purchasing web page (http://co.jefferson.tx.us/ purchasing/main.htm) as soon as
possible following bid opening. A final tabulation will be posted following bid award, and will also be
available for review in the Purchasing Department.

Changes and Addenda to Bid Documents

Each change or addendum issued in relation to this IFB document will be on file in the Office of the
Purchasing Agent, and will be posted on the Purchasing web site as soon as possible. It shall be the
bidder’s responsibility to make inquiry as to change or addenda issued, and to monitor the web site. All
such changes or addenda shall become part of the contract and all bidders shall be bound by such
addenda. Information on all changes or addenda issued will be available at the Office of the County
Purchasing Agent.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 3 of 39
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Specifications

Unless otherwise stated by the bidder, the bid will be considered as being in accordance with Jefferson
County’s applicable standard specifications, and any special specifications outlined in the bid document.
References to a particular trade name, manufacturer’'s catalogue, or model number are made for
descriptive purposes to guide the bidder in interpreting the requirements of Jefferson County, and should
not be construed as excluding bids on other types of materials, equipment, and supplies. However, the
bidder, if awarded a contract, will be required to furnish the particular item referred to in the specifications
or description unless departure or substitution is clearly noted and described in the bid. Jefferson County
reserves the right to determine if equipment/ product being bid is an acceptable alternate. All goods shall
be new unless otherwise so stated in the bid. Any unsolicited alternate bid, or any changes, insertions, or
omissions to the terms and conditions, specifications, or any other requirements of the bid, may be
considered non-responsive.

Delivery

Bids shall include all charges for delivery, packing, crating, containers, etc. Unless otherwise
stated by the bidder (in_writing on the included Bid Form), prices bid will be considered as being
based on F.O.B. destination/delivered freight included.

Interpretation of Bid and/or Contract Documents

All inquiries shall be made within a reasonable time prior to the date and time fixed for the bid opening, in
order that a written response in the form of an addendum, if required, can be processed before the bids
are opened. Inquiries received that are not made in a timely fashion may or may not be considered.

Currency
Prices calculated by the bidder shall be stated in U.S. dollars.
Pricing

Prices shall be stated in units of quantity specified in the bid documents. In case of discrepancy in
computing the amount of the bid, the unit price shall govern.

Notice to Proceed/Purchase Order

The successful bidder may not commence work under this contract until authorized to do so by the
Purchasing Agent.

Certification
By signing the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, bidder certifies:
= The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.

= The bidder has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or
service to any public servant in connection with the submitted offer.

= The bidder hereby certifies that the individual signing the bid is an authorized agent for the
bidder and has the authority to bind the bidder to the contract.

Definitions
“County” — Jefferson County, Texas.

“Contractor” — The bidder whose proposal is accepted by Jefferson County.

Minority-Women Business Enterprise Participation

It is the desire of Jefferson County to increase the participation of Minority (MBE) and women-owned
(WBE) businesses in its contracting and procurement programs. While the County does not have any
preference or set aside programs in place, it is committed to a policy of equitable participation for these
firms.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 4 of 39

13



General Terms and Conditions Of Bidding
and Terms Of Contract

By execution of this document, the vendor accepts all general and special conditions of the contract as outlined
below and in the specifications and plans.

1.

Bidding
1.1 Bids. All bids must be submitted on the bid form furnished in this package.

1.2 Authorized Signatures. The bid must be executed personally by the vendor, duly authorized
partner of the partnership, or duly authorized officer of the corporation. If executed by an agent, a power
of attorney or other evidence of authority to act on behalf of the vendor shall accompany the bid to
become a valid bid.

1.3 Late Bids. Bids must be in the office of the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent before or at the
specified time and date bids are due. Bids received after the submission deadline shall be rejected as
non-responsive and returned unopened.

1.4 Withdrawal of Bids Prior to Bid Opening. A bid may be withdrawn before the opening date by
submitting a written request to the Purchasing Agent. If time allows, the bidder may submit a new bid.
Bidder assumes full responsibility for submitting a new bid before or at the specified time and date bids
are due. Jefferson County reserves the right to withdraw a request for bids before the opening date.

1.5 Withdrawal of Bids after Bid Opening. Bidder agrees that its offer may not be withdrawn or
cancelled by the vendor for a period of ninety (90) days following the date and time designated for the
receipt of bids unless otherwise stated in the bid and/or specifications.

1.6 Bid Amounts. Bids shall show net prices, extensions where applicable and net total. In case of
conflict between unit price and extension, the unit price will govern. Any ambiguity in the bid as a result of
omission, error, unintelligible or illegible wording shall be interpreted in the favor of Jefferson County.

1.7 Exceptions and/or Substitutions. All bids meeting the intent of the specifications and plans will
be considered for award. Vendors taking exception to the specifications and plans, or offering substi-
tutions, shall state these exceptions in the section provided. If bid is made on an article other than the
one specified, which a bidder considers comparable, the name and grade of said article must be specified
in the bid and sufficient specifications and descriptive data must accompany same to permit thorough
evaluation. The absence of stated exceptions and/or substitutions shall indicate that the vendor has not
taken any exceptions to the specifications and shall be responsible to perform in strict accordance with
the specifications. As a matter of practice, Jefferson County rejects exception(s) and /or substitutions as
non-responsive but reserves the right to accept any and/or all of the exception(s) and/or substitution(s)
deemed to be in the best interest of Jefferson County.

1.8 Alternates. The Invitation for Bid and/or specifications may expressly allow bidder to submit an
alternate bid. Presence of such an offer shall not be considered an indication of non-responsiveness.

1.9 Descriptions. Unless otherwise specified, any reference to make, manufacturer and/or model used
in the bid specifications is merely descriptive and not restrictive, and is used only to indicate type, style, or
quality of material desired.

1.10 Bid Alterations. Bids cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline. Any interline-
ations, alterations, or erasures made before opening time must be initialed by the signer of the bid,
guaranteeing authenticity.

1.11 Tax Exempt Status. Jefferson County is exempt from federal excise tax and state sales tax.
Unless the bid form or specifications specifically indicate otherwise, the bid price must be net, exclusive of
above-mentioned taxes and will be so construed. Therefore, the bid price shall not include taxes.

1.12  Quantities. Quantities indicated are estimated quantities only and are not a commitment to buy.
Approximate usage does not constitute an order, but only implies the probable quantity that will be used.
Commodities will be ordered on an as-needed basis. Bidder is responsible for accurate final counts.

1.13 Bid Award. Award of contract shall be made to the most responsible, responsive bidder, whose
offer is determined to be the best value, taking into consideration the relative importance of price.
Jefferson County reserves the right to be the sole judge as to whether items bid will serve the purpose
intended. Jefferson County reserves the right to accept or reject in part or in whole any bid submitted,
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and to waive any technicalities or informalities for the best interest of the County. Jefferson County
reserves the right to award based upon individual line items, sections or total bid.

1.14  Silence of Specifications for Complete Units. All materials, equipment and/or parts that will
become a portion of the completed work, including items not specifically stated herein but, necessary to
render the service(s) complete and operational per the specifications, are to be included in the bid price.
Vendor may be required to furnish evidence that the service, as bid, will meet or exceed these
requirements.

1.15 Addenda. Any interpretations, corrections or changes to the specifications and plans will be
made by addenda no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the bid opening. Addenda will be posted on
the Purchasing web site. Vendors are responsible for monitoring the web site in order to remain informed
on addenda. Vendors shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda with submission of bid.

1.16  General Bid Bond/Surety Requirements. Failure to furnish bid bond/surety, if requested, will
result in bid being declared non-responsive. Non-responsive bids will not be considered for award.

1.17  General Insurance Requirements. Failure to furnish Affidavit of Insurance, if required in these
specifications, will result in bid being declared non-responsive. Non-responsive bids will not be
considered for award.

1.18 Responsiveness. A responsive bid shall substantially conform to the requirements of this
Invitation to Bid and/or specifications contained herein. Bidders who substitute any other terms, condi-
tions, specifications and/or requirements or who qualify their bids in such a manner as to nullify or limit
their liability to the contracting entity shall have their bids deemed non-responsive. Also, bids containing
any clause that would limit contracting authority shall be considered non-responsive. Examples of non-
responsive bids include but shall not be limited to: a) bids that fail to conform to required delivery
schedules as set forth in the bid request; b) bids with prices qualified in such a manner that the bid price
cannot be determined, such as with vague wording that may include “price in effect at the time of deliv-
ery,” and c) bids made contingent upon award of other bids currently under consideration.

1.19 Responsible Standing of Bidder. To be considered for award, bidder must at least: have the
ability to obtain adequate financial resources, be able to comply with required or proposed deliv-
ery/completion schedule, have a satisfactory record of performance; have a satisfactory record of integrity
and ethics, and be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive award.

1.20 Proprietary Data. Bidder may, by written request, indicate as confidential any portion(s) of a bid
that contain proprietary information, including manufacturing and/or design processes exclusive to the
vendor. Jefferson County will protect from public disclosure such portions of a bid, unless directed
otherwise by legal authority, including existing Open Records Acts.

1.21 Public Bid Opening. Bidders are invited to be present at the opening of bids. After the official
opening of bids, a period of not less than one week is necessary to evaluate bids. The amount of time
necessary for bid evaluation may vary and is determined solely by the County. Following the bid
evaluation, all bids submitted are available for public review.

Performance

2.1 Design, Strength, and Quality. Design, strength, and quality of materials and workmanship must
conform to the highest standards of manufacturing and engineering practices. The apparent silence of
specifications and/or plans as to any detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as
meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications
and/or plans shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.2 Age and Manufacture. All tangible goods being bid must be new and unused, unless otherwise
specified, in first-class condition, of current manufacture, and furnished ready to use. All items not specifi-
cally mentioned that are required for a complete unit shall be furnished.

2.3 Delivery Location. All deliveries will be made to the address(es) specified on the purchase order
during normal working hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, unless otherwise
authorized by the Purchasing Agent or designee.

2.4 Delivery Schedule. Delivery time may be an important consideration in the evaluation of best
value. The maximum number of days necessary for delivery ARO shall be stated in the space, if pro-
vided, on the bid form.

2.5 Delivery Charges. All delivery and freight charges, F.O.B. destination shown on Jefferson County
purchase order, as necessary to perform contract are to be included in the bid price.
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2.6 Installation Charges. All charges for assembly, installation and set-up shall be included in the bid
price. Unless otherwise stated, assembly, installation and set-up will be required.

2.7 Operating Instructions and Training. Clear and concise operating instructions and descriptive
literature will be provided in English, if requested. On-site detailed training in the safe and efficient use
and general maintenance of item(s) purchased shall be provided as needed at the request of Jefferson
County. Instructions and training shall be at no additional cost to the County.

2.8 Storage. Bidder agrees to provide storage of custom ordered materials, if requested, for up to thirty
(30) calendar days.

2.9 Compliance with Federal, State, County, and Local Laws. Bids must comply with all federal,
state, county and local laws, including, but not limited to, all applicable standard safety, emission, and
noise control requirements. Any vehicles or equipment shall contain all standard safety, emission, and
noise control requirements required for the types and sizes of equipment at the time of their manufacture.
The contractor agrees, during the performance of work or service, to comply with all applicable codes and
ordinances of Jefferson County or the State of Texas as they may apply, as these laws may now read, or
as they may hereafter be changed or amended.

2.10 OSHA. The bidder will certify all equipment complies with all regulations and conditions stipulated
under the Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1971, as amended. The successful
bidder will further certify that all items furnished under this project will conform and comply with federal
and State of Texas OSHA standards. The successful bidder will agree to indemnify and hold harmless
Jefferson County for any and all damages that may be assessed against the County.

2.11 Patents and Copyrights. The successful vendor agrees to protect the County from claims
involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights.

2.12 Samples, Demonstrations and Testing. At Jefferson County’s request and direction, bidder
shall provide product samples and/or testing of items bid to ensure compliance with specifications.
Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested at any point prior to or following bid award.
Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested upon delivery and/or any point during the term
of resulting contract. All samples (including return thereof), demonstrations, and/or testing shall be at the
expense of the bidder/vendor.

2.13  Acceptability. All articles enumerated in the bid shall be subject to inspection by an officer desig-
nated for that purpose by Jefferson County. If found inferior to the quality called for, or not equal in value
to the specifications, deficient in workmanship or otherwise, this fact shall be certified to the Purchasing
Agent, who shall have the right to reject the whole or any part of the same. Items and/or work determined
to be contrary to specifications must be replaced at the vendor’s expense. Inferior items not retrieved by
the vendor within thirty (30) calendar days, or an otherwise agreed upon time, shall become the property
of the County. If disposal of such items warrants an expense, an amount equal to the disposal expense
will be deducted from amounts payable to the vendor.

2.14 Maintenance. Maintenance required for equipment bid should be available in Jefferson County
by a manufacturer authorized maintenance facility. Cost for this service shall be shown on the bid sheet
as requested or on a separate sheet, as required. If Jefferson County opts to include maintenance, it
shall be so stated in the purchase order and said cost will be included. Service will commence only upon
expiration of applicable warranties and should be priced accordingly.

2.15 Material Safety Data Sheets. Under the “Hazardous Communications Act,” common known as
the “Texas Right to Know Act,” a bidder must provide the user department, with each delivery, material
safety data sheets which are applicable to hazardous substances defined in the Act. Failure of the bidder
to furnish this documentation, will be cause to reject any bid applying thereto.

2.16  Evaluation. Evaluation shall be used as a determinant as to which services are the most efficient
and/or most economical for the County. It shall be based on all factors having a bearing on price and
performance of the items in the user environment. All bids are subject to tabulation by the Jefferson
County Purchasing Department and recommendation to Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court.
Compliance with all bid requirements and needs of the using department are considered in evaluating
bids. Pricing is not the only criteria for making a recommendation. The Jefferson County Purchasing
Department reserves to right to contact any bidder, at any time, to clarify, verify or requirement information
with regard to this bid.

Purchase Orders and Payment

3.1 Purchase Orders. A purchase order(s) shall be generated by the Jefferson County Purchasing
Agent to the successful vendor. The purchase order number must appear on all itemized invoices and
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packing slips. The County will not be held responsible for any work orders placed and/or performed
without a valid current purchase order number. Payment will be made for all services rendered and
accepted by the contract administrator for which a valid invoice has been received.

3.2 Invoices. All invoices shall reference the Purchase Order number. Invoices shall reference the bid
item number or a detailed description for each item invoiced. If an item purchased and itemized on the
invoice does not correspond to an item in any of the categories awarded to the vendor, invoice shall
reference the item as “N/C” to indicate that it is a non-contract item. This requirement is to assist the
County in verifying contract pricing on all invoices. Payment will be made under terms of net thirty (30)
days unless otherwise agreed upon by seller and the purchasing department.

3.3 Prompt Payment. In accordance with the State of Texas Prompt Payment Act, Article 601f
V.T.C.S., payment will be made after receive and acceptance by the County of the merchandise ordered
and of a valid invoice. Successful bidder(s) is required to pay subcontractors within ten (10) days after the
successful bidder receives payment from the County.

3.4 Funding. Jefferson County is operated and funded on an October 1 to September 30 basis;
accordingly, the County reserves the right to terminate, without liability to the County, any contract for
which funding is not available.

Contract

4.1 Contract Definition. The General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract, Specifications,
Plans, Bidding Forms, Addenda, and any other documents made a part of this bid shall constitute the
complete bid. This bid, when duly accepted by Jefferson County, shall constitute a contract equally
binding between the successful bidder and Jefferson County.

4.2 Contract Agreement. Once a contract is awarded, the unit prices offered by the successful bidder
shall remain firm for the term of the contract. Contract shall commence on date of award and, upon
agreement between vendor(s) and Jefferson County, may be renewed annually for up to four (4)
additional years.

4.3 Change Order. No different or additional terms will become part of this contract with the exception
of a change order. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms,
conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract. All change orders to the contract will be made
in writing and at the discretion and approval of Jefferson County. No change order will be binding unless
signed by an authorized representative of the County and the vendor.

4.4 Price Re-determination. A price re-determination may be requested at the time of annual renewal.
All requests for price re-determination shall be in written form. Cause for such request, i.e.,
manufacturer’s direct cost, postage rates, Railroad Commission rates, Federal/State minimum wage law,
Federal/State unemployment taxes, F.I.C.A, Insurance Coverage Rates, etc., shall be substantiated in
writing by the source of the cost increase. The bidder's past experience of honoring contracts at the bid
price will be an important consideration in the evaluation of the lowest and best bid. Jefferson County
reserves the right to accept or reject any/all requests for price re-determination as it deems to be in the
best interest of the County.

4.5 Termination. Jefferson County reserves the right to terminate the contract for default if the bidder
breached any of the terms therein, including warranties of bidder or if the bidder becomes insolvent or
commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other
remedies which Jefferson County may have in law or equity. Default may be construed as, but not limited
to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or service within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly
perform any and all services required to Jefferson County’s satisfaction and/or to meet all other
obligations and requirements. Contracts may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days’ written
notice to either party unless otherwise specified. Jefferson County reserves the right to award canceled
contract to the next lowest bidder. Bidder, in submitting this bid, agrees that Jefferson County shall not be
liable to prosecution for damages in the event that the County declares the bidder in default.

4.6 Conflict of Interest. Employees of the County are not permitted to maintain financial interest in, or
receive payment, directly or indirectly, borrow from, lend to, invest in, or engage in any substantial
financial transaction with any individual, organization, supplier, or subcontractor who does business with
the County without disclosure. When conflict of interest is discovered, it shall be grounds for termination
of contract.

4.7 Injuries or Damages Resulting from Negligence. Successful vendor shall defend, indemnify and
save harmless Jefferson County and all its officers, agents and employees from all suits, actions, or other
claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or damages
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received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent act or fault of the
successful vendor, or of any agent, employee, subcontractor or supplier in the execution of, or
performance under, any contract which may result from bid award. Successful vendor shall pay any
judgment with cost which may be obtained against Jefferson County growing out of such injury or
damages.

4.8 Interest by Public Officials. No public official shall have interest in this contract, in accordance
with Texas Local Government Code.

4.9 Warranty. The successful vendor shall warrant that all materials utilized in the performance of this
contract shall conform to the proposed specifications and/or all warranties as stated in the Uniform
Commercial Code and be free from all defects in material, workmanship and title.

4,10 Uniform Commercial Code. The successful vendor and Jefferson County agree that both
parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code.

4.11 Venue. This agreement will be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of
Texas. This agreement is performable in the County of Jefferson, Texas.

4.12 Sale, Assignment, or Transfer of Contract. The successful vendor shall not sell, assign,
transfer or convey this contract, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Jefferson County.

4.13 Silence of Specifications. The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detailed
description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices
are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.
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Special Requirements/Instructions

The following requirements and instructions supersede General Requirements where applicable.

1.

Bid Requirement

Each bidder shall insure that all parts of the bid are completed and returned. The Table of Contents
indicates specifically which pages need to be returned; these pages shall constitute the vendor’s bid. Vendor
shall use an opaque envelope, clearly indicating on the outside the Bid Number, Bid Description, and
marked “SEALED BID”. Jefferson County shall not be responsible for any effort or cost expended in the
preparation of a response to this IFB. All protests should be coordinated through the Purchasing Office prior
to award recommendation to Commissioners’ Court. Bidders shall submit one (1) original and two (2)
copies of the bid.

Multiple Vendor Award
Jefferson County reserves the right to award this contract to more than one vendor at the County’s discretion.
Delivery

If delivery is required, all items must be packaged so as to be protected from damage during shipping and
handling. Any item(s) damaged in shipping must be replaced in kind, or repaired, by the contractor, at the
discretion of, and at no additional charge to, Jefferson County.

Payment

Jefferson County will pay original invoices that clearly itemize the goods and/or services provided as to
guantity, part number, description, price, applicable discount (if any), labor charges showing time differential, if
applicable and if previously agreed to, and delivery, installation, and set-up costs, if applicable and if
previously agreed to. Only charges as stated on the Bid Form(s) submitted as a part of the bid will be
considered.

Invoices must indicate Jefferson County as applicable, the address to which the product(s) and/or service(s)
were delivered, and the applicable purchase order number. Invoices will be matched to delivery tickets prior
to payment; therefore, all delivery tickets should have an accurate description of the product(s) and/or
service(s).

Usage Reports

Jefferson County reserves the right to request, and receive at no additional cost, up to two (2) times during
the contract period, a usage report detailing the products and/or services furnished to date under a contract
resulting from this IFB. The reports must be furnished no later than five (5) working days after written request
and itemize all purchases to date by Jefferson County department, description of each item purchased,
including manufacturer, quantity of each item purchased, per unit and extended price of each item purchased,
and total amount and price of all items purchased.

Insurance

The contractor (including any and all subcontractors as defined in Section 7.1.3 below) shall, at all times
during the term of this contract, maintain insurance coverages with not less than the type and requirements
shown below. Such insurance is to be provided at the sole cost of the contractor. These requirements do not
establish limits of the contractor’s liability.

All policies of insurance shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, employees and
agents.

Contractor shall furnish Jefferson County with Certificate of Insurance naming Jefferson County as additional
insured.

All insurance must be written by an insurer licensed to conduct business in the State of Texas.

Minimum Insurance Requirements

Public Liability $1,000,000.00
Excess Liability $1,000,000.00
Property Insurance Improvements & Betterments
Workers’ Compensation Statutory Coverage (see attached)
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7. Workers’ Compensation Insurance

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Definitions:

7.1.1 Certificate of coverage (“Certificate”) — A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate
of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agreement, DWC-81,
DWC-82, DWC-83, or DWC-84 showing statutory workers’ compensation insurance
coverage for the person’s or entity’s employees providing services on a project, for the
duration of the project.

7.1.2 Duration of the project — Includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project
until the contractor’s/person’s work on the project has been completed and accepted by the
governmental entity.

7.1.3 Persons providing services on the project (“subcontractor”) in article 406.096 —
Includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services under the contractor
has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person contracted
directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees. This
includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractor, leasing companies,
motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity
which furnishes persons to provide services on the project. “Services” includes, without
limitation, providing, hauling or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor,
transportation, or other service related to a project. “Services” does not include activities
unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and
delivery of portable toilets.

The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification code and payroll
amounts and filing any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor
Code, Section 401.011(44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the project, for the
duration of the project.

The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded
the contract — refer to Section 6 above.

If the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the
duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate
of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.

The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the
governmental entity:

7.5.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the
governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all
persons providing services on the project; and

7.5.2 No later than seven (7) days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of coverage
showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate ends
during the duration of the project.

The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for
one (1) year thereafter.

The Contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within
ten (10) days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the
provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.

The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the
Texas Department of Workers’ Compensation, informing all persons providing services on the project
that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of
coverage.

The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a
project to:

7.9.1 Provide coverage, based on reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing
of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code,
Section 401.011(44) for all its employees providing services on the project, for the duration
of the project.
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7.9.2

7.9.3

7.9.4

7.9.5

7.9.6

7.9.7

Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project a certificate of
coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing
services on the project, for the duration of the project.

Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of coverage period, a new certificate of coverage
showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of
coverage ends during the duration of the project.

Obtain from each person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor:

7.9.4.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the
project; and

7.9.4.2 the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of a
new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of
coverage ends during the duration of the project.

Retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one
(1) year thereatfter.

Notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten (10)
days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the
provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and

Contractually require each person with whom it contracts to perform as required by
paragraphs 7.1. — 7.7., with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for
whom they are providing services.

7.10 By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the Contractor
is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will provide services
of the project will be covered by workers’ compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the
coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all
coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured,
with the commission’s Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or misleading information
may subject the contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil

actions.

7.11 The Contractor’s failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the Contractor
which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the Contractor does not remedy the
breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental entity.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 12 of 39

21



Minimum Specifications

The following requirements and specifications supersede General Requirements where applicable.
Contact Jamey West, Contract Specialist (e-mail: jwest@co.jefferson.tx.us ; phone: 409-835-8593),
regarding any questions or comments. Please reference bid number 14-017/JW.

Scope

Vendor shall provide Road Building Materials for Jefferson County subject to the terms and
conditions stated herein for a period of one (1) year with an option to renew for four (4)
additional years beginning on or about Date of Award.

Instructions to Bidders

This bid, when properly accepted by Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court, shall constitute a
contract equally binding between the successful bidder and Jefferson County. No different or
additional terms will become part of this contract.

Before award successful bidder must submit third party laboratory testing to prove the material
they are to be awarded meets Jefferson County specifications.

Prices may be adjusted only to reflect increases or decreases in rail rates, or as indicated on bid
blank. The County shall require written verification on any increase in rail rates. Orders will be
placed on an as-needed basis for the duration of the contract. Purchase orders will be
released to the successful bidder(s) as required. MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT
ACCEPTABLE.

The County shall reserve the right to waive bid informalities, to reject any or all bids, to award
material by line item or by Precinct by line item, and to award to the bidder or bidders making
the offer most beneficial to the County. Jefferson County reserves the right to cancel this
contract with 15 days’ written notification.

F.O.B. point shall be strictly as indicated on bid blanks. Rail delivery material shall be quoted
F.O.B. shipping point with separate rate for prepaid rail delivery to the various points in Jefferson
County. Truck delivery material shall be quoted F.O.B. Jefferson County delivery zones, as
required, with delivery prepaid. Bidder bears freight charges. Bidder shall supply material
from the location closest to the County project site. Hopper pickup material and other
shipping point purchases shall be quoted F.O.B. trucks, shipping point, with freight for the
County’s account.

LOAD LIMITS. Any vehicle used to deliver materials shall comply with the State law concerning
the gross weight of such vehicle load, unless authorized by permit to exceed the legal weight.

Reference is made to 2004 TxDOT Standard Specifications for measurement of the various
items bid.

Alternate bids are not solicited. Add nothing to this bid; unsolicited attachments may be
discarded and have no bearing on this bid.

If a problem develops with Road Building Material during the year, samples shall be taken by a
third party laboratory representative in the presence of representatives from both the County
and the successful bidder. If the results of such test reveal the samples submitted do not meet
the specifications, the cost of the test shall be at the expense of the successful bidder. The
successful bidder shall make satisfactory adjustment for all products delivered which do not
comply with Jefferson County’s specifications. If the results of the test reveal the samples
submitted meet Jefferson County’s specification, the County will bear the cost of the test.

Manufacturer's Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) must be provided on all applicable deliveries.
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Quantities to be purchased will be on an as-needed basis and may be affected by weather
conditions or available funds. The County’s previous annual purchases of Road Building
Materials are listed below.

Natural Limestone Rock Asphalt Aggregate Item 302 Type PB Gr 3 2,500 tons
for Surface Treatment Item 302 Type PB Gr 4 32 200 tons
Item 302 Type PB Gr 4S '

2,800 tons
Pre-coated Rock Asphalt Aggregates for Item 302 Type PB Gr 4 5,777.14 tons
Surface Treatment
Item 247, Flexible Base (Supplier shall provide Item 247 Type A Gr 1 CLA 6,174.47 tons
loose weight in Ibs./c.y.). These items, which are (minimum P.I. 4; maximum P.1.
published in the TXDOT Standard Specifications. 10)
Hot Mix Cold Laid Asphaltic Concrete Item 334 Type “D” 390.72 tons
Pavement
Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Pavement Item 340 Type “D” 1,826.39 tons

These figures are shown solely as basis for bidders to determine the past history of these items,
and do not imply any promise that these quantities will be purchased.

Materials shall be measured by cubic yard or by gallon, as indicated on the bid form.

Truck Delivery: Quote delivery via tandem dump truck or by trailer as may be required.
It will be the decision of each precinct how materials are delivered. Price for delivery to the five
(5) county delivery points listed below shall be price perten cubic yard, per mile.

Precinct 1 Stockpile China Service Center
Precinct 2 Stockpile Viterbo Road

Precinct 2 Storage Yard LaBelle Road & Hwy. 365
Precinct 3 Stockpile Hwy. 124, Hamshire
Precinct 4 Stockpile Boyt Road

Hopper bids shall list city and address of hopper location as well as hours of operation. Bidders
desiring to quote materials loaded onto trucks from barges may list their locations under the
Hopper pickup caption.

Texas State Department of Transportation Standard Specification (2004), with the exceptions
noted below, shall define the materials in this specification.

If after bid award is made, vendor is unable to supply Jefferson County with materials ordered,
vendor shall fax the form letter provided by the County within two (2) hours of request stating
why the material cannot be delivered. Jefferson County will then be able to go out on the open
market for the materials that are needed until the vendor faxes another letter informing the
County the materials are available again.
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CMD-9000-002 ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PATCHING MATERIAL
(STOCKPILE STORAGE)

Description

This material is to be manufactured using a special cutback material (SCMI). This specification
shall govern for an asphaltic concrete mixture intended primarily as a cool to cold weather
stockpile patching mix for maintenance. It shall remain workable in the stockpile for several
months and have good adhesion to wet surfaces. The length of satisfactory stockpiling and the
lowest temperature at which it can be used will vary according to the type and grade of asphaltic
binder specified. It is primarily a crushed stone asphaltic concrete with asphalt additives.

Materials

SCM | (Special Cutback Material I) shall meet the following requirements. SCM | recommended
Aggregate Il only.

Tests on SCM 1I:

Flash Point (Test Method Tex-512-C): 79°C Minimum
Water (Test Method Tex-501C): 0.2% Maximum
Kinematic Viscosity at 60C, cSt (Test Method Tex-529-C): 500 to 1,000

Distillation (Test Method Tex-515-C), expressed as a
percent by volume of total distillate to 360C.

Minimum Maximum

Off at 225C 0 0

Off at 260C 0 0.5

Off at 315C 20 60

Residue at 360C, Volume % 76

Tests on Distillation Residue:
Penetration at 25C, 150g, 5 sec.! 180 Minimum
Ductility at 4C, 1 cm/min (Test Method Tex-503-C): 100 cm Minimum
Solubility in Trichloroethylene (Test Method Tex-507-C): 99% Minimum

Asphaltic Additives. One or more asphaltic additives to prevent stripping of the asphalt from the
aggregate in the presence of water and promote bonding to damp or wet surfaces shall be
incorporated into the mixture. The additive(s) shall be added to the asphalt material at the point
of origin or be metered in at the mix plant to provide a uniform concentration of the agent(s).
The type and amount of additive(s) used will be approved by the Engineer in the design stage
based on the resistance to stripping, as described in Article 3, “Properties of the Mixture” and
desired bonding and workability characteristics.

Distillate: When an MC-800 is designated as the asphaltic material to be used, the Engineer
may also direct that distillate in amounts not to exceed five percent by weight of the MC-800 be
added in order to extend stockpile life and improve cold weather workability. The distillate shall
meet the requirements for No. 1 and No. 2 diesel, ASTM D-975, Standard Specification for
Diesel Fuel Qils, with the exception that the maximum water content shall not be greater than
0.2 percent.

! ASTM D-5 procedure except using cone conforming to ASTM D-217. Also the level of water in the transfer dish shall be lowered to less than the
height of the sample and water decanted from top of sample before transferring from the bath to the penetrometer.
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The distillate shall be metered into the mix plant separately from the MC-800, or with the
permission of the Engineer, may be blended with the MC-800.

Aggregate: The aggregate shall meet the requirements for aggregate as specified in Iltem 334,
“Hot Mix — Cold Laid Asphaltic Concrete Pavement.”

Properties of the Mixture:

General Testing: When tested according to standard Department Test Methods, the mixture
shall comply with the following requirements:

Minimum Maximum
Asphalt Content, exclusive of volatiles, percent by weight 3.0 7.0
Hydrocarbon Volatile Content of mix, percent by weight 0.3 1.0
Moisture Content of mix (the requirement does not apply to mixtures 2.0
produced at mixing temperatures of 79C or less) percent by weight
Hveem Stability at 60C, percent (cured and molded in accordance with 352
Test Method Tex-206-F)

Mixture Design and Aggregate Gradation: One or more of the gradation types specified in Iltem
334, “Hot Mix — Cold Laid Concrete Pavement” for optimum density mixtures, or of the open
mixture gradations shown below shall be designated by the Engineer on the plans or requisition.

For mixtures to be produced with Item 334, “Hot Mix — Cold Laid Concrete Pavement” gradation,
the mixture should be designated in accordance with Test Method Tex-204-F and asphalt
content selected to result in laboratory density as follows:

Density (Percent)
Minimum Maximum Optimum
93.5 96.5 95.0

For mixtures to be produced with Gradation Il below, the Engineer shall select the asphalt
content within the range specified under “Asphalt Content” above:

% Passing
Sieve Size (by weight)
3"
1y 100
3/8” 95 - 100
No. 4 17 - 40
No. 10 2-15
No. 40 -
No. 80 -
No 200 0-3
AC %° 45-6.5

Resistance to Water Damage: The as-received mix shall be evaluated for resistance to water
damage by soaking a 100 gram representative sample of the total mixture in 200 milliliter (ml) of
distilled or de-ionized water at 60 +/- 1C for 24 +/- 2 hours. The soaking test shall be
accomplished in a glass beaker of approximately 400 ml. Upon completion of the 24-hour

2 The requirements for Hveem Stability are applicable to mixtures with Item 344, “Hot Mix — Cold Laid Asphaltic Concrete Pavement” gradations
only.
® Recommended asphalt content range.
IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 16 of 39



soaking period, the mixture shall be evaluated while submerged in the testing water. The
material shall show no visible evidence of stripping.

Preparation of Mixture:

The mixture shall be plant mixed. All production equipment shall meet the requirements of Item
334, “Hot Mix — Cold Laid Concrete Pavement.” The asphaltic material shall be heated in
accordance with Article 300.3, “Storage, Heating and Application Temperatures.” The
application temperature for SCM | and SCM Il shall be 170F (76C) to 200F (93C) unless
otherwise specified by the material supplier. The temperature of the bituminous mixture at the
point of discharge from the mixer and the temperature of the aggregate, when mixed with
bituminous material, shall not exceed 200F (93C) unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.
The mixture shall be mixed until all of the aggregate is uniformly coated.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 17 of 39
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OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE FORM

OFFER TO CONTRACT

To Jefferson County:

We hereby offer and agree to furnish the materials or service in compliance with all terms, conditions,
specifications, and amendments in the Invitation for Bid and any written exceptions in the offer. We
understand that the items in this Invitation for Bid, including, but not limited to, all required certificates
are fully incorporated herein as a material and necessary part of the contract.

The undersigned hereby states, under penalty of perjury, that all information provided is true,
accurate, and complete, and states that he/she has the authority to submit this bid, which will result in
a binding contract if accepted by Jefferson County.

We acknowledge receipt of the following amendment(s): , , ,

| certify, under penalty of perjury, that | have the legal authorization to bind the firm hereunder:

For clarification of this offer, contact:

Company Name

Address Name
City State Zip Phone Fax
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign E-mail

Printed Name

Title

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Acceptance of Offer

The Offer is hereby accepted for the following items: Term Contract for Road Building Materials for
Jefferson County. Contract Term: One (1) year from date of award with an option to renew for four (4)
additional years.

The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services listed by the attached contract and
based upon the Invitation for Bid, including all terms, conditions, specifications, amendments, etc.,
and the Contractor’s Offer as accepted by Jefferson County.

This contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract No. 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road
Building Materials for Jefferson County. The Contractor has not been authorized to commence any
billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor receives a
purchase order and/or a notice to proceed from the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent.

Countersigned:

Jeff R. Branick Date
County Judge

Carolyn L. Guidry
County Clerk

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County Page 19 of 39
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Bid Form

I. Rock Asphalt-Truck Delivery

Prepaid and Allowed

Price Per Cubic Yard, F.O.B. Delivered Jefferson
County Precinct Service Centers with Freight

Description

China Rd.

Viterbo Rd.

Boyt Rd.

A. | Natural Limestone Rock Asphalt
Aggregated for Surface Treatments:

1. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 3

$

per cubic yard

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

2. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4

$

per cubic yard

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

3. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4S

$

per cubic yard

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

B. | Precoated Rock Asphalt Aggregates
for Surface Treatments:

1. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4

$

per cubic yard

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

IA. Rock Asphalt-Truck Delivery

Prepaid and Allowed

Price Per Cubic Yard, F.O.B. Delivered Jefferson
County Precinct Service Centers with Freight

Description Rosedale LaBelle Hamshire Hebert
A. | Natural Limestone Rock Asphalt

Aggregates for Surface Treatments

1. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 3 $ $ $ $

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

2. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4

$

$

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

3. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4S

$

$

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

B. | Precoated Rock Asphalt Aggregates
for Surface Treatments

1. | Item 302 Type PB Gr 4S

$

$

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Bid Form (Continued)

II. Flexible Base, Item 247, Ty A, Gr 1 CLA

(Minimum P.I. 4 - Maximum P.1. 10)

Equipment Indicated.

A. Truck Delivery — Prices F.O.B. Delivered with Freight Prepaid and Allowed by Type of

Price per
Cubic Yard,
Tandem Dump

Price per
Cubic Yard,

Trailer

Flexible Base — Price Per Cubic Yard Delivered
from Vendor’s Hopper to Job Site — Bidder shall
supply material from location closest to the
County project site.

1. 1-10 Miles

$

per cubic yard

$

per cubic yard

2. 11 - 20 Miles

$

per cubic yard

$

per cubic yard

3. 21 - 30 Miles

$

per cubic yard

$

per cubic yard

4. 31+ Miles

$

per cubic yard

$

per cubic yard

B. Hopper Pick-Up

Location

Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping
Point

1. Beaumont

$

per cubic yard

2. Port Neches

$

per cubic yard

3. Port Arthur

$

per cubic yard

4. Other $
per cubic yard
5. Other $

per cubic yard

Hours of Hopper Operation:

MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Bid Form (Continued)

[ll. CMD-9000-002 Asphaltic Concrete Patching Material

(Stockpile Storage)

Equipment Indicated.

A. Truck Delivery — Prices F.O.B. Delivered with Freight Prepaid and Allowed by Type of

Price per
Cubic Yard,
Tandem Dump

Price per
Cubic Yard,
Trailer

Patching Material — Price Per Cubic Yard
Delivered from Vendor’s Hopper to Job Site.
Bidder shall supply material from location
closest to the County project site.

1. 1 -10 Miles

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

2. 11 - 20 Miles

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

3. 21 - 30 Miles

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

4. 31+ Miles

$

$

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

B. Hopper Pick-Up

Location Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck
Shipping Point

1. Beaumont

$

per cubic yard

2. Port Neches

$

per cubic yard

3. Port Arthur

$

per cubic yard

4. Other $
per cubic yard
5. Other $

per cubic yard

Hours of Hopper Operation:

MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Bid Form (Continued)

IV. Cement Stabilized Base, Hopper Pick Up

A. ltem 276, Plant Mix, Class L, Crushed Stone

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping

Location Address Point

1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard

B. Item 276, Plant Mix, Class M, Crushed Stone

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping

Location Address Point

1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard

C. Item 401, Flowable Backfill

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping

Location Address Point

1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard

MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Bid Form (Continued)

IV. Cement Stabilized Base, Hopper Pick Up — Continued

E.

ltem 401, Flowable Backfill

Location

Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping

Point

1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard

V. Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Pavement — Hopper Pick-Up

A. Item 340TY D
Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping
Location Address Point
1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard
Hours of Hopper Operation:
B. Item 340 TY D - Anti Stripping Agent shall be added if required by design mix.

Location

Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
Truck Shipping Point

Beaumont

per cubic yard

Port Neches

per cubic yard

per cubic yard

Other

per cubic yard

1.
2.
3. Port Arthur
4.
5.

Other

Al B B B P

per cubic yard

Hours of Hopper Operation:

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Bid Form (Continued)

VI. Hot Mix Cold Laid Asphaltic Concrete Pavement — Hopper Pick-Up

A. Item 334, Type D

Location

Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B. Truck Shipping
Point

1. Beaumont $ per cubic yard
2. Port Neches $ per cubic yard
3. Port Arthur $ per cubic yard
4. Other $ per cubic yard
5. Other $ per cubic yard

Hours of Hopper Operation:

VII. Concrete Structures — Truck Delivery

A. Delivered to Job Site, Jefferson County

Location

Address

Price Per Cubic Yard
F.O.B.
Truck Shipping Point

1. Item 421 Class A

per cubic yard

2. ltem 421 Class B

per cubic yard

3. Item421Class S

per cubic yard

MINIMUM ORDERS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

Acknowledgment of Addenda (if any):

Addendum 1
Addendum 2
Addendum 3

Date Received
Date Received

Date Received

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.

IFB 14-017/JW, Term Contract for Road Building Materials for Jefferson County
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Vendor References

Please list at least three (3) companies or governmental agencies (preferably a municipality) where
the same or similar products and/or services as contained in this specification package were recently
provided.

THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR BID.

REFERENCE ONE

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:
Contract Period: Scope of Work:
REFERENCE TWO

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:
Contract Period: Scope of Work:
REFERENCE THREE

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:

Contract Period: Scope of Work:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Signature Page

As permitted under Article 4413 (32c) V.A.C.S., other governmental entities may wish to participate
under the same terms and conditions contained in this contract (i.e., piggyback). In the event any
other entity participates, all purchase orders will be issued directly from and shipped directly to the
entity requiring supplies/services. Jefferson County shall not be held responsible for any orders
placed, deliveries made or payment for supplies/services ordered by another entity. Each entity
reserves the right to determine their participation in this contract.

Would bidder be willing to allow other governmental entities to piggyback off this contract, if awarded,
under the same terms and CONTItIONS?........eevuveeeeeeee oo eeee e Yes[ ] Nol[]

This bid shall remain in effect for ninety (90) days from bid opening and shall be exclusive of federal
excise and state and local sales tax (exempt).

The undersigned agrees, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all items upon which prices are
offered, at the price and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Invitation for Bid, Conditions
of Bidding, Terms of Contract, and Specifications and all other items made a part of the accepted
contract.

The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute the contract, that this company,
corporation, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder,
and that the contents of this bid as to prices, terms or conditions of said bid have not been
communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other bidder or to any other
person(s) engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid. And further, that
neither the bidder nor their employees nor agents have been for the past six (6) months directly nor
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination to control the price of goods or services
on, nor to influence any person to bid or not to bid thereon.

Bidder (Entity Name) Signature
Street & Mailing Address Print Name
City, State & Zip Date Signed
Telephone Number Fax Number

E-mail Address

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local OFFICE USE ONLY
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7 business day after the date the
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See
Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, Local
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C
misdemeanor.

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. [] Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not
later than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government
Code, is pending and not later than the 7" business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire
becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

4. Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this
guestionnaire.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ
Page 2
For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity

5. Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. (Complete this section
only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the
filer has affiliation or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. s the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the
filer of the questionnaire?

[]Yes [ ] No
B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction

of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

[]Yes ] No

C. Isthe filer of the questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

[]Yes [ ] No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship:

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Good Faith Effort (GFE) Determination Checklist

This information must be submitted with your bid.

Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded).
[JYes [1No

Instructions:

In order to determine if a “Good Faith Effort” was made in soliciting HUBs for

subcontracting opportunities, the following checklist and supporting documentation shall be completed
by the Prime Contractor/Consultant, and returned with the Prime Contractor/ Consultant’s bid. This
list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by the Prime Contractor/Consultant when
attempting to achieve or exceed the goals of HUB Subcontractor participation. The Prime
Contractor/Consultant may extend his/her efforts in soliciting HUB Subcontractor participation beyond
what is listed below.

] Yes

] Yes

[ Yes

] Yes

] Yes

] Yes

1 No

] No

1 No

] No

1 No

] No

Did the Prime Contractor/Consultant . . .

1.

To the extent practical, and consistent with standard and prudent industry
standards, divide the contract work into the smallest feasible portions, to allow
for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation?

Notify in writing a reasonable number of HUBs, allowing sufficient time for
effective participation of the planned work to be subcontracted?

Provide HUBs that were genuinely interested in bidding on a subcontractor,
adequate information regarding the project (i.e., plans, specifications, scope of
work, bonding and insurance requirements, and a point of contract within the
Prime Contractor/Consultant’s organization)?

Negotiate in good faith with interested HUBs, and not reject bids from HUBs
that qualify as lowest and responsive bidders?

Document reasons HUBs were rejected? Was a written rejection notice,
including the reason for rejection, provided to the rejected HUBS?

If Prime Contractor/Consultant has zero (0) HUB participation, please explain
the reasons why.

If “No” was selected, please explain and include any pertinent documentation with your bid.
If necessary, please use a separate sheet to answer the above questions.

Printed Name of Authorized Representative Signature

Title

Date

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Notice of Intent (NOI) to Subcontract with
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)

This information must be submitted with your bid.

Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded).
[JYes [1No

Instructions for Prime Contractor/Consultant: Bidder shall submit this form with the bid; however, the
information below may be submitted after contract award, but prior to beginning performance on the
contract. Please submit one form for each HUB Subcontractor/ Subconsultant with proper signatures, per
the terms and conditions of your contract.

Contractor Name: HUB: p Yes p No
Address:

Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):

Project Title & No.:

Prime Contract Amount: $

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: O Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm. [ Jefferson County [ Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Printed Name of Contractor Representative Signature of Representative Date

Printed Name of HUB Signature of Representative Date

NOTE: NOTHING ON THIS NOTICE OF INTENT FORM IS INTENDED TO CONFER ANY RIGHTS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO ANY THIRD PARTIES.

Pre-Approval for Subcontractor Substitutions must be obtained from the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent’s
Representative. The “HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form” must be completed and faxed to 409-
835-8456.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 1 OoF 4
This information must be submitted with your bid.

Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded).
[dYes [1No

Prime Contractor: HUB: [ Yes []No

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Address:
Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Project Title & No.: IFB/RFP No.:
Total Contract: $ Total HUB Subcontract(s): $
Construction HUB Goals: 12.8% MBE:: %  12.6% WBE: %

Sub-goals: 1.7 African-American, 9.7% Hispanic, 0.7% Native American, 0.8% Asian American.
Use these goals as a guide to diversify.

FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY:

Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verified HUB Sub information  Date: Initials:

PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: [] Texas Bldg & Procurement Comm. [ ] Texas Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 2 OF 4

HUB SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

PART I: Continuation Sheet (Duplicate as Needed)

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: [J Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.  [] Jefferson County  [] Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: [ Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm. [] Jefferson County  [] Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

All HUB Subcontractor Participation may be verified with the
HUB Subcontractor(s) listed on Part I.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 30F 4
PART ll: STATEMENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE FOR NOT MEETING HUB SUBCONTRACTING GOALS

Please complete Good Faith Effort (GFE) Checklist and attach any supporting documentation.
Our firm was unable to meet the HUB goals for this project for the following reasons:

[ ] All subcontractors to be utilized are “Non-HUBs.” (Complete Part l11)
[ 1 HUBs were solicited but did not respond.

[] HUBs solicited were not competitive.

[ ] HUBs were unavailable for the following trade(s):

[] Other:

Was the Jefferson County HUB Office contacted for assistance in locating HUBs? []Yes [1No

PART Ill: DISCLOSURE OF OTHER “NON-HUB” SUBCONTRACTS

The bidder shall use this area to provide a listing of all “Non-HUB” Subcontractors, including suppliers, that will
perform under this project. A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors the bidder selects, after bid submission,
shall be provided to the Purchasing Office not later than five (5) calendar days after being notified that bidder is
the apparent low bidder. A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors that are selected after contract award must
be provided immediately after their selection.

Subcontractor Name:

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Subcontractor Name:

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 4 OF 4

Subcontractor Name:
Address:

Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:
Subcontractor Name:
Address:

Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

| hereby certify that | have read the HUB Program Instructions and Information, truthfully completed all applicable parts of
this form, and attached any necessary support documentation as required. | fully understand that intentionally falsifying
information on this document may result in my not receiving a contract award or termination of any resulting contract.

Name (print or type):

Title:

Signature:

Date:

E-mail address:

Contact person that will be in charge of invoicing for this project:

Name (print or type):

Title:

Date:

E-mail address:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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45
Residence Certification/Tax Form

Pursuant to Texas Government Code 82252.001 et seq., as amended, Jefferson County requests
Resident Certification. §2252.001 et seq. of the Government Code provides some restrictions on the
awarding of governmental contracts; pertinent provisions of 82252.001 are stated below:

(83) “Nonresident bidder” refers to a person who is not a resident.

(4) “Resident bidder” refers to a person whose principal place of business is in this state,
including a contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its principal
place of business in this state.

O | certify that [company name] is a Resident Bidder of Texas as
defined in Government Code §2252.001.

O | certify that [company name] is a Nonresident Bidder as defined
in Government Code 82252.001 and our principal place of business is
(city and state).

Taxpayer Identification Number (T.I.N.):

Company Name submitting bid/proposal:

Mailing address:

If you are an individual, list the names and addresses of any partnership of which you are a general
partner:

Property: List all taxable property owned by you or above partnerships in Jefferson County.

Jefferson County Tax Acct. No.* Property address or location**

*  This is the property amount identification number assigned by the Jefferson County Appraisal District.

**  For real property, specify the property address or legal description. For business property, specify the address where
the property is located. For example, office equipment will normally be at your office, but inventory may be stored as a
warehouse or other location.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Bid Affidavit

The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this bid have been carefully reviewed and
are submitted as correct and final. Bidder further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all
commodities upon which prices are extended at the price offered, and upon the conditions contained
in the specifications and the Notice to Bidders.

STATE OF COUNTY OF

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of ,

on this day personally appeared , who
(name)
after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say:

“I, am a duly authorized officer of/fagent
(name)
for and have been duly authorized to execute the
(name of firm)
foregoing on behalf of the said

(name of firm)

| hereby certify that the foregoing bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other bidder or other
person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this bid.
Further, | certify that the bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities bid on, or to influence any person or persons to bid or not to bid thereon.”

Name and address of bidder:

Fax: Telephone#

by: Title:
(print name)

Signature:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named
on

this the day of , 2014.

Notary Public in and for
the State of

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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m JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DIVISION
Q

é% Deborah L. Clark, County Purchasing Agent
A\ G\ ¥/

~\{=Y>

1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, TX 77701 409-835-8593 Fax 409-835-8456

Request for Qualifications

June 9, 2014
Dear Vendors:

The County of Jefferson, Texas has received funding in the County Transportation Infrastructure Fund
Grant Program from the Texas Department of Transportation for the construction of new location roadway.
The County is seeking a firm that will perform an appropriate level of environmental investigation and
analysis for this project, identify all environmental problems that the county must remediate, obtain all
required permits and clearances from the appropriate regulatory agencies, and provide a certification that
all the preceding items have been performed. Qualified firms or individuals are invited to submit a
statement of qualifications for RFQ (14-021/KJS), Major Drive Extension Environmental Assessment.
Jefferson County is requesting statements of qualifications from qualified firms that are registered to
practice in the State of Texas to carry out the approved activities.

All interested individuals and firms shall obtain a “Request for Qualifications” packet from the Jefferson
County Purchasing web site at www.co.jefferson.tx.us.

All responses shall be submitted with an original and six (6) hard copies, to the Jefferson County
Purchasing Agent, 1149 Pearl Street, 1** Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701, no later than 11:00 a.m.,
July 1, 2014. Responses will be publicly opened and the names of responding firms will be read aloud in the
Jefferson County Commissioners’ Courtroom at the time and date below.

All responses shall be submitted to the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent in a sealed envelope
marked:

Request NAME: Major Drive Extension Environmental Assessment
Request NO: RFQ 14-021/KJS
DUE DATE/TIME: 11:00 Am, July 1, 2014

MAIL OR DELIVER TO: Jefferson County Purchasing Department
1149 Pearl Street, 1% Floor
Beaumont, Texas 77701

Any questions relating to these requirements should be directed to Karen J. Smith, MBA Assistant
Purchasing Agent, at 409-835-8593.

Sincerely,

Dot (iode

Deborah L. Clark

Purchasing Agent

Jefferson County, Texas

Publish:  Beaumont Enterprise and Port Arthur News — June 11" and 18", 2014
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.é%«{ JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Deborah L. Clark, Purchasing Agent

1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, TX 77701 409-835-8593 Fax 409-835-8456

LEGAL NOTICE
Advertisement for Request for Proposal

June 9, 2014

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be accepted by the Jefferson County Purchasing
Department for RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County. Specifications for this
project may be obtained from the Jefferson County website, http://www.co.jefferson.tx.us,
or by calling 409-835-8593.

Proposals are to be addressed to the Purchasing Agent with the proposal number and name marked
on the outside of the envelope. Offerors shall forward an original and five (5) copies of their proposal
to the address shown below. Late proposals will be rejected as non-responsive. Proposals will be
publicly opened and only the firm name will be read aloud in the Jefferson County Commissioners’
Courtroom at the time and date below. Proposals shall be opened in a manner that avoids disclosure of
the contents to competing offerors and maintains the confidentiality of the proposals during negotiations.
Proposals will be open for public inspection after the award of the contract, except for trade secrets and
confidential information. Offerors are invited to attend the sealed proposal opening.

A Pre-proposal Conference will be held on June 17, 2014 at 2:00 pm in the Commissioners’
Courtroom, 1149 Pearl| Street, Fourth Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701. All interested firms are
encouraged to attend.

PROPOSAL NAME: Auditing Services for Jefferson County
PROPOSAL NO: RFP 14-019/JW
DUE DATE/TIME: 11:00 AmM CST, Tuesday, July 15, 2014

MAIL OR DELIVER TO: Jefferson County Purchasing Department
1149 Pearl Street, 1°' Floor
Beaumont, Texas 77701

Any questions relating to these requirements should be directed to Jamey West, Contract Specialist,
at 409-835-8593.

All interested firms are invited to submit a proposal in accordance with the terms and conditions stated
in this proposal.

RESPONDENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE INVITATION.

Deborah L. Clark
Purchasing Agent
Jefferson County, Texas

Publish:  Beaumont Enterprise & Port Arthur News — June 11" and June 18", 2014
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1. Proposal Submittal Checklist

The Offeror’s attention is especially called to the items listed below, which must be submitted in full as
part of the proposal.

Failure to submit any of the documents listed below as a part of your proposal, or failure to
acknowledge any addendum in writing with your proposal, or submitting a proposal on any condition,
limitation, or provision not officially invited in this Request for Proposal (RFP) may cause for rejection
of the proposal.

Offeror shall check each box indicating compliance.

THIS CHECKLIST MUST BE SUBMITTED AS PART OF YOUR PACKAGE

[] Cover sheet identifying the contract/project being proposed, the name and address of the Offeror,
the date of the proposal, and the telephone and facsimile numbers of Offeror.

[ ] An acknowledgment and/or response to each section of the proposal.

Form of business (e.g., corporation, sole proprietorship, partnership); if corporation the date and
state of incorporation.

[ ] Identification of three (3) entities for which the Offeror is providing or has provided Auditing
Services of the type requested, including the name, position, and telephone number of a contact
person at each entity.

[ ] Identification of all legal claims, demands, contracts terminated or lawsuits filed, threatened, or
pending against the Offeror and/or its principal/officers for the last three (3) years, as well as
identification of any administrative actions or warnings taken or issued by any federal, state, or
local governmental agency to Offeror and/or its principals/officers with regard to the provision of
the same or similar service as covered by this RFP, or the payment of moneys under the terms of
any agreement(s) relating to such services.

[] One (1) original and five (5) copies of the proposal should be mailed or delivered no later than
11:00 Am CST, TUESDAY, JuLY 15, 2014, to the Jefferson County Purchasing Department, 1149
Pearl Street, First Floor, Beaumont, TX 77701.

PLEASE READ THE “PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST” INCLUDED IN THIS PACKAGE.

Company Telephone Number
Address Fax Number
Authorized Representative (Please print) Title

Authorized Signature Date

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County Page 5 of 51

52



2.1.1. Proposals must be submitted in complete original form by mail or messenger to the

Jefferson County Purchasing Department
1149 Pearl Street, First Floor

2.1.2 Proposals will be accepted at the above address until the time and date specified
herein, and immediately after will be publicly opened and read aloud.

2.1.3 All proposals shall be tightly sealed in an opaque envelope and plainly marked with the
RFP number, due date, and the Offeror's name and address.

2.1.4 Late proposals will not be accepted and will be returned to the Offeror.

2.1.5 All proposals submitted in response to this RFP shall become the property of Jefferson
County and will be a matter of public record available for review.

2.2.1 The proposal shall be legibly printed in ink or typed.

2.2.2 If a unit price or extension already entered is to be altered, it shall be crossed out and

2.2.3 The proposal shall be legally signed and shall include the complete address of the

2.2.4 Jefferson County is exempt from Federal and State Sales Taxes, and such taxes shall

All proposals, notifications, claims, and statements must be signed by an individual authorized
to bind the Offeror. The individual signing certifies, under penalty of perjury, that he or she has

Submission of additional terms, conditions or agreements with the RFP document are grounds
for deeming a proposal non-responsive and may result in rejection. Jefferson County reserves
the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any informalities and minor irregularities
or defects in proposals. Proposals may be withdrawn in person by an Offeror or authorized
representative, provided their identity is made known and a receipt is signed for the proposal,
but only if the withdrawal is made prior to the time set for receipt of proposals. Proposals are
an irrevocable offer and may not be withdrawn within 90 days after opening date.

2. Instructions to Offerors
2.1. Proposal Submission
following address:
Beaumont, TX 77701
2.2 Preparation of Proposals
initialed in ink by the Offeror.
Offeror.
not be included in prices.
2.3 Signatures
the legal authorization to bind the Offeror.
2.4 Rejection or Withdrawal
25 Award

The contract will be awarded to the responsible, responsive Offeror(s) whose proposal,
conforming to the solicitation, will be most advantageous to Jefferson County — price and other
factors considered. Unless otherwise specified in this RFP, Jefferson County reserves the
right to accept a proposal in whole or in part, and to award by item or by group, whichever is
deemed to be in the best interest of Jefferson County. Any Offeror who is in default to
Jefferson County at the time of submittal of the proposal shall have that proposal rejected.

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County Page 6 of 51
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2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.11

2.12

Jefferson County reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the
Contractor; however, any substantial nonconformity in the offer, as determined by Jefferson
County, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.

In evaluating proposals, Jefferson County shall consider the qualifications of the Offerors, and,
where applicable, operating costs, delivery time, maintenance requirements, performance
data, and guarantees of materials and equipment. In addition, Jefferson County may conduct
such investigation as it deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of proposals and to
establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of the Offerors to fulfill the
contract.

Changes and Addenda to RFP Documents

Each change or addendum issued in relation to this RFP document will be on file in the Office
of the Purchasing Agent, and will additionally be posed on the web site. It shall be the
Offeror’s responsibility to make inquiry as to change or addenda issued. All such changes or
addenda shall become part of the contract and all Offerors shall be bound by such addenda.

Specifications

Unless otherwise stated by the Offeror, the RFP will be considered as being in accordance
with Jefferson County’s applicable standard specifications, and any special specifications
outlined in the RFP document. References to a particular trade name, manufacturer’s
catalogue, or model number are made for descriptive purposes to guide the Offeror in
interpreting the requirements of Jefferson County, and should not be construed as excluding
bids on other types of materials, equipment, and supplies. However, the Offeror, if awarded a
contract, will be required to furnish the particular item referred to in the specifications or
description unless departure or substitution is clearly noted and described in the proposal.
Jefferson County reserves the right to determine if equipment/product being offered is an
acceptable alternate. All goods shall be new unless otherwise so stated in the RFP. Any
unsolicited alternate proposal, or any changes, insertions, or omissions to the terms and
conditions, specifications, or any other requirements of the RFP, may be considered non-
responsive.

Delivery

Proposals shall include all charges for delivery, packing, crating, containers, etc. Unless
otherwise stated by the Offeror, prices will be considered as being based on F.O.B. delivered,
freight included.

Interpretation of RFP and/or Contract Documents

All inquiries shall be made within a reasonable time prior to the date and time fixed for the
opening, in order that a written response in the form of an addendum, if required, can be
processed before the proposals are opened. Inquiries received that are not made in a timely
fashion may or may not be considered.

Currency

Prices calculated by the Offeror shall be stated in U.S. dollars.

Pricing

Prices shall be stated in units of quantity specified in the RFP documents. In case of dis-
crepancy in computing the amount of the offer, the unit price shall govern.

Notice to Proceed/Purchase Order

The successful Offeror may not commence work under this contract until authorized to do so
by the Purchasing Agent.

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County Page 7 of 51
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2.13 Certification

By signing the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Offeror certifies:

2.13.1 The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.

2.13.2 The Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip,
favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer.

2.13.3 The Offeror hereby certifies that the individual signing the proposal is an authorized
agent for the Offeror and has the authority to bind the Offeror to the contract.

2.14 Definitions

“County” — Jefferson County, Texas.
“Contractor” — The Offeror whose proposal is accepted by Jefferson County.

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County Page 8 of 51
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3. General Terms and Conditions and Terms Of Contract

By execution of this document, the vendor accepts all general and special conditions of the contract
as outlined below and in the specifications and plans.

3.1 Proposals

3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

Proposals. All proposals must be submitted In the form furnished in this
package.

Authorized Signatures. The offer must be executed personally by the vendor, duly
authorized partner of the partnership, or duly authorized officer of the corporation. If
executed by an agent, a power of attorney or other evidence of authority to act on
behalf of the vendor shall accompany the offer to become a valid offer.

Late Proposals. Proposals must be in the office of the Jefferson County Purchasing
Agent before or at the specified time and date. Proposals received after the submis-
sion deadline shall be rejected as non-responsive.

Withdrawal of Proposals Prior to Opening. A proposal may be withdrawn before the
opening date by submitting a written request to the Purchasing Agent. If time allows
the Offeror may submit a new proposal. Offeror assumes full responsibility for
submitting a new proposal before or at the specified time and date. Jefferson County
reserves the right to withdraw an RFP before the opening date.

Withdrawal of Proposals After Opening. Offeror agrees that its offer may not be
withdrawn or cancelled by the vendor for a period of ninety (90) days following the
date and time designated for the receipt of proposals unless otherwise stated in the
RFP and/or specifications.

Amounts. Proposals shall show net prices, extensions where applicable, and net
total. In case of conflict between unit price and extension, the unit price will govern.
Any ambiguity in the RFP as a result of omission, error, unintelligible or illegible
wording shall be interpreted in the favor of Jefferson County.

Exceptions and/or Substitutions. All proposals meeting the intent of the speci-
fications and plans will be considered for award. Vendors taking exception to the
specifications and plans, or offering substitutions, shall state these exceptions in the
section provided. If proposal is made on an article other than the one specified,
which an Offeror considers comparable, the name and grade of said article must be
specified in the proposal and sufficient specifications and descriptive data must
accompany same to permit thorough evaluation. The absence of stated exceptions
and/or substitutions shall indicate that the Offeror has not taken any exceptions to the
specifications and shall be responsible to perform in strict accordance with the
specifications. As a matter of practice, Jefferson County rejects exception(s)
and/or substitutions as non-responsive but reserves the right to accept any
and/or all of the exception(s) and/or substitution(s) deemed to be in the best
interest of Jefferson County.

Alternates. The RFP and/or specifications may expressly allow Offeror to submit an
alternate offer. Presence of such an offer shall not be considered an indication of
non-responsiveness.
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3.1.9

3.1.10

3.1.11

3.1.12

3.1.13

3.1.14

3.1.15

3.1.16

3.1.17

3.1.18

Descriptions. Unless otherwise specified, any reference to make, manufacturer
and/or model used in the specifications is merely descriptive and not restrictive, and
is used only to indicate type, style, or quality of material desired.

Alterations. Proposals cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline.
Any interlineations, alterations, or erasures made before opening time must be
initialed by the signer of the offer, guaranteeing authenticity.

Tax Exempt Status. Jefferson County is exempt from federal excise tax and state
sales tax. Unless the specifications specifically indicate otherwise, the price must be
net, exclusive of above-mentioned taxes and will be so construed. Therefore, the
price shall not include taxes.

Quantities.  Quantities indicated are estimated quantities only and are not a
commitment to buy. Approximate usage does not constitute an order, but only
implies the probable quantity that will be used. Commodities will be ordered on an
as-needed basis. Offeror is responsible for accurate final counts.

Award. Award of contract shall be made to the most responsible, responsive Offeror,
whose offer is determined to be the best value, taking into consideration the relative
importance of price. Jefferson County reserves the right to be the sole judge as to
whether items will serve the purpose intended. Jefferson County reserves the right
to accept or reject in part or in whole any proposal submitted, and to waive any tech-
nicalities or informalities for the best interest of the County. Jefferson County
reserves the right to award based upon individual line items, sections or total offer.

Silence of Specifications for Complete Units. All materials, equipment and/or parts
that will become a portion of the completed work, including items not specifically
stated herein but, necessary to render the service(s) complete and operational per
the specifications, are to be included in the bid price. Offeror may be required to
furnish evidence that the service, as offered, will meet or exceed these requirements.

Addenda. Any interpretations, corrections or changes to the specifications and plans
will be made by addenda no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the opening.
Addenda will be posted on the web site; Offerors are responsible for monitoring the
web site. Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda with submission of
proposal.

General Bid Bond/Surety Requirements. Failure to furnish bid bond/surety, if
requested, will result in offer being declared non-responsive. Non-responsive
proposals will not be considered for award.

General Insurance Requirements. Failure to furnish Affidavit of Insurance, if required
in these specifications, will result in proposal being declared non-responsive.
Non-responsive proposals will not be considered for award.

Responsiveness. A responsive proposal shall substantially conform to the
requirements of this RFP and/or specifications contained herein. Offerors who
substitute any other terms, conditions, specifications and/or requirements or who
qualify their proposals in such a manner as to nullify or limit their liability to the
contracting entity shall have their proposals deemed non-responsive. Also,
proposals containing any clause that would limit contracting authority shall be
considered non-responsive. Examples of non-responsive proposals include but shall
not be limited to: a) proposals that fail to conform to required delivery schedules as
set forth in the bid request; b) proposals with prices qualified in such a manner that
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3.1.19

3.1.20

3.1.21

the price cannot be determined, such as with vague wording that may include “price
in effect at the time of delivery,” and c) proposals made contingent upon award of
other bids currently under consideration.

Responsible Standing of Offeror. To be considered for award, Offeror must at least:
have the ability to obtain adequate financial resources, be able to comply with
required or proposed delivery/completion schedule, have a satisfactory record of
performance; have a satisfactory record of integrity and ethics, and be otherwise
gualified and eligible to receive award.

Proprietary Data. Offeror may, by written request, indicate as confidential any
portion(s) of a proposal that contain(s) proprietary information, including
manufacturing and/or design processes exclusive to the Offeror. Jefferson County
will protect from public disclosure such portions of a proposal, unless directed
otherwise by legal authority, including existing Open Records Acts.

Public Opening. Offerors are invited to be present at the opening of proposals. After
the official opening, a period of not less than one week is necessary to evaluate
proposals. The amount of time necessary for evaluation may vary and is determined
solely by the County. Following the evaluation, all proposals submitted are available
for public review.

3.2 Performance

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.25

3.2.6

3.2.7

Design, Strength, and Quality. Design, strength, and quality of materials and
workmanship must conform to the highest standards of manufacturing and
engineering practices. The apparent silence of specifications and/or plans as to any
detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the
best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications
and/or plans shall be made on the basis of this statement.

Age and Manufacture. All tangible goods being bid must be new and unused, unless
otherwise specified, in first-class condition, of current manufacture, and furnished
ready to use. All items not specifically mentioned that are required for a complete
unit shall be furnished.

Delivery Location. All deliveries will be made to the address(es) specified on the
purchase order during normal working hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday
through Friday, unless otherwise authorized by the Purchasing Agent or designee.

Delivery Schedule. Delivery time may be an important consideration in the
evaluation of best value. The maximum number of days necessary for delivery ARO
shall be stated in the space, if provided, on the price form.

Delivery Charges. All delivery and freight charges, F.O.B. destination shown on
Jefferson County purchase order, as necessary to perform contract, are to be
included in the bid price.

Installation Charges. All charges for assembly, installation and set-up shall be
included in the price. Unless otherwise stated, assembly, installation and set-up will
be required.

Operating Instructions and Training. Clear and concise operating instructions and
descriptive literature will be provided in English, if requested. On-site detailed
training in the safe and efficient use and general maintenance of item(s) purchased

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County Page 11 of 51

58



3.2.8

3.29

3.2.10

3.2.11

3.3.12

shall be provided as needed at the request of Jefferson County. Instructions and
training shall be at no additional cost to the County.

Storage. Offeror agrees to provide storage of custom ordered materials, if
requested, for up to thirty (30) calendar days.

Compliance with Federal, State, County, and Local Laws. Proposals must comply
with all federal, state, county and local laws, including, but not limited to, all
applicable standard safety, emission, and noise control requirements. Any vehicles
or equipment shall contain all standard safety, emission, and noise control
requirements required for the types and sizes of equipment at the time of their
manufacture. The contractor agrees, during the performance of work or service, to
comply with all applicable codes and ordinances of Jefferson County or the State of
Texas as they may apply, as these laws may now read, or as they may hereafter be
changed or amended.

Patents and Copyrights. The successful Offeror agrees to protect the County from
claims involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights.

Samples, Demonstrations and Testing. At Jefferson County’s request and direction,
Offeror shall provide product samples and/or testing of items bid to ensure
compliance with specifications. Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be
requested at any point prior to or following award. All samples (including return
thereof), demonstrations, and/or testing shall be at the expense of the Offeror.

Acceptability. All articles enumerated in the proposal shall be subject to inspection
by an officer designated for that purpose by Jefferson County. If found inferior to the
quality called for, or not equal in value to the specifications, deficient in workmanship
or otherwise, this fact shall be certified to the Purchasing Agent, who shall have the
right to reject the whole or any part of the same. Items and/or work determined to be
contrary to specifications must be replaced at the vendor’'s expense. Inferior items
not retrieved by the vendor within thirty (30) calendar days, or an otherwise agreed
upon time, shall become the property of the County. If disposal of such items
warrants an expense, an amount equal to the disposal expense will be deducted
from amounts payable to the vendor.

3.3 Purchase Orders and Payment

3.3.1

3.3.2

Purchase Orders. A purchase order(s) shall be generated by the Jefferson County
Purchasing Agent to the successful vendor. The purchase order number must
appear on all itemized invoices and packing slips. The County will not be held
responsible for any work orders placed and/or performed without a valid current
purchase order number. Payment will be made for all services rendered and
accepted by the Jefferson County Auditor for which a valid invoice has been
received.

Invoices. All invoices shall reference the Purchase Order number. Invoices shall
reference the bid item number or a detailed description for each item invoiced. If an
item purchased and itemized on the invoice does not correspond to an item in any of
the categories awarded to the vendor, invoice shall reference the item as “N/C” to
indicate that it is a non-contract item. This requirement is to assist the County in
verifying contract pricing on all invoices. Payment will be made under terms of net
thirty (30) days unless otherwise agreed upon by seller and the purchasing
department.
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3.3.3 Funding. Jefferson County is operated and funded on an October 1 to September 30
basis; accordingly, the County reserves the right to terminate, without liability to the
County, any contract for which funding is not available.
3.4 Contract

3.4.1 Contract Agreement. Once a contract is awarded, the unit prices offered by the
successful Offeror shall remain firm for the term of the contract. Contract shall
commence on date of award and continue for up to a three (3) year period.

3.4.2 Change Order. No different or additional terms will become part of this contract with
the exception of a change order. No oral statement of any person shall modify or
otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the
resulting contract. All change orders to the contract will be made in writing and at the
discretion and approval of Jefferson County. No change order will be binding unless
signed by an authorized representative of the County and the vendor.

3.4.3 Price Redetermination. A price redetermination may be considered by Jefferson
County only at the twelve (12) month and twenty-four (24) month anniversary dates
of the contract. All requests for price redetermination shall be in written form. Cause
for such request, i.e., manufacturer’s direct cost, postage rates, Railroad Commission
rates, Federal/State minimum wage law, Federal/State unemployment taxes, F.I.C.A,
Insurance Coverage Rates, etc., shall be substantiated in writing by the source of the
cost increase. The Offeror's past experience of honoring contracts at the offered
price will be an important consideration in the evaluation of the lowest and best
proposal. Jefferson County reserves the right to accept or reject any/all requests for
price redetermination as it deems to be in the best interest of the County.

3.44 Termination for Default. Jefferson County reserves the right to enforce the per-
formance of this contract in any manner prescribed by law or deemed to be in the
best interest of the County in the event of breach or default of this contract. Jefferson
County reserves the right to terminate the contract immediately in the event the
vendor fails to perform to the terms of specifications or fails to comply with the terms
of this contract. Breach of contract or default authorizes the County to award to
another vendor, purchase elsewhere, and charge the full increase in cost and
handling to the defaulting party.

3.45 Invalid, lllegal, or Unenforceable Provisions. In case any one or more of the
provisions contained in the Contract shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal,
or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not
effect any other provision thereof and this contract shall be considered as if such
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

3.4.6 Injuries or Damages Resulting from Negligence. Successful vendor shall defend,
indemnify and save harmless Jefferson County and all its officers, agents and
employees from all suits, actions, or other claims of any character, name and
description brought for or on account of any injuries or damages received or
sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent act or
fault of the successful vendor, or of any agent, employee, subcontractor or supplier in
the execution of, or performance under, any contract which may result from bid
award. Successful vendor shall pay any judgment with cost which may be obtained
against Jefferson County growing out of such injury or damages.

3.4.7 Interest by Public Officials. No public official shall have interest in this contract, in
accordance with Texas local government code.
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3.4.8

3.4.9

3.4.10

3.4.11

3.4.12

3.4.13

Warranty. The successful vendor shall warrant that all materials utilized in the
performance of this contract shall conform to the proposed specifications and/or all
warranties as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code and be free from all defects in
material, workmanship and title.

Uniform Commercial Code. The successful vendor and Jefferson County agree that
both parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform
Commercial Code.

Venue. This agreement will be governed and construed according to the laws of the
State of Texas. This agreement is performable in the County of Jefferson, Texas.

Sale, Assignment, or Transfer of Contract. The successful vendor shall not sell,
assign, transfer or convey this contract, in whole or in part, without the prior written
consent of Jefferson County.

Silence of Specifications. The apparent silence of these specifications as to any
detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the
best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications
shall be made on the basis of this statement.

The Contractor shall be required to execute an engagement letter upon selection of
the successful Offeror and final negotiation of contract terms.
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4. Special Requirements/Instructions

The following requirements and instructions supersede General Requirements where applicable.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Bid Requirement

Each Offeror should submit as a proposal this entire RFP, completed where necessary, for
example, the RFP cover sheet, the price sheets, etc. Use the envelope provided with the RFP, or
a comparable one, clearly indicating on the outside the Job Number, Job Description, and
marked “SEALED PROPOSAL". Jefferson County shall not be responsible for any effort or cost
expended in the preparation of a response to this RFP. All protests should be coordinated
through the Purchasing Office prior to award recommendation to Commissioners’ Court.

Delivery

If delivery is required, all items must be packaged so as to be protected from damage during
shipping and handling. Any item(s) damaged in shipping must be replaced in kind, or repaired,
by the contractor, at the discretion of, and at no additional charge to, Jefferson County.

Payment

43.1 Jefferson County will pay original invoices that clearly itemize the goods and/or
services provided as to quantity, part number, description, price, applicable discount
(if any), labor charges showing time differential, if applicable and if previously agreed
to, and delivery, installation, and set-up costs, if applicable and if previously agreed
to. Only charges as stated on the Price/Delivery Information Sheet(s) submitted as a
part of the bid will be considered.

4.3.2 Invoices must indicate Jefferson County as applicable, the address to which the
product(s) and/or service(s) were delivered, and the applicable purchase order
number. Invoices will be matched to delivery tickets prior to payment; therefore, all
delivery tickets should have an accurate description of the product(s) and/or
service(s).

Usage Reports

Jefferson County reserves the right to request, and receive at no additional cost, up to two (2)
times during the contract period, a usage report detailing the products and/or services furnished
to date under a contract resulting from this IFB. The reports must be furnished no later than five
(5) working days after written request and must itemize all purchases to date by Jefferson County
department, description of each item purchased, including manufacturer, quantity of each item
purchased, per unit and extended price of each item purchased, and total amount and price of all
items purchased.

Acknowledgment of Insurance Requirements

By signing its proposal, Offeror acknowledges that it has read and understands the insurance
requirements for this proposal. Offeror also understands that evidence of required insurance
must be submitted within fifteen (15) working days following notification of acceptance of its
offer; otherwise, Jefferson County may rescind its acceptance of the Offeror’s proposal. The
insurance requirements are part of this package.

Insurance Requirements

The contractor (including any and all subcontractors as defined in Section 4.7.1.3 below) shall,
at all times during the term of this contract, maintain insurance coverages with not less than the
type and requirements shown below. Such insurance is to be provided at the sole cost of the
contractor. These requirements do not establish limits of the contractor’s liability.
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All

policies of insurance shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers,

employees and agents.

Contractor shall furnish Jefferson County with Certificate of Insurance naming Jefferson County
as additional insured.

All insurance must be written by an insurer licensed to conduct business in the State of Texas.

Minimum Insurance Requirements

Public Liability $1,000,000.00
Excess Liability $1,000,000.00
Property Insurance Improvements & Betterments
Workers’ Compensation Statutory Coverage (see attached)

4.7 Worker’'s Compensation Insurance

4.7.1

4.7.2

4.7.3

4.7.4

4.7.5

Definitions:

4.7.1.1 Certificate of coverage (“Certificate”) — A copy of a certificate of insurance,
a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage
agreement, DWC-81, DWC-82, DWC-83, or DWC-84 showing statutory workers’
compensation insurance coverage for the person’'s or entity’'s employees providing
services on a project, for the duration of the project.

4.7.1.2 Duration of the project — Includes the time from the beginning of the work on the
project until the contractor's/person’s work on the project has been completed and
accepted by the governmental entity.

4.7.1.3 Persons providing services on the project (“subcontractor”) in article 406.096 —
Includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services under the
contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person
contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has
employees. This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractor,
leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or
employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project.
“Services” includes, without limitation, providing, hauling or delivering equipment or
materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project.
“Services” does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage
vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification code and payroll
amounts and filing any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas
Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the
project, for the duration of the project.

The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being
awarded the contract — refer to Section 1.30 above.

If the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the
duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new
certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.

The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the
governmental entity:

4.7.5.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the
governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all
persons providing services on the project; and
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4.7.6

4.7.7

4.7.8

479

4.7.10

4.7.11

4.7.5.2 No later than seven (7) days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of cov-
erage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current
certificate ends during the duration of the project.

The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for
one (1) year thereafter.

The Contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery,
within ten (10) days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially
affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.

The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by
the Texas Department of Workers’ Compensation, informing all persons providing services on the
project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and
report lack of coverage.

The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services
on a project to:

4.7.9.1 Provide coverage, based on reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and
filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas
Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all its employees providing services on the project,
for the duration of the project.

4.7.9.2 Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project a certificate
of coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person
providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.

4.7.9.3 Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of coverage period, a new certificate of cover age
showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of
coverage ends during the duration of the project.

4.7.9.4 Obtain from each person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor:

4.7.9.4.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on
the project; and

4.79.4.2 the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current
certificate of a new certificate of coverage showing extension of
coverage, prior to the end of coverage ends during the duration of the
project.

4.7.9.5 Retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for
one (1) year thereafter.

4.7.9.6 Notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten
(10) days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially
affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and

4.7.9.7 Contractually require each person with whom it contracts to perform as required by
paragraphs 4.7.9.1. — 4.7.9.7., with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person
for whom they are providing services.

By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the
Contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will
provide services of the project will be covered by workers’ compensation coverage for the duration
of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and
payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance
carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission’s Division of Self-Insurance Regulation.
Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative penalties,
criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions.

The Contractor’s failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the
Contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the Contractor does
not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental
entity.
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5.1.1. Jefferson County is requesting proposals from qualified firms of certified public
accountants to audit its financial statements for the fiscal year ending September 30,
2014, with the option of auditing its financial statements for each of the two (2)
subsequent years. These audits are to be performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General
Accounting Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing Standards, the provisions of the
federal Single Audit Act (1996), and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Not for Profit Organizations.

5.1.2 There is no expressed or implied obligation for Jefferson County to reimburse
responding firms for any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to this
request.

5.1.3 A pre-proposal conference for all interested firms will be held at 2:00 pm on
June 17, 2014 at 1149 Pearl Street, Fourth Floor, Commissioners’ Courtroom,
Beaumont, Texas to answer questions about the engagement.

514 Proposals submitted will be evaluated by an Audit Committee selected by
Commissioners’ Court.

5.15 During the evaluation process, the Audit Committee and Jefferson County reserve the
right, where it may serve Jefferson County’'s best interest, to request additional
information or clarification from Offerors, or to allow corrections of errors or omissions.
At the discretion of Jefferson County or the Audit Committee, firms submitting proposals
may be requested to make oral presentations as part of the evaluation process.

5.1.6 Jefferson County reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any
ideas in a proposal regardless of whether that proposal is selected. Submission of a
proposal indicates acceptance of the firm of the conditions contained in this RFP, unless
clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted and confirmed in the contract
between Jefferson County and the firm selected.

A three (3) year contract is contemplated, subject to the annual review and recommendations of
the Audit Committee, the satisfactory negotiation of terms (including a price acceptable to both
Jefferson County and the selected firm), the concurrence of Commissioners’ Court, and the
annual availability of an appropriation.

5. Introduction

5.1 General Information
5.2 Terms of Contract
5.3 Subcontracting

Firms submitting proposals are encouraged to consider subcontracting portions of the
engagement to small audit firms or audit firms owned and controlled by socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals. If this is to be done, that fact, and the name of the proposed
subcontracting firms, must be clearly identified in the proposal. Following the award of the audit
engagement, no additional subcontracting will be allowed without the express prior written
consent of Jefferson County.
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6. Nature of Services Required

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

General

Jefferson County is soliciting the services of qualified firms of certified public accountants to audit
its financial statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014, with the option of auditing
its financial statements for each of the two (2) subsequent years. These audits are to be
performed in accordance with the provisions contained in this RFP.

Scope of Work

6.2.1 Jefferson County desires the Contractor to express an opinion of the fair presentation
of its general purpose financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

6.2.2 Jefferson County also desires the Contractor to provide an “in-relation-to” opinion on the
combined and individual fund financial statements based on the auditing procedures
applied during the audit of the general purpose financial statements. The Contractor is
not required to audit the statistical section of the report.

6.2.3 The Contractor shall also be responsible for performing certain limited procedures
involving supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board as mandated by generally accepted auditing standards.

6.2.4 The Contractor is not required to audit the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
However, the Contractor is to provide an “in-relation-to” report on that schedule, based
on the auditing procedures applied during the audit of the financial statements.

Auditing Standards

To meet the requirements of this RFP, the audit shall be performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accounts,
the standards for financial audits set forth in the U.S. General Accounting Office’s Government
Auditing Standards, the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, and the provision of U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Not for Profit Organizations.

Reports

6.4.1 Following completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s financial statement, the Contractor
shall issue the following:

= A report on the fair presentation of the general purpose financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

= Areport on compliance and on internal controls over financial reporting based on an
audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

= A report on compliance requirements applicable to each major program and internal
controls over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Not for Profit Organizations.

= An “in-relation-to” report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

6.4.2 In the required report(s) on internal controls, the Contractor shall communicate any
reportable conditions found during the audit to the Jefferson County Audit Committee,
which shall convene at periodic intervals during the audit. A reportable condition shall
be defined as a significant deficiency in the design or operation of the internal control
structures that could adversely affect the organization’s ability to record, process,

“ “Contractor” refers to the Offeror whose proposal is selected for award.
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6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

6.4.7

summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in
the financial statements.

Reportable conditions that are also material weaknesses shall be identified as such in
the report.

Non-reportable conditions discovered by the Contractor shall be reported in a separate
letter to management, which shall be referred to in the report(s) on internal controls.

The reports on compliance shall include all instances of noncompliance.

The Contractor shall be required to make an immediate, written report of all
irregularities and illegal acts or indications of illegal acts of which they become aware to
the Audit Committee.

The Contractor shall assure itself that the Audit Committee is informed of each of the
following:

= The Contractor’s responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards,
= Significant accounting policies,

= Management judgments and accounting estimates,

= Significant audit adjustments,

= Other information in documents containing audited financial statements,

= Disagreements with management,

= Management consultation with other accountants,

= Major issues discussed with management prior to retention, and

= Difficulties encountered in performing the audit.

6.5 Special Considerations

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.54

Jefferson County will send its comprehensive annual financial report to the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada for review in the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program. It is
anticipated that the Contractor will be required to provide special assistance to Jefferson
County to meet the requirements of that program.

Jefferson County currently anticipates it will prepare one or more official statements in
connection with the sale of debt securities containing the general purpose financial
statements and the auditor's report thereon. The Contractor shall be required, if
requested by the fiscal advisor and/or the underwriter, to issue a “consent and citation
of expertise” as the auditor and any necessary “comfort letters.”

Jefferson County has determined that the United States Department of Homeland
Security/Federal Emergency Management Agency will function as the cognizant agency
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Not for Profit Organizations.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related auditor’s report, as well as
the reports on the internal controls and compliance are to be issued separately from the
comprehensive annual financial report.

6.6  Working Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers

6.6.1

All working papers and reports must be retained, at the Contractor's expense, for a
minimum of three (3) years, unless the firm is notified in writing by Jefferson County of
the need to extend the retention period. The Contractor will be required to make
working papers available upon request to the following parties or their designees:
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= Jefferson County,

= United States Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management
Agency,

= U.S. General Accounting Office (GAO),

= Parties designated by the federal or state government or Jefferson County as part of
an audit quality review process,

= Auditors of entities of which Jefferson County is a sub recipient of grant funds.

6.6.2 In addition, the Contractor shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor
auditors and allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to matters of
continuing accounting significance.
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7. Description of the Government

7.1 Contact

The Contractor’s principal contact with Jefferson County will be Patrick Swain, County Auditor
(409-835-8500) or a designated representative, who will coordinate the assistance to be provided
by Jefferson County to the Contractor.

An organizational chart is provided at Attachment 2.
7.2 Background Information

7.2.1 Jefferson County serves an area of 904 square miles, with a population of 251,813.
Jefferson County’s fiscal year begins on October 1 and ends on September 30.

7.2.2 Jefferson County provides services to the citizens, including, but not limited to, the
maintenance and construction of roads and bridges, judicial and law enforcement
services, and health and welfare services.

7.2.3 Jefferson County has a total payroll of approximately $62,180,294.00, covering 1,207
employees.

7.2.4 Jefferson County is organized into approximately 100 departments and agencies. The
accounting and financial reporting functions are centralized.

7.2.5 More detailed information can be found in the Annual Financial Statements and Annual
Budget, which are available for interested parties at the County Auditor’'s Office, 1149
Pearl Street — Seventh Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701, Telephone 409-835-8500, or at
the Jefferson County website (www.co.jefferson.tx.us, select the link for the Auditor’s
Office).

7.3 Fund Structure

Jefferson County uses the following fund types and accounting groups in its financial reporting:

Number of

Individual
Fund Type/Account Group Funds
General Fund 1
Special revenue funds 72
Debt service funds 3
Capital projects funds 8
Enterprise funds 2
Internal service funds 3
Expendable trust funds -
Nonexpendable trust funds -
Pension trust funds -
Agency funds 11

7.4 Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Jefferson County prepares its budgets on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles.

7.5 Federal and State Financial Assistance

During the prior fiscal year, Jefferson County’'s total expenditures of federal awards was
$15,362, 206.00
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7.6 Pension Plans

Jefferson County participates in the following pensions plans:

= Texas County and District Retirement System

= Employee IRC Section 457 Plan/Deferred Compensation Fund

7.7 Component Units

7.7.1 As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the
reporting entity includes those of Jefferson County (the primary government).

7.7.2 The following are excluded from the reporting entity:

Jefferson County Navigation District, Drainage District #3, Drainage District #6, and
Drainage District #7. These potential component units have separate governing
boards and provide services to the residents of Jefferson County. They have been
excluded from the reporting entity because Jefferson County does not have the
ability to exercise influence over their daily operations, approve budgets, or provide
funding. In addition, the Drainage Districts were created under the provisions of
Chapter 7 of Title 128, Article 16, Section 59a, of the State Constitution, Vernon'’s
Annotated Statutes, thus establishing them as political subdivisions of the state.

The Foreign Trade Zone, which was established by the voters of Jefferson County.
The board is jointly appointed by the boards of the three area ports and
Commissioners’ Court. The County does not have the ability to influence the daily
operations, select management, or hold title to any or the Foreign Trade Zone'’s
assets. Funding is provided equally by the three area ports and the County.

Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson County
Housing Finance Corporation, and Jefferson County Industrial Development
Corporation. These nonprofit independent corporations have a board appointed by
the County Commissioners. The County does not have the ability to significantly
influence the operation of, provide funding to, or have any obligation to pay off the
bonds issued by these corporations.

Pleasure Island Park Board

Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

7.8 Magnitude of Financial Operations

The County Auditor's Department is headed by Patrick Swain, County Auditor, and consists of 15

employees.

7.9 Computer Systems
7.9.1 Hardware

Type of Equipment Number
IBM AS400
7.9.2 Software
Make Vendor Major Applications
Sunguard Government Management & Budgetary Accounting —
Public Sector General Ledger, Accounts Payable, Budgeting, Project/
Grant Accounting, Investment Tracking, Payroll, Cash
Receipts
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7.10 Internal Audit Function

Jefferson County maintains an internal audit function, which reports to Patrick Swain, County
Auditor.

7.11 Availability of Prior Audit Reports and Working Papers

Interested Offerors who wish to review prior years’ audit reports and management letters should
contact Patrick Swain, County Auditor, at 1149 Pearl Street — Seventh Floor, Beaumont, Texas
77701, Telephone 409-835-8500 or at the Jefferson County website (www.co.jefferson.tx.us,
select the link for the Auditor's Office). Jefferson County will use its best efforts to make prior

audit reports and supporting working papers available to Offerors to aid their response to this
RFP.
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8. Important Dates

8.1 RFP and Proposal Dates

Request for proposal issued June 9, 2014
Pre-proposal conference June 17, 2014, 2:00 pm
Due date/time for proposals July 15, 2014, 11:00 am

8.2 Estimated Notification and Contract Dates
Selected firm notified July 21, 2014
Contract date July 28, 2014

8.3 Date Audit May Commence

Jefferson County will have all records ready for final audit fieldwork and all management
personnel available to meet with the Contractor’'s personnel as of January 15, 2015. Interim work
may be performed during August and September of each audit year.

8.4 Schedule for the 2014 Fiscal Year Audit*

Jefferson County will have all records ready for final audit fieldwork and all management
personnel available to meet with the Contractor’s personnel as of January 15, 2015. Interim work
may be performed during August and September of each audit year.

Each of the following should be completed by the Contractor no later than the dates indicated:
= The auditor shall complete all field work by February 28, 2015.

= The auditor shall have drafts of the audit report(s) and recommendations to
management (including the final review of the financial statements) available for
review by the Audit Committee and the County Auditor by March 20, 2015.

* A similar time schedule will be developed for audits of future fiscal years if Jefferson County exercises its option for
additional audits.
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9. Reports

9.1 Entrance Conferences, Progress Reporting, and Exit Conferences’

At a minimum, the following conferences should be held by the dates indicated:

Conference

Purpose

Week of

Entrance conference with
Patrick Swain, County
Auditor

To establish overall liaison for the
audit and to make arrangements for
work space and other needs of the
auditor related to the beginning of
field work

Aug 3, 2014

Exit conference with
Patrick Swain, County
Auditor, and Audit
Committee

To summarize the results of field
work and to review significant
findings

March 16, 2015

Progress Report

As needed

As requested

9.2 Final Report

9.2.1 The County Auditor shall prepare draft financial statements, notes, and all required

supplementary schedules by February 28, 2015.

Court.

9.2.3 The final audit report shall be delivered to Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court,

The auditor shall provide all
recommendations, revisions, and suggestions for improvement to the County Auditor by
March 20, 2015.

9.2.2 The County Auditor and the Audit Committee will complete their review of the draft
report as expeditiously as possible. It is not expected that their process shall exceed
one week. During that period, the Contractor shall be available for any meetings that
may be necessary to discuss the audit reports.
resolved, the final signed report shall be delivered to Jefferson County Commissioners’

Once all issues for discussion are

1149 Pearl Street — Fourth Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701 by March 30, 2015.
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10. Assistance to be Provided and Report Presentation

10.1 County Auditor’s Office and Clerical Assistance

The County Auditor’'s staff and responsible management personnel will be available during the
audit to assist the Contractor by providing information, documentation, and explanations. The
preparation of confirmations will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

10.2 Statements and Schedules to be Prepared by Jefferson County

The staff of Jefferson County will assist with the preparation of various schedules. A list shall be
developed and presented to the County Auditor prior to the beginning of field work.

10.3 Work Area, Telephones, Photocopying, and Fax Machines

Jefferson County will provide the Contractor with reasonable work space, desks, and chairs. The
Contractor will also be provided with access to a telephone line, photocopying facilities, fax
machines, and inquiry-only on the AS400.

10.4 Report Preparation
Report preparation, editing, and printing shall be the responsibility of Jefferson County.
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11. Proposal Requirements

111

General Requirements

1111

11.1.2

11.1.3

Pre-proposal Conference and On-site Inspections

A conference for firms interested in submitting proposals will be held at 2:00 pm,
June 17, 2014, in the Commissioners’ Courtroom, 1149 Pearl Street — Fourth Floor,
Beaumont, Texas 77701. Both verbal and written questions will be accepted during
this conference.

During the week of June 16, 2014, representatives of the various departments within
Jefferson County will be available to discuss their operations and conduct on-site
inspections for interested Offerors.

Inquiries

Inquiries concerning the RFP must be made to the Jamey West, Contract Specialist,
with the Jefferson County Purchasing Department via email: jwest@co.jefferson.tx.us
or telephone: 409-835-8593.

Submission of Proposals

The following material must be received by July 15, 2014 (bid due date) in order for an
Offeror to be considered:

11.1.3.1 An original of the Technical Proposal and five (5) copies, including the
following:

= Title page: showing the RFP Number and Title, the Offeror's name
(including name, address and telephone number of point of contact), and
the date of the proposal.

= Table of Contents.

= A signed transmittal letter briefing stating the Offeror's under-standing of
the work to be done, the commitment to perform the work within the time
period given, a statement of why the firm believes itself to be best qualified
to perform the work, and a statement that the proposal is a firm and
irrevocable offer for thirty (30) days.

» A detailed proposal following the order set for in Section 11.2 of this RFP.

= Executed copies of the Proposer Warranties, attached to this report at
Exhibit B.

11.1.3.2 The Offeror shall submit and original and five (5) copies of a dollar cost bid in
a separate, sealed envelope marked as follows:

Sealed Dollar Cost Request for Proposal
(RFP 14-019/JW), Auditing Services for Jefferson County
July 15, 2014
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11.2 Technical Proposal

1121

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

General Requirements

The purpose of the Technical Proposal is to demonstrate the qualifications,
competence, and capacity of Offerors seeking to undertake an independent audit of
Jefferson County in conformity with the requirements of this RFP. As such, the
substance of proposals will carry more weight than their form or manner of presentation.
The Technical Proposal shall demonstrate the qualifications of the Offeror and of the
particular staff to be assigned to this contract. It shall also specify an audit approach
that meets the RFP requirements.

There shall be no dollar units or total costs included in the technical proposal
document.

The Technical Proposal shall address all the points outlined in the RFP (excluding any
cost information, which shall only be included in the sealed dollar cost bid). The
proposal shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward,
concise description of the Offeror's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFP.
While additional data may be presented, the following subjects, items 11.2.2 through
11.2.9, must be included. They represent the criteria against which the proposal will be
evaluated.

Independence

The Offeror shall provide an affirmative statement that it is independent of Jefferson
County as defined by generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards.

The Offeror shall also provide an affirmative statement that it is independent of all
component units of Jefferson County as defined by those same standards/

The Offeror shall also list and describe the firm's (or proposed subcontractors’)
professional relationships involving Jefferson County for the past five (5) years, together
with a statement explaining why such relationships do not constitute a conflict of interest
relative to performing the proposed audit.

License to Practice in Texas

An affirmative statement shall be included that the Offeror and all assigned key
professional staff are properly licensed to practice in Texas.

Firm Quialifications and Experience

The Offeror shall state the size of the firm, the size of the firm’s governmental audit staff,
the location of the office from which the work on the contract is to be performed, the
number and nature of the professional staff to be employed on this contract on a full-
time basis, and the number and nature of the staff to be so employed on a part-time
basis.

If the Offeror is a joint venture or consortium, the qualifications of each firm comprising
the joint venture or consortium shall be separately identified. The firm that is to serve as
the principal auditor shall be noted, if applicable.

The Offeror is also required to submit a copy of the report on its most recent external
quality control review, with a statement whether that quality control review included a
review of specific government engagements.

The Offeror shall also provide information on the results of any federal or state desk
reviews or field reviews of its audits during the past three (3) years. In addition, the
Offeror shall provide information on the circumstances and status of any disciplinary
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11.2.5

11.2.6

11.2.7

11.2.8

action taken or pending against the Offeror during the past three (3) years with state
regulatory bodies or professional organizations.

Partner, Supervisory, and Staff Qualifications and Experience

Identify the principal supervisory and management staff, including contract partners,
managers, other supervisors, and specialists who would be assigned to the contract.
Indicate whether each such person is registered or licensed to practice as a certified
public accountant in Texas. Provide information on the government auditing experience
of each person, including information on relevant continuing professional education for
the past three (3) years and membership in professional organizations relevant to the
performance of this audit.

Provide as much information as possible regarding the number, qualifications,
experience and training, including relevant continuing professional education, of the
specific staff to be assigned to this contract. Indicate how the quality of staff over the
term of the contract will be assured.

Contract partners, managers, other supervisory staff, and specialists may be changed if
those personnel leave the firm, are promoted, or are assigned to another office. These
personnel may also be changed for other reasons with the express prior written
permission of Jefferson County. However, in either case, Jefferson County retains the
right to approve or reject replacements.

Consultants and specialists mentioned in response to this RFP can only be changed
with the express prior written permission of Jefferson County, which retains the right to
approve or reject replacements.

Other audit personnel may be changed at the discretion of the Offeror, provided the
replacements have substantially the same or better qualifications or experience.

Prior Contracts with Jefferson County

List separately all contracts within the last five (5) years, ranked on the basis of total
staff hours, for Jefferson County by type of engagement (i.e., audit, management
advisory services, other). Indicate the scope of work, date, contract partners, total
hours, the location of the firm’s office from which the contract was performed, and the
name and telephone number of the principal client contact.

Similar Contracts with Other Government Entities

For the Offeror's office that will be assigned responsibility for the audit, list the most
significant contracts (maximum — five (5)) performed in the last five (5) years that are
similar to the contract described in this RFP. These contracts shall be ranked on the
basis of total staff hours. Indicate the scope of work, date, contract partners, total hours,
and the name and telephone number of the principal client contact.

Specific Audit Approach
Offerors will be required to provide the following information on their audit approach:

» Level of staff and number of hours to be assigned to each proposed segment of
the contract.

No dollar amounts shall be included in the technical proposal.

= Sample size and the extent to which statistical sampling is to be used in the
contract.

= Extent of use of EDP software in the contract.
= Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the contract.

= Approach to be taken to gain and document an understanding of Jefferson
County’s internal control structure.
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11.2.9

= Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject to
audit test work.

= Approach to be taken in drawing audit samples for purposes of tests of
compliance.

Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems

The proposal shall identify and describe any anticipated potential audit problems, the
Offeror's approach to resolving these problems, and any special assistance that will be
requested from Jefferson County.

No dollar amounts shall be included in the technical proposal.

11.3 Sealed Dollar Cost Bid

11.3.1

11.3.2

11.3.3

11.3.4

Total, All-Inclusive, Maximum Price

11.3.1.1 The sealed dollar cost bid shall contain all pricing information relative to
performing the audit engagement as described in this RFP. The total,
all-inclusive, maximum price to be bid is to contain all direct and indirect costs,
including all out-of-pocket expenses.

11.3.1.2 Jefferson County will not be responsible for expenses incurred in preparing
and submitting the technical proposal or the seal dollar cost bid. Such costs
shall not be included in the proposal.

11.3.1.3 The first page of the sealed dollar cost bid shall include the following
information:

= Name of firm.

= Certification that the person signing the proposal is entitled to represent
the firm, empowered to submit the bid, and authorized to sign a contract
with Jefferson County.

= Atotal, all-inclusive, maximum price for the 2014 engagement.

Rates by Partner, Specialist, Supervisory, and Staff Level Times Hours Anticipated for
Each

The second page of the sealed dollar cost bid shall include a schedule of professional
fees and expenses, presented in the format provided in Exhibit D, which supports the
total, all-inclusive, maximum price.

Out-of-Pocket Expenses Included in the Total, All-Inclusive, Maximum Price and
Reimbursement Rates

11.3.3.1 Out-of-pocket expenses for firm personnel (e.g., travel, lodging, and
subsistence) will be reimbursed at the rates used by Jefferson County for its
employees. All estimated out-of-pocket expenses to be reimbursed shall be
presented on the second page of the sealed dollar cost bid in the format
provided in Exhibit D. All expense reimbursements will be charged against the
total, all-inclusive, maximum price submitted by the Offeror.

11.3.3.2 In addition, a statement must be included in the sealed dollar cost bid stating
the firm will accept reimbursement for travel, lodging, and subsistence at the
prevailing Jefferson County rates for its employees.

Rates for Additional Professional Services

If it shall become necessary for Jefferson County to request the auditor to render any
additional services to either supplement the services requested in this RFP or to
perform additional work as a result of the specific recommendations included in any
report issued on this engagement, then such additional work shall be performed only if
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set forth in an addendum to the contract between Jefferson County and the Contractor.
Any such additional work agreed to between Jefferson County and the Contractor shall
be performed at the same rates set forth in the schedule of fees and expenses included
in the sealed dollar cost bid.

11.3.5 Manner of Payment

Progress payments shall be made on the basis of hours of work completed during the
course of the engagement and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in accordance with the
Contractor’s dollar cost bid proposal. Interim billing shall cover a period of not less than
one (1) calendar month.
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12. Evaluation Procedures

12.1 Audit Committee
Proposals submitted will be evaluated by an Audit Committee selected by Commissioners’ Court.
12.2 Review of Proposals

12.2.1 The Audit Committee will use a point formula during the review process to score
proposals. The full Audit Committee will score each technical proposal by each of the
criteria described in Sections 12.3.2 through 12.3.4 below. Offerors with an
unacceptably low score will be eliminated from further consideration.

12.2.2  After the technical score for each Offeror has been established, the sealed dollar cost
bid will be opened and additional points will be added to the technical score based on
the price bid. The maximum score for price will be assigned to the Offeror offering the
lowest total, all-inclusive, maximum price. Appropriate fractional scores will be assigned
to other Offerors.

12.2.3  Jefferson County reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and use any idea in
a proposal regardless of whether that proposal is selected.

12.3 Evaluation Criteria

12.3.1 Proposals will be evaluated using three sets of criteria. Firms meeting the mandatory
criteria will have their proposals evaluated and scored for both technical qualifications
and price. Section 11.3.2 through 11.3.4 represent the principal selection criteria to be
considered during the evaluation process.

12.3.2 Mandatory Elements (Maximum Points: 10)

= The Offeror is independent and licensed to practice in Texas.

= The Offeror has no conflict of interest with regard to any other work performed by
the Offeror for Jefferson County.

= The Offeror adhered to the instructions in this RFP on preparing and submitting the
proposal.

= The Offeror submitted a copy of its last external quality control review report, which
shows that the firm has a record of quality audit work.

12.3.3 Technical Qualifications (Maximum Points: 70)

= Expertise and Experience

. The Offeror’s past experience and performance on comparable government
contracts.

. The quality of the Offeror’s professional personnel to be assigned to the
contract and the quality of the Offeror's management support personnel to be
available for technical consultation.

»=  Audit Approach
. Adequacy of proposed staffing plan for various segments of the engagement.
« Adequacy of sampling techniques.
« Adequacy of analytical procedures.
12.3.3  Price (Maximum Points: 20)
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Cost will not be the primary factor in the selection of an audit firm.
12.4 Oral Presentation

During the evaluation process, the Audit Committee may, at its discretion, request any one or all
Offerors to make oral presentations. Such presentations will provide Offerors with an opportunity
to answer any questions the Audit Committee may have on a Offeror’s proposal. Not all Offerors
may be asked to make such oral presentations.

12.5 Final Selection

11.4.1 Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court will select a Contractor based upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

11.4.2 It is anticipated that a Contractor will be selected by July 21, 2014. Following
notification of the firm selected, it is expected that a contract will be executed between
both parties by July 28, 2014.

12.5 Right to Reject Proposals

11.5.1 Submission of a proposal indicates acceptance by the Offeror of the conditions
contained in this RFP unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted
and confirmed in the contract between Jefferson County and the Contractor selected.

11.5.2 Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court reserves the right without prejudice to reject
any or all proposals.
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Non-Disclosure Agreement

In consideration of Jefferson County retaining the services of a consultant and because of the
sensitivity of certain information which may come under the care and control of Consultant, both
parties agree that all information regarding the County or any selected County agency subject to this
Contract; or gathered, produced, or derived from this project (Confidential Information) must remain
confidential subject to release only by permission of the County, and more specifically agree as
follows:

Media releases pertaining to this RFP and/or any resulting contract, or the services to which they
relate, will not be made without the prior written consent of the County, and then only in accordance
with explicit written instructions from the County. The disclosure of the contents of proposals prior to
the award of a contract under this RFP, or any other violation of this section, may result in
disqualification.

1. The Information may be used by Consultant only to assist Consultant in connection with its
engagement with the County.

2. Consultant will not, at any time, use the Information in any fashion, form, or manner except in its
capacity as independent consultant to the County.

3. Consultant agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any and all deliverables resulting from this
Contract in the same manner that it protects the confidentiality of its own proprietary products of
like kind.

The Information may not be copied or reproduced without the County’s written consent.

All materials made available to Consultant, including copies thereof, must be returned to County
upon the first to occur of; (a) completion of the project, or (b) request by the County.

6. The foregoing must not prohibit or limit Consultant use of the information (including, but not
limited to, ideas, concepts, know-how, techniques and methodologies) (a) previously known to it,
(b) independently developed by it, (c) acquired by it from a third party, or (d) which is or
becomes part of the public domain through no breach to Consultant of this agreement.

7. This agreement shall become effective as of the date Information is first made available to
Consultant and must survive the contract and be a continuing requirement.

8. The breach of this Nondisclosure Agreement by Consultant shall entitle the County to
immediately terminate the Agreement upon written notice to Contractor for such breach. The
parties acknowledge that the measure of damages in the event of a breach of this Nondisclosure
Agreement may be difficult or impossible to calculate, depending on the nature of the breach.
Regardless of whether the County elects to terminate the Agreement upon the breach hereof,
the County may require Consultant to pay to the County the sum of $1,000 for each breach as
liguidated damages. This amount is not intended to be in the nature of a penalty, but is intended
to be a reasonable estimate of the amount of damages to the County in the event of a breach
hereof by Consultant. Comptroller does not waive any right to seek additional relief, either
equitable or otherwise, concerning any breach of this Agreement.

[Printed Name of Consultant]

By:

Title:

Date:
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Vendor References

Please list at least three (3) companies or governmental agencies where the same or similar products and/or
services as contained in this specification package were recently provided.

THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR BID.

REFERENCE ONE

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:
Contract Period: Scope of Work:
REFERENCE TWO

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:
Contract Period: Scope of Work:
REFERENCE THREE

Government/Company Name:

Address:

Contact Person and Title:

Phone: Fax:

Contract Period: Scope of Work:

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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Signature Page

As permitted under Article 4413 (32c) V.A.C.S., other governmental entities may wish to participate
under the same terms and conditions contained in this contract (i.e., piggyback). In the event any
other entity participates, all purchase orders will be issued directly from and shipped directly to the
entity requiring supplies/services. Jefferson County shall not be held responsible for any orders
placed, deliveries made or payment for supplies/services ordered by another entity. Each entity
reserves the right to determine their participation in this contract.

Would bidder be willing to allow other governmental entities to piggyback off this contract, if awarded,
under the same terms and CONTItIONS?........eevveeeeeeee e e Yes[ ] Nol[]

This bid shall remain in effect for ninety (90) days from bid opening and shall be exclusive of federal
excise and state and local sales tax (exempt).

The undersigned agrees, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all items upon which prices are
offered, at the price and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Invitation for Bid, Conditions
of Bidding, Terms of Contract, and Specifications and all other items made a part of the accepted
contract.

The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute the contract, that this company,
corporation, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder,
and that the contents of this bid as to prices, terms or conditions of said bid have not been
communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other bidder or to any other
person(s) engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid. And further, that
neither the bidder nor their employees nor agents have been for the past six (6) months directly nor
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination to control the price of goods or services
on, nor to influence any person to bid or not to bid thereon.

Bidder (Entity Name) Signature
Street & Mailing Address Print Name
City, State & Zip Date Signed
Telephone Number Fax Number

E-mail Address

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local OFFICE USE ONLY
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7 business day after the date the
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See
Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, Local
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C
misdemeanor.

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. [] Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not
later than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government
Code, is pending and not later than the 7" business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire
becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

4. Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this
guestionnaire.

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ
Page 2
For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity

5. Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. (Complete this section
only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the
filer has affiliation or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. s the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the
filer of the questionnaire?

[]Yes [ ] No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction
of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

[]Yes 1 No

C. Isthe filer of the questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

[]Yes [ ] No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship:

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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Good Faith Effort (GFE)

Instructions:

DETERMINATION CHECKLIST

This information must be submitted with your bid.

In order to determine if a “Good Faith Effort” was made in soliciting HUBs for

subcontracting opportunities, the following checklist and supporting documentation shall be completed
by the Prime Contractor/Consultant, and returned with the Prime Contractor/ Consultant’s bid. This
list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by the Prime Contractor/Consultant when
attempting to achieve or exceed the goals of HUB Subcontractor participation. The Prime
Contractor/Consultant may extend his/her efforts in soliciting HUB Subcontractor participation beyond
what is listed below.

[ ]Yes

[ ]Yes

[ ]Yes

[ ]Yes

[ ]Yes

[ ]Yes

[ ] No

[ ] No

[ ] No

[ ] No

[ ] No

[ ] No

Did the Prime Contractor/Consultant . . .

1.

To the extent practical, and consistent with standard and prudent industry
standards, divide the contract work into the smallest feasible portions, to allow
for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation?

Notify in writing a reasonable number of HUBs, allowing sufficient time for
effective participation of the planned work to be subcontracted?

Provide HUBs that were genuinely interested in bidding on a subcontractor,
adequate information regarding the project (i.e., plans, specifications, scope
of work, bonding and insurance requirements, and a point of contract within
the Prime Contractor/Consultant’s organization)?

Negotiate in good faith with interested HUBs, and not reject bids from HUBs
that qualify as lowest and responsive bidders?

Document reasons HUBs were rejected? Was a written rejection notice,
including the reason for rejection, provided to the rejected HUBs?

If Prime Contractor/Consultant has zero (0) HUB participation, please explain
the reasons why.

If “No” was selected, please explain and include any pertinent documentation with your bid.
If necessary, please use a separate sheet to answer the above questions.

Printed Name of Authorized Signature
Representative
Title Date

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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Notice of Intent (NOI) to Subcontract with
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)

This information must be submitted with your bid.

Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded).
[JYes [1No

Instructions for Prime Contractor/Consultant: Bidder shall submit this form with the bid; however, the
information below may be submitted after contract award, but prior to beginning performance on the
contract. Please submit one form for each HUB Subcontractor/ Subconsultant with proper signatures, per
the terms and conditions of your contract.

Contractor Name: HUB: p Yes p No
Address:

Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):

Project Title & No.:

Prime Contract Amount: $

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: O Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm. [ Jefferson County [ Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Printed Name of Contractor Representative Signature of Representative Date

Printed Name of HUB Signature of Representative Date

NOTE: NOTHING ON THIS NOTICE OF INTENT FORM IS INTENDED TO CONFER ANY RIGHTS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO ANY THIRD PARTIES.

Pre-Approval for Subcontractor Substitutions must be obtained from the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent’s
Representative. The “HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form” must be completed and faxed to 409-
835-8456.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 1 OoF 4
This information must be submitted with your bid.

Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded).
[JYes [1No

Prime Contractor: HUB: []Yes [ No

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Address:
Street City State Zip
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Project Title & No.: IFB/RFP No.:
Total Contract: $ Total HUB Subcontract(s): $
Construction HUB Goals: 12.8% MBE:: %  12.6% WBE: %

Sub-goals: 1.7 African-American, 9.7% Hispanic, 0.7% Native American, 0.8% Asian American.
Use these goals as a guide to diversify.

FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY:

Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verified HUB Sub information  Date: Initials:

PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency: [] Texas Bldg & Procurement Comm. [ ] Texas Unified Certification Prog.

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 2 OF 4

HUB SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

PART I: Continuation Sheet

HUB Subcontractor Name:

(Duplicate as Needed)

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency:

Address:

[] Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.

[] Jefferson County  [] Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Street

Contact person:

City State Zip

Title:

Phone (with area code):

Fax (with area code):

Proposed Subcontract Amount: $

Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

HUB Subcontractor Name:

HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):

Certifying Agency:

Address:

[ Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.

[ Jefferson County  [] Tx Unified Certification Prog.

Street

Contact person:

City State Zip

Title:

Phone (with area code):

Fax (with area code):

Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

All HUB Subcontractor Participation may be verified with the
HUB Subcontractor(s) listed on Part I.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE 30F 4
PART Il: STATEMENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE FOR NOT MEETING HUB SUBCONTRACTING GOALS

Please complete Good Faith Effort (GFE) Checklist and attach any supporting documentation.
Our firm was unable to meet the HUB goals for this project for the following reasons:

[ ] All subcontractors to be utilized are “Non-HUBs.” (Complete Part I11)
[ ] HUBs were solicited but did not respond.

[ ] HUBs solicited were not competitive.

] HUBs were unavailable for the following trade(s):

[] Other:

Was the Jefferson County HUB Office contacted for assistance in locating HUBs? []Yes [ ] No

PART I1l: DISCLOSURE OF OTHER “NON-HUB” SUBCONTRACTS

The bidder shall use this area to provide a listing of all “Non-HUB” Subcontractors, including suppliers, that will
perform under this project. A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors the bidder selects, after bid submission,
shall be provided to the Purchasing Office not later than five (5) calendar days after being notified that bidder is
the apparent low bidder. A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors that are selected after contract award must
be provided immediately after their selection.

Subcontractor Name:

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Subcontractor Name:

Address:
Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form

PAGE4 OF 4

Subcontractor Name:
Address:

Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:
Subcontractor Name:
Address:

Street City State Zip
Contact person: Title:
Phone (with area code): Fax (with area code):
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: %

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

| hereby certify that | have read the HUB Program Instructions and Information, truthfully completed all applicable parts of
this form, and attached any necessary support documentation as required. | fully understand that intentionally falsifying
information on this document may result in my not receiving a contract award or termination of any resulting contract.

Name (print or type):

Title:

Signature:

Date:

E-mail address:

Contact person that will be in charge of invoicing for this project:

Name (print or type):

Title:

Date:

E-mail address:

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Residence Certification/Tax Form

Pursuant to Texas Government Code §2252.001 et seq., as amended, Jefferson County requests Resident Certification. §2252.001 et seq.
of the Government Code provides some restrictions on the awarding of governmental contracts; pertinent provisions of §2252.001 are stated

below:
?3) “Nonresident bidder” refers to a person who is not a resident.
(4) “Resident bidder” refers to a person whose principal place of business is in this state, including a contractor whose ultimate

parent company or majority owner has its principal place of business in this state.

0 | certify that [company name] is a Resident Bidder of Texas as defined in Government Code
§2252.001.

O | certify that [company name] is a Nonresident Bidder as defined in Government Code §2252.001 and
our principal place of business is (city and state).

Taxpayer Identification Number (T.I.N.):

Company Name submitting bid/proposal:

Mailing address:

If you are an individual, list the names and addresses of any partnership of which you are a general
partner:

Property: List all taxable property owned by you or above partnerships in Jefferson County.

Jefferson County Tax Acct. No.* Property address or location**

*  This is the property amount identification number assigned by the Jefferson County Appraisal District.

**  For real property, specify the property address or legal description. For business property, specify the address where
the property is located. For example, office equipment will normally be at your office, but inventory may be stored as a

warehouse or other location.

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.
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Bid Affidavit

The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this bid have been carefully reviewed and
are submitted as correct and final. Bidder further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all
commodities upon which prices are extended at the price offered, and upon the conditions contained
in the specifications and the Notice to Bidders.

STATE OF COUNTY OF

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of ,

on this day personally appeared , who
(name)

after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say:

“I, am a duly authorized officer of/agent
(name)
for and have been duly authorized to execute the
(name of firm)
foregoing on behalf of the said

(name of firm)

| hereby certify that the foregoing bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other bidder or other
person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this bid.
Further, | certify that the bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities bid on, or to influence any person or persons to bid or not to bid thereon.”

Name and address of bidder:

Fax: Telephone#

by: Title:
(print name)

Signature:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named
on

this the day of , 2014.

Notary Public in and for
the State of

Bidder Must Return This Page With Offer
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EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

(Provide Scope of Services)

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County
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EXHIBIT B

PROPOSER WARRANTIES

1. Proposer warrants that it is willing and able to comply with State of Texas laws.

2. Proposer warrants that it is willing and able to obtain an errors and omissions insurance policy
providing a prudent amount of coverage for the willful or negligent acts, or omissions of any
officers, employees, or agents thereof.

3. Proposer warrants that it will not delegate or subcontract its responsibilities under an
agreement without the prior written permission of Jefferson County.

4. Proposer warrants that all information provided by it in connection with this proposal is true
and correct.

Signature of Official:

Name (typed):

Title:

Firm:

Date:
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EXHIBIT C

FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT, AND OTHER
MATERIALS, AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY

(Specify all equipment and facilities to be provided or made available by County,
and other County obligations.)

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County
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EXHIBIT D

FORMAT FOR SCHEDULE FOR PROFESSIONAL FEES AND EXPENSES

TO SUPPORT THE TOTAL, ALL-INCLUSIVE, MAXIMUM PRICE

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses

for the Audit of the FY 2014 Financial Statements

Hours

Standard
Hourly Rate

Quoted
Hourly Rate

Total

Partners

Managers

Supervisory Staff

Staff

| B | B | B | B

Other (specify)

h | B | B | B | B

| B | B | B | B

Subtotal

pages)

Total for services described in Section 6 of the RFP (detail on subsequent

B | B | BB BB B

Out-of-pocket expenses

Meals and lodging

Transportation

Other (specify)

B | B | B | B

Total, all-inclusive, maximum price for FY 2014 Audit

RFP 14-019/JW, Auditing Services for Jefferson County
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ATTACHMENT 1: Single Audit Report (Fiscal Year 2013)
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

For Fiscal Year
September 30, 2013
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ® BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners Court
Jefferson County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Jefferson County, Texas (“the County”), as of and for the year ended September 30,
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

1
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

POUH"\Q/QO,%MWY\ <« UL, L.Lf

Waco, Texas
March 31, 2014
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ® BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Jefferson County, Texas’ (“the County”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2013. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s
compliance.

3
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2014, which contained unmodified opinions
on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,

4
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including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

?&%LMO,%MWY\ « HUL, Lot

Waco, Texas
March 31, 2014
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's
Program Title Number ID Number

Federal
Expenditures

U. S. Department of Agriculture

Passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture
Summer Food Service Program 10.559 123-1007
Total Passed through the Texas Department of
Agriculture

Total U. S. Department of Agriculture

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Passed through the Texas General Land Office
Community Development Block Grants/States Program - lke 14.228 DRS-010219
Cheek Step Sewer Improvement 14.228 GLO-711281
Total Passed through the Texas General Land Office

Total U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development

U. S. Department of the Interior

Passed through Bureau of Ocean Energy Management,
Regulation and Enforcement
Coastal Impact Assistance Program - Admin 15.426 M11AF00076
Total Passed through Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management, Regulation and Enforcement

Passed through U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
Coastal Impact Assistance 15.668 F12AF70144
Coastal Impact Assistance 15.668 F12AF01207
Total Passed through U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Total U. S. Department of the Interior

U. S. Department of Justice

Passed through the City of Beaumont

Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 2010DJBX0139
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 2011DJBX3245
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 2012DJBX0253

Total Passed through the City of Beaumont

2,640

2,640

2,640

2,720,277
35,500

2,755,777

2,755,777

1,920

1,920

1,081,296
88,302

1,169,598

1,171,518

1,092
20,090
15,388

36,570



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

110

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Federal
Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Justice
Passed through the Office of Attorney General
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2011-GPBX-0051 19,045
Total Passed through the Office of Attorney General 19,045
Passed through the Office of the Governor,
Criminal Justice Division
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 13466-15 71,711
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 13466-16 8,625
Total Program 16.588 80,336
Crime Victim Assistance - Crime Victim's Clearinghouse 16.575 21032-04 45,838
Crime Victim Assistance - Crime Victim's Clearinghouse 16.575 21032-05 4,162
Total Program 16.575 50,000
Juvenile Accountability Block Grants 16.523 17327-08 19,201
Juvenile Accountability Block Grants 16.523 17327-09 1,051
Total Program 16.523 20,252
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement
Grant Program 16.742 18129-03 24,351
Total Passed through the Office of the Governor,
Criminal Justice Division 174,939
Direct Program
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 2010APBX0304 6,057
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 2011APBX0305 15,751
Total Program 16.606 21,808
Total U. S. Department of Justice 252,362



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Federal
Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Federal Aviation Administration
Rehabilitation of the North General Aviation Apron, Wildlife
Hazard Assessment, Airfield Approach/Geometry Study,
Acquisition of Airfield Sweeper, and Environmental
Assessment for West Ditch 20.106 3-48-0018-027-2010 2,865
Design Only of Runway Safety Area Improvements, New
Electrical Vault, Taxiway D Replacement, Airport Operating
Avrea Security Improvements, and Update Airport Layout 20.106 3-48-0018-029-2012 993,308
Total Passed through Federal Aviation Administration 996,173
Passed through Texas Department of Transportation
Click it or Ticket 20.601 2013-JeffersonCoSO-S-CIOT-26 5,464
Violent Offender Task Force 20.601 2013-JLEOTFS4-25302-TFO 11,954
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program - Impaired Driver
Mobilization 20.601 2014-Jefferson-S-1YG-0073 369
Total Passed through Texas Department of Transportation 17,787
Total U. S. Department of Transportation 1,013,960
U. S. Election Commission
Passed through Texas Secretary of State
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments -
General HAVA Compliance/Voting System Replacement 90.401 N/A 75,325
Total Passed through the Texas Secretary of State 75,325
Total U. S. Election Commission 75,325
U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Texas Department of Family &
Protective Services
Children's Justice Grants to State - Family Group Conferencing 93.643 23362284 -
Foster Care - Title IV-E Child Welfare Services 93.658 23939002 48,817
Foster Care - Title IV-E Legal Services 93.658 23939003 47,683
Total Passed through Texas Department of Family &
Protective Services 96,500
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Federal
Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Texas Juvenile Probation Commission
Foster Care - Title IV-E - Reimbursement Program 93.658 TJPC-E-2012-123 8,789
Total Passed through Texas Juvenile
Probation Commission 8,789
Passed through Texas Department of State Health Services
Cooperative Agreements for State-Based Diabetes
Control Programs and Evaluation of Surveillance Systems 93.988 DIAB/CDSP 2012-040780-001 23,246
Total Passed through Texas Department of
State Health Services 23,246
Total U. S. Department of Health and Human
Services 128,535
Office of National Drug Control Policy
Direct Program
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 95.001 G12HNO010A - DHE 34,813
Total Office of National Drug Control Policy 34,813
U. S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through the Texas Division of
Emergency Management
Homeland Security Grant Program - 2011 SHSP 97.073 EMW-2011-SS-00019 17,127
Homeland Security Grant Program - 2011 SHSP LEAP 97.073 EMW-2011-SS-00019 9,956
Homeland Security Grant Program - 2012 SHSP 97.073 EMW-2012-SS-00018-S01 25,141
Total Program 97.073 52,224
U. S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through the Texas Division of
Emergency Management
Hazard Mitigation Grant DR 1791-001/004 97.039 FEMA-1791-DR-001/004 1,630
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 12TX-EMPG-0389 29,481
Total Passed through the Texas Division of
Emergency Management 83,335
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Federal

Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs

ARRA Port Security Grant 97.116 2009PUR10410 984,375
2008 Port Security Grant 97.056 2008-GB-T8-K007 1,366,257
2009 Port Security Grant 97.056 2009-PU-T9-K002 2,945,042
2010 Port Security Grant 97.056 2010-PU-T0-K040 2,927,008
2011 Port Security Grant 97.056 EMW2011PUK00134 1,537,383
2012 Port Security Grant 97.056 EMW2012PU00156 83,876
Total Direct Programs 9,843,941
Total U. S. Department of Homeland Security 9,927,276
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 15,362,206

10
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

The County utilizes the fund types specified in the Resource Guide.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific
purposes by a grantor. Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities. Federal and state financial assistance generally is
accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund. GASB Statement No. 54 allows grants used for the
construction or acquisition of capital assets to be accounted for in the Capital Projects Funds.
Generally, used balances are returned to the grantor at the close of specified project periods.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The governmental fund types and private purpose trust fund types are
accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. All federal grant funds
were accounted for in the Special Revenue Fund, a component of the governmental fund type,
with the exception of the Office of Rural Affairs grants, which are recorded in Capital Projects
Funds, due to the implementation of GASB Statement 54. Capital Projects Funds also are a
component of the government fund type. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these
funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the governmental funds, the private purpose
trust funds, and agency funds. This basis of accounting recognizes revenue in the accounting
period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, and
expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable,
except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Federal grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the
provisions of the grant, and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as
deferred revenues until earned.

The period of availability for federal grant funds for the purpose of liquidation of outstanding
obligations made on or before the ending date of the federal project period, extended 30 days
beyond the federal project period ending date, in accordance with provisions in Section H.
Period of Availability of Federal Funds, Part 3, OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
updated as of June 2013.

11
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:
CEDA Number(s)

15.426, 15.668
14.228
97.116 ARRA, 97.056

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are

Required to be Reported in Accordance With
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

None

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

None

12

Unmodified

None
None reported

None

None

None

Unmodified

None

Name of Federal Program or Cluster:

Coastal Impact Assistance
Community Development Block Grant
Port Security Grant

$460,866

No
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Item 2012 — 1:

Condition:

Criteria:

Effect:

Cause:

Current Status:

Port Security Program — Sub-recipient Monitoring

The County did not properly perform sub-recipient monitoring of the
Sub- recipient’s administration of Davis-Bacon Act for the Port Security
Program.

The County receives grant funds for the Federal Port Security Grant. The
County in turn sends that money to sub-recipient’s to administer the
program. The grant agreement states that the County is required to
monitor the sub-recipient’s administration of Davis-Bacon Act for the
Port Security Grant Program.

The County is not certain that the Port Security Program plan was
administered properly by the sub-recipients.

The County did not properly monitor the Port Security Grant Program for
sub-recipient compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act.

This matter has been resolved.

13
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Item 2012 — 2:

Condition:

Criteria:

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Port Security Program — FFATA

The County did not comply with the FFATA reporting requirements for
the Port Security Program. The county did not report such awards subject
to FFATA and lacks controls to determine when the FFATA report
requirements are applicable.

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)
requires the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) to maintain a
single, searchable website that contains information on all Federal
spending awards. FFATA prescribes specific pieces of information to be
reported. For grants and cooperative agreements, the effective date is
October 1, 2010 for all discretionary and mandatory awards equal to or
exceeding $25,000 made with a new Federal Assistance Identification
Number (FAIN) on or after that date.

Once the requirement applies, the recipient must report, for any subaward
under the award with a value of $25,000 or more, each obligating action
of $25,000 or more in Federal Funds. Recipients are not required to report
on subawards made on or after October 1, 2010 that use funds awarded
prior to that date.

For contracts, implementation was phased in based on their total dollar
value. Based on the FAR interim final rule, FFATA reporting is required
for:

e Staring March 1, 2011, any newly awarded subcontract of
$25,000 or more must be reported if the value of the Federal
prime contract award under which that subcontract was awarded
was $25,000 or more.

Grant and cooperative agreement recipients and contractors are required
to register in the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Subaward Reporting System (FSRS) and report subaward data through
FSRS. To do so, they are first required to register in Central Contractor
Registration (CCR) and actively maintain the registration.

Grant and cooperative agreement recipients and contractors must report
information related to a subaward by the end of the month following the
month in which the subaward or obligation of $25,000 or greater was
made, and for contracts, the month in which the modification was issued
that changed previously reported information.

14
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Item 2012 — 2: Port Security Program — FFATA

Effect: The County was not aware of the reporting requirements for FFATA,
as applicable to the Port Security Program, resulting in noncompliance
with those reporting requirements.

Cause: The County was not aware that for audits of fiscal years ending on or
after June 30, 2011 reporting requirements of the FFATA are
applicable to the Port Security program. The county did not note the
program requirement and did not take action to be in compliance with
the reporting requirements.

Current Status: This matter has been resolved.

15
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ATTACHMENT 2: Organization Chart of Jefferson County
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CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR RFP 10-066/KJS
LEASE OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY DOWNTOWN JAIL FACILITY

The County entered into a contract with LaSalla Southwest Corrections for three (3) years,
from June 28, 2011 to June 27, 2014.

Pursuant to the contract, Jefferson County hereby exerciges its option to renew the contract for
one (1) additional year from June 27, 2014 to June 26, 2015,

ATTEST: ' JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
Carolys L. Guidry, County Clerk Teff Branick, County Judge
CONTRACTOR:

LaSalle Southwest Clorrections

(2L

(Name)
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THE @BEVAZEVZ® COMPANIES

Beaumont

P.O. Box 21580
Beaumont TX 77720
PHONE: (409)842-4881
FAX: (409)842-5075

JEFF COUNTY OFF OF EMERGENCY
MGMT/LEPC

Street Address:
Mailing Address: 1149 PEARL ST., 1ST FLOOR
City: BEAUMONT St TX Zip: 77701-3638
Phone: (409)835-8757 Fax: (409)835-8756
Total Camp. Invest.: $12,000.00

Customer Name:

DigitalBulletins Seq # 1

Investment Per,

CONTRACT

Date: 5/12/2014
New/Renewal: NEW

Contract No. 2170674

JEFFERSON COUNTY EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT

Cust A/C #: 507100-1
Term: 16 WEEKS
Contact Person: Greg Fountain

Advertiser:

Nat'l/Local: LD
Service Date: 6/16/2014

Campaign:
Email: gfountain@co.jeffferson.tx.us

Company #: 48 e . ~.$3,000.00 Market: BEAUMONT Market Code: 2
Billing Period:
Local AE: JLP2167-Joanna Pedigo Alt. AE: PO #:
Design: Imprint:
. No. of
Guaranteed Spots Per Day: 5328 h .
Displays:
# Billing B.”.'”VePSt F’e(;
Panel Market Location Size Slots | Service Dates Periods| B'''Ng Ferio
2302 BEAUMONT EASTEX FRWY @ CROW RD E/S 14' 0" X 48' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $0.00
5023 BEAUMONT HWY 69 S @ TWIN CITY 14' 0" X 48' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $3000.00
5192 BEAUMONT 1-10 BTW CORLEY & WASHINGTON |14' 0" X 48' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $0.00
22272 BEAUMONT DOWLEN RD @ OLD DOWLEN RD 10' 6" X 36' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $0.00
DigitalPosters Seq # 2
. Investment Per, . .
Company #: 48 Billing Period:$0'00 Market: BEAUMONT Market Code: 2
Local AE: JLP2167-Joanna Pedigo Alt. AE: PO #:
Design: Imprint:
. No. of
Guaranteed Spots Per Day: 2664 h .
Displays:
# Billing B.”.'”VePSt F’e(;
Panel Market Location Size Slots | Service Dates Periods| B'''Ng Ferio
5172 BEAUMONT CARDINAL DR W/O WARREN N/S F/E[10' 0" X 21' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $0.00
5602 BEAUMONT EASTEX FRWY 500 S/O BROADOAK [11' 0" X 23' 0" 06/16/14-10/05/14 4 $0.00
Investment Schedule
Year Period Total Investment
2014 6/16-7/13 $3,000.00
7/14-8/10 $3,000.00
8/11-9/7 $3,000.00
9/8-10/5 $3,000.00
~ THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY ~
INITIALS: 2170674 CUST 507100 PAGE 1 0f5



The terms on all pages are part of this contract.

122

Advertiser authorizes and instructs The Lamar Companies (Lamar) to display in a good and workmanlike manner, and to maintain for the terms set forth

above, outdoor advertising displays described above or on the attached list. In consideration thereof, Advertiser agrees to pay The Lamar Companies
all contract amounts within thirty (30) days after the date of billing. Advertiser acknowledges and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions on all

pages of this contract.
The undersigned representative or agent of Advertiser hereby warrants to The Lamar Companies that he/she is the

ADVERTISER of the Advertiser and is authorized to execute this contract on behalf of Advertiser.

BY:

JEFF COUNTY OFF OF EMERGENCY MGMT/LEPC

CUSTOMER/ADVERTISER

ACCOUNT EXECUTIVE

DATE:

COMPANY: Beaumont

BY:

(signature above)

CUSTOMER/ADVERTISER SIGNED BY:
(print name above)

This contract is NOT BINDING UNTIL ACCEPTED by a Lamar General Manager.

DATE:

THE LAMAR COMPANIES

BY:

GENERAL MANAGER: GEORGE CRAWFORD

STANDARD CONDITIONS

I.  General Conditions

1.

On initial installation, if Lamar and/or Lamar Transit Authority (LTA) is requested by Advertiser to submit art work, then art work submitted
by Lamar and/or LTA shall be approved or substitute art work shall be furnished by Advertiser within ten (10) days after submission. In the
case of default in furnishing or approval of art work by Advertiser, then the date of installation posting for purposes of commencement of
the first invoice shall be deemed to occur on the date on which the various spaces are available for service.

Advertiser warrants that all approved designs do not infringe upon any trademark or copyright, state or federal. Advertiser agrees to
defend, indemnify and hold Lamar free and harmless from any and all loss, liability, claims and demands, including attorney's fees arising
out of the character, contents or subject matter of any copy displayed or produced pursuant to this contract.

Upon completion and installation of initial posting, or upon the circumstances described in paragraph 1 regarding default, an invoice for
payment will be sent to Advertiser or Agency. Upon Advertiser's or Agency's request, a report of the posting will be sent with the initial
invoice. The first invoice shall cover the period from date of installation (if more than one location is included, the average date of
installation shall be used) to the end of the billing period in which the invoice is rendered, and subsequent invoices shall be rendered in
advance on the first of each successive billing period. Each invoice will cover the billing period following commencement of posting or
date of installation ; or following the circumstances described in paragraph 1 above regarding default . All prorated invoices and credits
will be computed on the basis of a four week billing period.

If Lamar is prevented from posting or maintaining any of the spaces by causes beyond its control of whatever nature, including but not
limited to acts of God, strikes, work stoppages or picketing, or in the event of damage or destruction of any of the spaces, or in the event
Lamar is unable to deliver any portion of the service required in this contract, including illumination, buses in repair, or maintenance, this
contract shall not terminate. Credit shall be allowed to advertiser at the standard rates of Lamar for such space or service for the period
that such space or service shall not be furnished or shall be discontinued or suspended. Lamar may discharge this credit, at its option, by
furnishing advertising service on substitute spaces, to be reasonably approved by advertiser, or by extending the term of the advertising
service on the same space for a period beyond the expiration date. The substituted or extended service shall be of a value equal to the
amount of such credit.

Upon default in the punctual payment of the contract indebtedness or any part thereof, as the same shall become due and payable, the
entire amount of the indebtedness contracted for herein shall be matured and shall be due and payable immediately, at the option of
Lamar, and unless same is promptly paid, Lamar may, at its option, discontinue without notice the outdoor or transit advertising contracted
for herein; provided, however, that such discontinuance shall not relieve the Advertiser or agency of the contract indebtedness. All
payments in arrears shall bear interest at the highest contract rate permitted by law, not to exceed 1%:% per month. In addition, Advertiser
shall pay Lamar all costs and expenses of exercising its rights under this contract, including reasonable attorney's fees of not less than
25% of the amount due, or $250.00, whichever is greater, and all reasonable collection agency fees.

This contract, all pages, constitutes the entire agreement between Lamar and Advertiser. Lamar shall not be bound by any stipulations,
conditions, or agreements not set forth in this contract. Waiver by Lamar of any breach of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of
any other breach of that provision or any other provision.

Il.  Poster Conditions

1.

2.

INITIALS:

Lamar reserves the right to determine if copy and design are in good taste and within the moral standards of the individual communities in
which it is to be displayed.

Lamar reserves the right to reject or withdraw any copy, either before or after posting. Lamar further reserves the right to terminate the

2170674 CUST 507100 PAGE 2 of 5



10.

11.

contract for any reason, at any time.
Net cash payment is required thirty (30) days after the date of billing.

If a location should be lost during the period of display for any reason, a poster location of equal advertising value will be substituted or
credit issued for loss of service. Should there be more than a 50% loss of illumination, a 20% pro-rata credit based on four week billing
will be given. If this contract requires illumination, it will be provided from dusk until 11:00 p.m.

All contracts are non-cancelable by Advertiser.

The Advertiser is responsible for producing and shipping, and all costs involved in the event posters do not reach Lamar by the
established posting dates. Lamar must charge for the full period of time beginning with the dates booked. To assure the single sheet
posters have sufficient weight and strength and the necessary opacity to prevent the "show through" of previously posted copy, the
recommended specification is a minimum weight of 2.9 ounce gray backed Polyethylene material. This material must be finished with
pockets to accommodate the Lamar posting system and must come with a 60 day warranty against fading and tearing.

A leeway of five (5) working days from the accepted posting date is required to complete the posting of any display. Single Sheet Posters
should be shipped in time to arrive at least ten (10) days prior to the accepted posting date.

Should the Advertiser and/or Advertising Agency fail to provide Lamar with the necessary posting instructions in writing at least ten (10)
days prior to any scheduled posting date, any costs which arise due to loss of space or replacement of poster elements shall be the
exclusive responsibility of the Advertiser and/or Advertising Agency.

If during the contract period of the display, Advertiser requests a change in the copy or the posting of overlays or additional sheets, the
minimum charge for such work is $35 per stop. If the original posting included overlays, no charge will be made. The minimum charge for
reposting an entire poster is $50. Advertisers are entitled to one posting of their showing during each 30-day period. Unused postings
may not be carried forward and credit for them will not be issued.

Poster display of one, two, or three week duration may be purchased, subject to space availability. Rates at month prices are as follows:
One Week Display - 50%; Two Week Display - 70%; Three Week Display - 85%.

For panels or showing of less than 25 GRP's, the rate(s) will be at least 25% higher than standard showing rates, depending on location
(s) and plant manager approval.

1ll. Bulletin Conditions

1.

10.
11.
12.

Lamar reserves the right to determine if copy and design are in good taste and within the moral standards of the individual communities in
which it is to be displayed.

Lamar reserves the right to reject or withdraw any copy, either before or after posting. Lamar further reserves the right to terminate the
contract for any reason, at any time.

Net cash payment is required thirty (30) days after the date of billing.

If a location should be lost during the period of display for any reason, a bulletin location of equal advertising value will be substituted or
credit issued for loss of service. Should there be more than a 50% loss of illumination, a 20% pro-rata credit based on four week
advertising space billing will be given. If this contract requires illumination, it will be provided from dusk until 11:00 p.m.

All contracts are non-cancelable by Advertiser.

Production charges are not included in the space rate, and will be determined by the degree of difficulty of the reproduction. Charges are
computed on a square foot basis.

Approved artwork and posting instruction shall be furnished by the Advertiser sixty (60) days prior to scheduled display date.
Creative with mechanical, reflectors, inflatable, etc. will be quoted upon request.

Cutouts/extensions,where allowed, are limited in size to 5 feet above, and 2 feet to the sides and 1 foot below normal display area.
Cutouts are the property of Lamar, and the basic fabrication charge is for a maximum 12 months. Lamar will not be responsible for
cutouts/extensions after 120 days of storage time.

Vinyl for bulletins should be supplied by the advertiser fifteen (15) working days prior to posting date.
Sections or vinyl will be held at customer's request upon management approval at the maximum rate of $100 per month.

Leeway of five (5) working days from the accepted start date is required to complete the installation of any display. Vinyl should be
shipped in time to arrive at least fifteen (15) days prior to the accepted start date.

IV. Digital Conditions

1.

INITIALS:

Lamar reserves the right to determine if copy and design are in good taste and within the moral standards of the individual communities in
which it is to be displayed.

Lamar reserves the right to reject or withdraw any copy, either before or after posting. Lamar further reserves the right to terminate the
contract for any reason, at any time.

Net cash payment is required thirty (30) days after the date of billing.

If a location should be lost during the period of display for any reason, a digital location of equal advertising value will be substituted or
credit issued for loss of service.

All contracts are non-cancelable by Advertiser.

Lamar will strive to provide advertisers with 100% of the time they contract. However due to problems with power interruptions,
emergency governmental warnings (e.g. Amber Alerts) or other unforeseen interruptions, Lamar is guaranteeing copy will be displayed an
average of 92.5% of the time contracted. For purposes of determining whether a credit is due pursuant to paragraph 4 above, the
average number of guaranteed spots per day will be measured over the duration of the contract, e.g., during a four week contract, the
available spots during the entire four week term of the contract will be calculated and 92.5% of that number will be used as the basis to
determine whether a credit is due the Advertiser. If Lamar has provided 92.5% or greater of available spots, then no credit will be due.

Digital Art files should be supplied by the advertiser to Lamar within a reasonable amount of time before post date to allow network
administrator to approve artwork and post.

123
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8. Advertiser shall not sublet, resell, transfer, donate or assign any advertising spots without the prior written consent of Lamar.

Special Considerations:

Special Provisions:

SURETY AGREEMENT
In consideration of Lamar entering into this contract with Advertiser, the undersigned ("Surety") guarantees and becomes a surety for Advertiser in
favor of Lamar for all sums due by Advertiser under this contract. The obligation of Surety is joint and several and in solido with Advertiser and
Agent (if applicable) for the full performance of all of Advertiser's obligations under this contract or any continuation. Surety consents to all
extensions. Surety waives any benefit that may allow him to limit this obligation to less than the full obligation of Advertiser. It is understood that,
without this guarantee or surety agreement, Lamar would not be willing to enter this contract with Advertiser.

DATE:
SURETY Signature Above
Print Name:
Address:
THIS INFORMATION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
Invoice Start Date: 6/16/2014 Invoice End Date: 10/5/2014
Inv. Routing: Customer Inv. Exception: Not Set
Product Code: 88 - Service Split Billing:
Nat'l Contract No: Political: Co-op:
Multi-Mkt Selling AE: P.O.P.
Sales Manager:

INITIALS: 2170674 CUST 507100 PAGE 4 of 5
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Digital Promotional Addendum

In this addendum prior to signing contract a minimum of (1) one copy change per month is required for an effective digital advertising campaign. Below
listed by month, promotion, and design is required to be filled out prior to signing the contract. A planned promotional advertising campaign is agreed
upon to ensure best results when advertising on Lamar Digital Display. Changes may be made to promotional calendar once contract is signed.
Please reference "Digital Display Promotional Calendar" for suggestions on creative.

Creative Promotional Schedule

Month Promotion Design

Account Executive: Customer/Advertiser:

INITIALS: 2170674 CUST 507100 PAGE 5 of 5



Jefferson County Courthouse
P.0O. Box 4025
Beaumont, Texas 77704

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

RE:

Eddie Arnold
Jefferson County
Commissioner Pct. #1

MEMORANDUM

Fran Lee, Auditing
Commissioner Eddie Arnold, R&B Pct #1
June 5, 2014

Transfer

126

Office (409) 835-8442
Fax (409) 835-8628
eddiearnold@co.jefferson.tx.us

Transfer $23,000.00 out of acct #111-0102-431-30-79 (crushed stone) to acct #111-0109-431-60-42
(capital acct) for purchase of new truck.

Transfer $7000.00 out of acct #111-0102-431-30-79 (crushed stone) to acct #111-0109-431-60-11
(capital acct) for purchase of new mower. '

Patricia Nantz
R &B #1
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525 LAKESHORE DRIVE

CHRISTOPHER L. BATES
: SUB-COURTHOUSE

CONSTABLE PCT. 2

JEFFERSON COUNTY PORT ARTHUR, TEXAS 77640
PHONE: 409-983-8335
FAX: 409-983-8320 .
May 28, 2014
Fran Lee

Jefferson County Auditing Department

Re: Transfer of Funds

Fran,

Please transfer $5,800 from account #120-3066-425.60-07 to #120-3066-424.30-84. Our
office needs to replace the radar and in-car video systems in our patrol vehicles. I
understand it will go before Commissioner’s Court.

Your help is greatly appreciated.

Thank you,

Christopher Bates
Constable, Pct 2
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SMG OPERATIONS — FORD PARK

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, i.1.pr.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS B BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Management of
SMG/Ford Park
Beaumont, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SMG Operations — Ford Park as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

1
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of SMG Operations — Ford Park as of September 30, 2013, and the changes in
financial position and cash flows thereof, for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the operations managed by SMG
Operations — Ford Park, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
Jefferson County, Texas, as of September 30, 2013, the changes in its financial position, or, where
applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Prtllo, Browm ¢ HU, LL?

Waco, Texas
March 24, 2014
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SMG OPERATIONS - FORD PARK

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable (note 2)
Prepaid expenses
Inventory, at cost

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue (note 3)
Customer deposits

Total liabilities

Net position:
Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net position

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

611,384
109,064
2,085

45,700

768,233

30,024
158,922
83,037
31,594

303,577

464,656

768,233
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SMG OPERATIONS - FORD PARK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3,560,776
Total operating revenues 3,560,776
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 91,602
Contracted services 10,750
Insurance 440,975
Event expenses 2,171,503
Maintenance and repairs 258,042
Management fees 126,483
Materials and supplies 82,698
Operations expenses 76,033
Salaries and benefits 1,440,931
Utilities 779,112
Total operating expenses 5,478,129
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS ( 1,917,353)
TRANSFERS 2,046,125
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 128,772
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 335,884
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 464,656

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statement.
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SMG OPERATIONS - FORD PARK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users § 3,611,238

Payments to employees ( 1,436,641)

Payments to suppliers ( 4,015,187)
Net cash used by operating activities ( 1,840,590)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in 2,046,125
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,046,125

NET DECREASE IN CASH 205,535
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 405,849
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ 611,384

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET
CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss $C 1,917,353)
Net cash used by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 12,577
Prepaid expenses 6,692
Inventory 4,769
Customer deposits 17,344
Accounts payable 10,550
Accrued expenses 4,290
Deferred revenue 20,541
Total changes in assets and liabilities 76,763
Net cash used by operating activities $(_1,840,590)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the statement.
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SMG OPERATIONS - FORD PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”) was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the
original counties of the Republic of Texas. The County operates under a Commissioners’ Court
form of government. Some of the services of the County include operation of a detention
system, construction and maintenance of roads, various levels of civil and criminal courts, a
district attorney’s office, a county sheriff’s department, juvenile probation and detention, a
mosquito control, a library, and other public health and social welfare services. The following is
a summary of the most significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the
County.

A. Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements include only the revenue and expenditures related to
operations at Ford Park managed by SMG.

B. Special Purpose Financial Statements

The County owns Ford Park, which consists of an amphitheater, arena, midway, exhibition
hall, agricultural barns, and softball diamonds. The County has engaged SMG to manage,
operate, and promote the facilities which comprise Ford Park. SMG is responsible for paying
the operating expenses at Ford Park from revenues generated by the facilities at Ford Park.
In the event operating expenses exceed operating revenues, the County is required to fund
this excess.

C. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

Jefferson County uses funds and account groups to report its financial position and results of
its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or
activities.

D. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses when they are incurred. The operations are accounted
for using a cost of service or “capital maintenance” measurement focus. This means that all
assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are
included in the fund’s statement of net position.
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E. Capital Assets

Jefferson County has decided that all the capital assets relating to Ford Park should be
accounted for by the County in order to maintain proper accountability and control.

F. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013:

Billed settlement charges -
Rent and other event expenses $ 115,761
Allowance ( 6,697)
$ 109,064
DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of income not yet earned on suites sold for Ford Park Arena, advanced
ticket sales, and boxes sold for the amphitheater. It also includes deferred sponsorship income
and naming rights.
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.p,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS B BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

To Management of
SMG/Ford Park
Beaumont, Texas

We have audited the basic financial statements of SMG Operations — Ford Park (the “Park™) for
the year ended September 30, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our engagement letter to you dated March 24, 2014. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Park are described in Note I to the financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the Park during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. Management utilizes industry guidelines and historical
trends to make many accounting estimates. We feel estimates are reasonable for the accounting period.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result
of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to
each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

401 WEST HIGHWAY 68 P.0. BOX 20725 8 WACO, TEXAS 76702-0725 8 (254) 7724901 8 FAX: (254) 772-4920 8 wwephlicpa.com
AFFILIATE OFFICES: HILLSBORO. TX (254) 582-2583 8 HOUSTON, TX (261) 671-6259
RIO GRANDE VALLEY. TX (956) 544-7778 8 TEMPLE, TX (254) 791-3460 8 ALBUQUERQUE. NM (505) 266-5904
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated March 24, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

There were no other audit findings or issues.

Significant Forthcoming Accounting Standards

Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Nel Position

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65 (“GASB 65”), Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities.

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined the
elements included in financial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources. In addition, Concepts Statement 4 provides that reporting a deferred outflow of
resources or a deferred inflow of resources should be limited to those instances identified in
authoritative pronouncements that are established after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance of
this Statement, only two such pronouncements have been issued. Statement No. 53, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, requires the reporting of a deferred outflow of
resources or a deferred inflow of resources for the changes in fair value of hedging derivative
instruments, and Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements, requires a deferred inflow of resources to be reported by a transferor government in a
qualifying service concession arrangement. This Statement amends the financial statement element
classification of certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the
definitions in Concepts Statement 4.

143



This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the
financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in
financial statement presentations.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Honorable County Judge, Commissioners’
Court, and management of the County and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Pw%&%,%mum « Kl LLf

Waco, Texas
March 24, 2014
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CHECK NO. TOTAL
394596
394607
394660
788. 04**
394559
394587
394601
394609
394733
1,429. 74**
394521
394549
394565
394587
183. 19**
394524
394548
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394587
394595
394597
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394732
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394715
1,470. 09**
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394549
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394605
394634
414. 88**
394611
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394736
590, 661. O7*
394567
394579
394582
394583
394587
394625
394716
2, 050. 96*
394523
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NANVE AMOUNT CHECK NO. TOTAL
VERI ZON W RELESS 303. 92 394621
DYNAMVEX | NC 231. 28 394725
268, 060. 00*
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394587
394625
32.19*
394514
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394522
394536
394540
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JOHN E. MACEY 250. 00 394560
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 28. 83 394625
GULE CQAST AUDI O 1, 940. 00 394642
JAMES R. MAKIN, P.C 250. 00 394700
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STAR _GRAPHI CS SHARP 42. 71 394587
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE .81 394625 10. 978. 42
VEDI ATI ON CENTER
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 30.12 394587
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 3. 65 394625 33, 77+
COVMUNI TY SUPERVI SI ON
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 136. 39 394587 136. 39*
SHERI FF' S DEPARTMENT
FED EX 54. 83 394541
OFF| CE DEPOT 1, 943. 64 394567
AT&T 6l1. 44 394583
STAR _GRAPHI CS SHARP 279. 27 394587
WASTE MGT. _GOLDEN TRI ANGLE, | NC. 237.11 394600
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 898. 52 394625
Fl VE STAR FEED 113. 65 394646
BLUE 1, 991. 00 394651
3 L PRI NTI NG 350. 00 394694
Rl TA HURT 825. 00 394708
D SM TH 67.66 394737
6, 822. 12*
CRI ME LABORATORY
Fl SHER SCl ENTI EI C 190. 20 394542
STAR GRAPHI C5_SHARP 42. 71 394587
L HOQVE CENTERS. | NC. 169. 10 394634
S| Rl US COVPUTER SCLUTICNS I NC. 1, 996. 69 394639
I.DENT A DRUG REFERENCE 39. 00 394641
JUSTI CE TRAX | NC 11, 312. 79 394668
CAYNAN_CHEM CAL COVPANY 239. 00 394691
SI RCH E FI NGER PRI NT LABORATORI ES 474. 77 394699
14, 464. 26*
JAIL - NO 2
42, 582. 74 394549
HERNANDEZ OFFI CE SUPPLY, | NC. 4,048. 58 394551
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 522. 75 394587
NEDERLAND HARDWARE SUPPLY 21. 30 394603
INTERCCNTINENTAL JET CORP 528. 67 394655
WORL D FUEL SERVI_ CES 561. 48 394690
LICUI CAPI TAL EXCHANGE | NC 1, 557. 28 394703
EPI'C CARD SERVI CES LLC 318. 00 394711 50. 140. 80*
JUVENI LE PROBATI ON DEPT.
USA_MOBI LI TY W RELESS, | NC 48. 24 394512
G FRAN HUDGE NS 964. 00 394552
ELAl NE_MADCLE 100. 80 394561
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 91. 06 394587
CHERYL TARVER 156. 80 394606
UNL TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 18. 57 394625
LATRI Cl A_COLEMAN 169. 68 394636
LATASHA DI LL 90. 72 394662
SHARCON STREETMAN 67. 20 394664
KESHA NI XON 180. 32 394666
N SHA AM N 400. 00 394675
RASHUNDA FLETCHER 123. 20 394677
BRI'A LYNCH 16. 24 394678
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NANVE

JOHN ANDERSON
WHI TNEY WOLF

JUVENI LE DETENTI ON HOME
ENTERGY

AT&T

OAK FARM DAl RY

FLONERS FOODS

CVS PHARMACY
BROTHERS PRODUCE

CONSTABLE PCT 1

DATE
06- 09- 2014

OFFI CE DEPOT

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
CONSTABLE- PCT 2

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT
CONSTABLE- PCT 4

GI' DI STRI BUTCRS, | NC.
CONSTABLE- PCT 6

STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
FRESH & CLEAN CARPET CLEANI NG
CONSTABLE PCT. 8

COASTAL BUSI NESS FORMS

ACRI CULTURE EXTENSI ON SVC
TERRIE S. LOONEY

STARLA B. GARLI CK

STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 1

USA MBI LI TY W RELESS, | NC
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

UNI. TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
ESSLI NE KNOX

HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 2

USA MBI LI TY W RELESS, | NC
PHYSI C AN SALES & SERVI CE,” | NC.
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

NURSE PRACTI TlI ONER
OFFI CE DEPQOT

PHYSI Cl AN SALES & SERVI CE, | NC
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

RACHAEL COE

CH LD WELFARE UNI' T

DI SA. |1 NC.

BEAUMONT "OCCUPATI ONAL SERVI CE, | NC.
SEARS COMVERI CAL CREDI T

| NDI GENT MEDI CAL SERVI CES

CARDI NAL HEALTH 110 | NC
LAGNI APPE PHARVACY SERVI CES LLC

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

AMOUNT
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10, 130.

89.

228.

259.

182.

461.

995.

145.

176.

1, 697.

1, 184.

34, 210.

2,976. 19*

00~
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00*

88*

24~

40*

24~
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S7*

61*

21*
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NANVE ANMOUNT CHECK NO. TOTAL
VERI ZON W RELESS 150. 00 394619 150. 00*
MAI NTENANCE- BEAUMONT
BETCO SCAFFOLD CO., | NC. 226. 04 394526
COBURN"S,  BEAUMONT BONE (1) 46. 97 394534
SANI TARY' SUPPLY, 1 NC. 3, 543. 60 394578
ACE_| MAGEVEAR 329. 38 394579
AT&T 909. 57 394583
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 30. 12 394587
Ol S ELEVATOR COVPANY 2, 756. 00 394647
CENTERPO NT ENERGY RESQURCES CORP 367. 25 394656
FI RETROL PROTECTI ON SYSTEMS, | NC. 44.00 394681 8 255 93*
MAI NTENANCE- PORT ARTHUR
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 61. 90 394587
TEXAS GAS SERVI CE 213. 67 394643 R—
MAI NTENANCE- M D COUNTY
CL.TY OF NEDERLAND 140. 65 394532
ACE_ | MAGEVEAR 55. 34 394579
AT&T 682. 43 394583
STAR_GRAPHI CS SHARP 31.78 394587
W JEFFERSON COUNTY M W D. 60. 52 394602 970. 72
SERVI CE CENTER
KI NSEL _FORD, | NC. 605. 73 394557
VEI NEKE 17. 50 394564
PHI LPOTT_MOTORS, | NC. 129. 80 394572
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 30.12 394587
TRl - CON, | NC. 5, 009. 87 394595
TRAI LER H TCH DEPOT 475. 00 394614
PETROLEUM TRADERS CORPORATI ON 23, 380. 83 394622
LOANE' S HOVE CENTERS, | NC. 75. 08 394634
PETROLEUM SOLUTI ONS! | NC. 117. 00 394652
BUMPER TO BUVPER 310. 72 394653
AVERI CAN_TI' RE DI STRI BUTORS 2,898. 60 394680
| NTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER - BMT 532. 70 394686
UNI_FI RST HOLDI I NC 22.23 394688
M GHTY "OF SOUTHEAST TEXAS 104. 28 394705
SPANKY' S WRECKER SERVI CE | NC 245. 00 394710
S| LSBEE FORD | NC 120. 78 394727
34, 075. 24
VETERANS SERVI CE
STAR _GRAPHI CS SHARP 74. 49 394587
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 6. 35 394625
US POSTAL SERVI CE 147. 00 394629
H LARY GUEST 242. 40 394640
470. 24*
1,111, 021. 53**
MOSQUI TO CONTROL FUND
CLARKE MOSQUI TO CONTROL 38, 178. 00 394533
MUNRO S 98. 95 394565
AT&T 29. 45 394583
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 30. 12 394587
TI ME_WARNER COVMMUNI CATI ONS 67. 58 394592
PARKER LUVBER 263. 97 394693
38, 668. 07**
BREATH ALCOHOL TESTI NG
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT 303. 70 394555 303. 70**
FAM LY GROUP CONFERENCI NG
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP 31.78 394587
31. 78%*

J.C. FAM LY TREATMENT CT.
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NANVE
%%%M?%;g%%@NHCNN_SERﬂCE I NC.
EMPG GRANT

SOUTHEAST TEXAS WATER
VERI ZON W RELESS

JUVENI LE TJPC A-2014-123

USA MOBI LI TY W RELESS. | NC
YOUTH ADVOCATE PROGRAM

COVMUNI TY SUPERVI SI ON FND

OFF|I CE DEPOT

OLMSTED- KI RK_PAPER

UNLTED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
THE CHANGE COMPANI ES

DATE
06- 09- 2014

J CCSC
VUNI Gl PAL SERVI. CES BUREAU
GREGORY CLARK JR

JEFF. CO. WOMVEN S CENTER
USA MOBI LI TY W RELESS, | NC
CLTY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.
coll CS_E'\I; ELECTRI C CO_, I'NC
KI'M MCKI NNEY, LPC. LMFT
STAR GRAPHI CS HARP
SYSCO FQOD_S RVI CES, 1 NC.
Tl WARNER COVIVUNI CATI_ ONS

FI RE & COVMUNI CATI ONS
BEN E KEI TH_FOQODS

ROCHEST _R ARMORED CAR CO | NC
SECURUS TECHNOLOG ES
SAM S CLUB DI RECT
COVMUNI TY CORRECTI ONS PRG
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

DRUG DI VERSI ON PROGRAM
BEAUMONT TROPHI ES

VARKET BASKET
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP
ORI ON_HEAL THCARE TECHNOLOGY
TI SH JONES
JAG GRANTS

DELL MARKETI NG L. P.
SHI GOVERNMENT SOLUTI ONS, | NC.

COUNTY CLERK - RECORD MGT

AT&T

COUNTY RECCORDS MANAGEMENT

DELL MARKETI NG L. P.

DARE CONTRI BUTI ONS FUND
MURDOCK' S TROPHY SHOP

DEPUTY SHERI FF EDUCATI ON

EAST TEXAS PEACE OFFElI CERS ASSN.
TEXAS' AGM ENG NEERI NG EXTENSI ON

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
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47.
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2, 345.

24.

2,454, 75**

01**

4,095. 19**

3,425.98**

30* *

38**

17* *

. 49**

71**

86**

OO* *
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NANVE
THERMACON _SERV| CE
Cl TY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.
COT'TON_CARGO
VUNRO S
OFFI CE_DEPQOT
TR -C TY COFFEE SERVI CE
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
CLASSI C FORMS _AND PRODUCTS
SETXSOCI ALCENTER. COM
BUCK SPRI NGS WATER
D CK BLI CK ART MATERI ALS
CRI ME LAB FUNDI NG CID
JUSTI CE TRAX | NC
DI STRI CT CLK RECORDS MaMVIT
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP
1957 RCAD BOND FUND
LJA ENG NEERI NG | NC
CAPI TAL PRQJIECTS FUND
OVERHEAD DOCR_CO,
E. SULLI VAN ADVERTI SI NG & DESI GN
BAI LEY' S ARCHI TECTS | NC
SUREYI NG AND MAPPI NG LLC
Al RPORT FUND

Cl TY OF NEDERLAND
STAR GRAPHI CS SHARP

SE TX EMP. BENEFI T POCL
STANDARD | NSURANCE COMPANY
CHLI G- CHI CAGO

DATE
06- 09- 2014

WORKER' S COVPENSATI ON FD

TR STAR Rl SK MANAGEMENT
TRI STAR RI SK MANAGEMENT

SHERI FF' S FORFEI TURE FUND

SPORTY' S Pl LOT SHOP
US POSTAL SERVI CE
RO _PRODUCTS

AERO P
SPECTROLAB, | NC.

BUVPER TO BUMPER

CALLYO 2009 CORP

PAYROLL FUND

%EFFERSCN CTY. - FLEXI BLE SPENDI NG

EAT
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER
RON S&QET%UELLER -ECHAPTER 13

| NTER EVENUE _SERVI CE

JEFFERSON CTY. A OF D.S. & C.O
JEFFERSON CTY. CQWUNITY SUP
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - HEALTH
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - GENERAL
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYRQ.L
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYROLL
MONY/ ML OA ,

POLI CE & FI RE FILGHTERS ASSOCI ATI QN
UNITED WAY OF BEAUMONT& N_JEFFERSON
US_DEPARTMENT OF EDUCAT| ON
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - TCDRS
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NAME AMOUNT TOTAL

NHEI MER FUNDS_DI STRI BUTOR, | NC
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JUDICIAL EDUCATION RECORD
Fiscal Year Reporting Period 9/1/2013 - 8/31/2014

Honorable Jeff Branick Id: 217004

Judge Term: 1/1/2011 -12/31/2014
Jefferson County

1149 Pearl St Fl 4

Beaumont, TX 77701-3638

Phone: (409) 835-8466

Fax: (409) 839-2311

Date Description Earned Hours
9/1/2013 Excess hours carried from 2013 9.50
3/19/2014 2014 Spring Judicial Session, Lubbock 16.00

You have met your education requirement for this reporting period. You may
carry forward to the next reporting period 9.50 hours.

Judicial Education Requirements

Experienced judges are required to obtain 16.0 hours of approved judicial education for each fiscal year
reporting period.

If you are EXEMPT, please disregard the above education requirement.

According to the Court of Criminal Appeals Rules of Judicial Education Rule 2 d.

“A Constitutional county judge is exempt from continuing judicial education requirement for any fiscal year for which
the judge files an affidavit with the Registrar stating that the judge does$ not perform judicial functions.”

Judges claiming this exemption must submit an affidavit claiming exemption each reporting period to the
Texas Association of Counties.

Judicial Education Questions
If you have questions pertaining to your judicial education records, please contact Joyce Francis at
800-456-5974,

Print Date: 05/23/2014

TExAS ASSOCIATION of COUNTIES

155
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MAY 3 0 2014

l Texas Department of Transportation

8350 Eastex Freeway. ® Beaumont, Texas 77708 ¢ (409) 892-7311
May 27,2014

The Honorable Jeff R. Branick
Jefferson County Judge

P.O. Box 4025

Beaumont, TX 77704

Re: County Transportation Infrastructure Fund Grant Program Agreement
Dear Judge Branick:
Enclosed please find one fully executed agreement for the County Transportation Infrastructure

Grant Fund Program. If you have any questions, do not hesitate to call me at (409) 898-5743.

Sincerely,

Moz | by 16

Scott J. Ayres, P.E.
Transportation Planning Engineer

SJA:sja



Contract # CTIF-01-124
District # 20
Code Chart 64 # 50124

Project;__ Jefferson 2014 CTIF Award

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE FUND GRANT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the
Texas Department of Transportation, called the “State”, and Jefferson County, acting
by and through its duly authorized officials, called the “County.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Transportation Code, Chapter 256, Subchapter C allows for the Texas
Department of Transportation to make grants to counties for transportation infrastructure
projects located in areas of the state affected by increased oil and gas production; and

WHEREAS, The County has submitted its application for the Grant funding from the State
and its application was approved; and

WHEREAS, state law requires counties to meet certain contract standards relating to the
management and administration of State funds; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the County has approved entering into this agreement by
resolution or ordinance which is attached to and made a part of this agreement as
Attachment A; and

NOW THEREFORE, the State and the County agree as follows:
AGREEMENT

1. Agreement Period. This agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party
whose signing makes the agreement fully executed. This agreement shall remain in effect
until the Projects are completed or unless terminated as provided below.

2. Scope of Work. The County shall complete the transportation infrastructure projects as
proposed in its List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects defined in 3. below. The County
shall place the transportation infrastructure projects on the county road system.

3. List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects. The County is responsible to review the
list of projects listed on its previously submitted application for a grant from the fund and
create a List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects prioritizing its choice of projects which
can be performed with the grant amount awarded to the County by the State. Within thirty
(30) calendar days after final execution of this agreement, the County shall submit to the
State this List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects (in a format specified by the State).
This List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects shall include an estimated month and year
of starting construction and completing construction for each funded project including the
estimated project cost for each project. During the term of this agreement, updates to the
List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects may be made by the County. Updates can
include changes in priority, changes in estimated cost, changes in month or year of starting

County Transp Infra Fund Grant Agrmnt Page 1 of 7 April 1, 2014*
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Contract # CTIF-01-124
District # 20
Code Chart 64 # 50124

Project:_ Jefferson 2014 CTIF Award

or completing construction, or adding or deleting projects. Any proposed new projects shall
include the same information as was required for projects submitted as part of the application
for a grant from the fund. Updated List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects or a
statement of no material change to the previously submitted list shall be submitted to the
State no less than semi-annually. Any update to the List of Transportation Infrastructure
Projects requires written concurrence from the State to the County.

4. Project Sources, Uses of Funds, and Reimbursement.

a.

The State has authorized the total amount of grant award from the fund as shown in
Attachment B, Amount of Grant Award and Funding Commitments, which is attached
to this agreement. The expected cash contributions from the State, the County, or
other parties are shown in Attachment B. The State will reimburse only for allowable
project costs for this program in accordance with 43 TAC § 15.192. The County must
be in compliance with the requirements of this agreement to receive reimbursement of
project costs.

The County shall submit monthly billing statements or a statement that no construction
or maintenance work was performed during the previous month, in accordance with
procedures defined by the State, accompanied by a certification of work performed
during the previous month. Along with the billing statements submitted by the County,
it shall submit copies of all paid invoices and/or force account documentation. Within
thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete billing statement and supporting
documentation, the State will reimburse the County.

The County shall not commence construction of a funded transportation infrastructure
project prior to receipt of written approval from the State in accordance with
procedures defined by the State.

If the County commences performance on a transportation infrastructure project but
fails to complete the project, the State may seek reimbursement of all money received
by the County for that individual transportation infrastructure project.

For each transportation infrastructure project located on the State highway system, the
County shall contribute to the State (from the amount awarded to the County from the
fund and the County’s matching funds) an amount equal to the allowable costs
incurred by the State for that project.

The County may submit in writing to the State a proposed amendment during the term
of this agreement changing the order of projects on its List of Transportation
Infrastructure Projects or identifying additional project(s) or extended limits on an
approved project that contains all information required by rule for that project. If funds
are available within the amount awarded to the County, the State may execute the
proposed amendment allowing the County to use the available funds in the revised
order, for the additional project(s), or for extended limits on an approved project in the
County.

The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds
from the State directly under this agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under
this agreement. Acceptance of funds directly under this agreement or indirectly
through a subcontract under this agreement acts as acceptance of the authority of the
state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit
or investigation in connection with those funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit
or investigation must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state
auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit.

County Transp Infra Fund Grant Agrmnt Page 2 of 7 April 1, 2014~
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Contract # CTIF-01-124
District # 20
Code Chart 64 # 50124

Project:__ Jefferson 2014 CTIF Award

5. Project Responsibilities. The County is responsible for all aspects of the work
constituting this Project or list of projects unless otherwise indicated in this agreement. In
order to obtain reimbursement for eligible expenses from the State, the County shall certify to
the State in accordance with procedures defined by the State that they have complied with all
program requirements and applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

6. Final Inspection. The County shall perform final inspection and acceptance of each
transportation infrastructure project when it is complete. The County shall send a copy of a
document evidencing inspection and acceptance of the project to the State within thirty (30)
days after the inspection is completed.

7. Right of Way and Real Property Acquisition. The County shall comply with all the
requirements of Title Il and Title Ill of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, Title 42 U.S.C.A. Section 4601et seq.

8. Suspension. If the State determines that the County has not been complying with 43,
TAC, Part |, Chapter 15, Subchapter O, the State may prohibit the County from continuing
with all projects on the List of Transportation Infrastructure Projects until the County
complies.

9. Termination of this Agreement. This agreement shall remain in effect until the
transportation infrastructure projects identified in the most current List of Transportation
Infrastructure Projects with concurrence from the State are completed and accepted by all
parties, unless the:
a. Agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties; or
b. Agreement is terminated because the County has breached the agreement for Failure
to Comply as stated in Paragraph 16.

10. Environmental Permitting and Regulatory Issues.

a. The County must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local environmental
laws and regulations and permitting requirements.

b. The County is responsible for coordination and environmental clearance.

c. The County is responsible for identification and assessment of any environmental
problems associated with the project(s) and for the cost of any environmental
problem’s mitigation and remediation.

d. The County is responsible for providing any required public meetings or public
hearings for assessing and mitigating environmental issues.

e. The County shall provide the State with written certification by a qualified professional
that all identified environmental problems have been remediated and that all required
permits and clearances from appropriate regulatory agencies have been obtained.

11. Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA. The County shall ensure
that the plans for and the construction of the transportation infrastructure projects subject to
this agreement are in compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) issued by the
Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, under the Texas Government Code, Chapter
469, Elimination of Architectural Barriers. The TAS establishes minimum accessibility
requirements to be consistent with minimum accessibility requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq.). The County shall provide written
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certification to the State of compliance, or non-applicability, for each transportation
infrastructure project.

12. Project Maintenance. The County shall maintain any roadway on the County system
constructed under this Agreement after completion of the proposed work.

13. Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Program Requirements. The County
shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA)
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Program.

14. Grant Management Standards. The County must comply with the Uniform Grant
Management Standards promulgated by the Office of the Governor under 34 TAC Part 1,
Chapter 20, Subchapter | — Comptroller.

15. Certification.

Within sixty (60) days after the completion of a listed transportation infrastructure project, the
County must submit a written certification to the State in accordance with procedures defined
by the State that it has complied with the requirements for this grant awarded under 43 TAC,
Part 1, Chapter 15, Subchapter O, including a certification that the project has been
constructed in accordance with all applicable requirements, laws, rules and requirements.
The Certification must describe the allowable costs for the project and the amount
reimbursed from the fund.

16. Failure to Comply.

a. If the State determines that the County has not complied with one or more material
requirements of the grant rules, the State may prohibit the County from participating in
the program.

b. The prohibition from participating may continue until the State determines that the
County has complied with all material requirement of the applicable rule.

c. The State may remove the County’s project or projects from participation in the
program if the project(s) is not let or begun as force account work within three (3)
years of the execution of this agreement or within another reasonable period agreed to
by the State and the County.

d. Prior to exercising any remedies above or the remedy regarding reimbursement in
4.d., the State will provide a written notice to the County identifying the applicable
requirement and specifying the failure to comply.

e. The County may respond in writing to the State with a reasonable schedule for the
County's timely compliance with the applicable requirement, or if compliance is not
practical, with an alternative proposal that is acceptable to the State. Should the
County fail to deliver an acceptable response to the State within thirty (30) days after
the date that the County received the notice, the State may proceed with the
applicable remedies allowed by rule.

17. Amendments. An amendment to this agreement must be in writing and executed
jointly by the State and the County.

18. Remedies. This agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy
for any agreement default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by
either party to this agreement and shall be cumulative.
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19. Notices. All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be
delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party
at the following addresses:

County: State:
Jeff R. Branick Texas Dept. of Transportation
County Judge Director - Contract Services Office
P.0. Box 4025 125 E. 11th Street
Beaumont, TX 77704 Austin, Texas 78701-2483

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered or deposited in the regular mail,
unless otherwise provided in this agreement. Either party may change the above address by
sending written notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing
that notices shall be delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail and the request shall be
honored and carried out by the other party.

20. Legal Construction. In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement
shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, that invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions and this agreement shall be
construed as if it did not contain the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision.

21. Responsibilities of the Parties.

a. The State and the County agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or employee of
the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and deeds
as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and
agents.

b. To the extent permitted by law, the County agrees to indemnify and save harmless the
State, its agents and employees from all suits, actions or claims and from all liability
and damages resulting from any and all injuries or damages sustained by any person
or property in consequence of any neglect, error, or omission in the performance of
the design, construction, maintenance or operation of the Project by the County, its
contractors, subcontractors, agents and employees, and from any claims or amounts
arising or recovered under the Workers' Compensation Laws; the Texas Tort Claims
Act, Chapter 101, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code; or any other applicable
laws or regulations, all as from time to time may be amended.

c. The parties expressly agree that this project is not a joint venture or enterprise.
However, if a court should find that the parties are engaged in a joint venture or
enterprise, then the County agrees to pay any liability adjudicated against the State for
acts and deeds of the County, its employees or agents during the performance of this
Project.

d. The County shall also indemnify and save harmless the State from any and all
expense, including, but not limited to, attorney fees which may be incurred by the
State in litigation or otherwise resisting any claim or liabilities which may be imposed
on the State as a result of activities by the County, its agents, or employees.
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e. Should the County’s transportation infrastructure project require the County or its
contractor to perform any work on State right of way, the County, by contract, shall
require each: (1) contractor and subcontractor it may hire to secure a policy of
insurance in the maximum statutory limits for tort liability, naming the State as an
additional insured under its terms; and (2) contractor it may hire to indemnify and hold
harmless the County and the State from all claims, liability, and damages resulting
from the contractor's performance under a contract to do work.

22. Ownership of Documents. Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all
documents prepared by the State shall remain the property of the State. All data prepared
under this agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on
their further use. All documents produced or approved or otherwise created by the County
shall be made available to the State upon request by the State. The originals shall remain
the property of the County.

23. Compliance with Laws. The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, permitting requirements, and the orders and
decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting the
performance of this agreement. When required, the County shall furnish the State with
satisfactory proof of this compliance.

24. Sole Agreement. This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the
parties and supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting
the subject matter of this agreement.

25. Retention of Records and Inspection. The County shall keep a complete and
accurate record to document the performance of the work and to expedite any audit that
might be conducted. The County shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting
records and other documentation relating to costs. Records shall include, but not be limited
to, diaries, materials received (invoices), test reports, manufacturer’s certificates, warranties,
change orders, and time extensions. The County shall make those materials available to the
State or their duly authorized representatives for verification, review and inspection at its
office during the contract period and for three (3) years from the date the final payment is
received by the County or until any impending litigation, or claims are resolved.

26. Signatory Warranty. Each signatory warrants that the signatory has the necessary
authority to execute this agreement on behalf of the entity represented.
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THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the County in duplicate.

THE COU

Signatum\jjﬁuf: 3 %ﬁm ,LK— CMA}'J\ ‘L“‘oﬁe

Printed Name and Titl

S-12- 1

Date

Signature

Kenneth Stewart
Interim Director of Contract Services
Texas Department of Transportation

O5/2/ Yy

Date
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ATTACHMENT A

Resolution or Ordinance
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IN THE COMMISSIONERS COURT
; OF
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RESOLUTION AND ORDER
APPROVING THE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE FUND GRANT PROGRAM AGREEMENT,
DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE,
AND MAKING SPECIFIC FINDINGS
REQUIRED BY THE
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, Jefferson County has received a Notice of Eligible Grant Award from the
Texas Department of Transportation (“TxDOT”) in the amount of $1,140,125.00 [Grant Award];
and

WHEREAS the Commissioners Court of Jefferson County has determined that it is in
the best interests of the citizens of Jefferson County to enter into an Agreement with TxDOT
concerning the County Transportation Infrastructure Fund Grant Program; and

WHEREAS TxDOT has created County Transportation Infrastructure Fund Grant
Program Implementation Procedures that Jefferson County is required to follow to receive the
grant funding; and

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Jefferson
County designates[gmgéﬁdéfii, @Ms its County Representative and authorizes the
County Representative to sign all project-related documents on behalf of the County, including
any certifications required by the Grant Program; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Jefferson
County Commissioners Court hereby approves the attached County Transportation Infrastructure
Fund Grant Program Agreement (“the Agreement”) and authorizes the County Representative to
execute the Agreement between Jefferson County and the Texas Department of Transportation.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Jefferson
County Commissioners Court hereby approves the attached revised Prioritized List of road
projects to be funded with the County Transportation Infrastructure Fund Grant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Commissioners
Court of Jefferson County makes the following findings in the exercise of discretion and

authority extended to said Commissioners Court by Texas Law, and such findings are made upon

Order of Commissioners Court Approving TxDOT Grant Page 1

165



due inquiry and satisfactory proof that such findings are factual and based upon commonly
accepted practices and standards by Texas Counties:

IT IS THE FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT that the county has
experience in the construction and maintenance of all county roads currently in the County road
maintenance inventory, and that the county has suitable equipment, experience and personnel to
properly repair such roads without the utilization of outside contractors, or, if such contractors
are required in the prudent expenditure of county and grant funds, that such contractors will be
selected upon demonstrated competence and the lowest and most suitable bid, if competitive
bidding is required. In this regard, the County has suitable design standards, specifications and
quality assurance procedures in place to assure that resulting road maintenance projects are
properly constructed with suitable materials and that appropriate safety and environmental
procedures will be utilized. The County Representative is hereby expressly authorized to certify
to such.

IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT  that
Jefferson County will utilize generally accepted cost accounting practices in the financial aspects
of this grant administration, and that proper documentation of all expenditures will be maintained
by the appropriate county officials responsible for financial aspects of the grant administration.
The County Representative is hereby expressly authorized to certify to such.

IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT that with
the following exceptions, all road right-of-way involved in projects identified for funding under
this grant is presently within the county road maintenance inventory, and no new right of way,
except as noted, is required:

(If new right of way is required, please describe here, i.e. the width of the right of
way to be acquired, and a legal description of the new right of way. Please note that
acquisition of right of way may require legal and environmental assessment, along with
care to insure that all acquisition procedures required by law are followed.)

The County Representative is hereby expressly authorized to certify to such.

IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT
that Jefferson County will notify all public utilities, water supply corporations, and common
carriers of record of their plans to repair, renovate or construct the project roads identified in the

Grant application, and will cooperate with the said utilities and common carriers for protection of
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such infrastructure. It is not anticipated that any relocation of utilities will be required. The
County Representative is hereby expressly authorized to certify to such.

IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT pursuant
to 40 C.F.R. §1500, and specifically §1508.4 et seq, and 33 U.S.C. §1344, (f)(1)(B) and (C),
county road maintenance projects are not prohibited by the National Environmental Protection
Act (NEPA), nor the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Act, and that as a categorical
exclusion, such projects pose no significant effect on the human or natural environment, and
which this Court finds to have no such adverse impact, and therefore do not require an
environmental impact assessment of the projects contemplated in this grant, in that no federal
funds are being used by the County in meeting the grant requirements. The County shall comply
with applicable state environmental standards, as applicable, such as 30 TAC §111.147, and as
such, this finding further authorizes the County Representative to make certifications regarding
compliance with environmental requirements of the Grant, which is expressly approved by this
Commissioners Court.

IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT that as a
public roadway, open to all residents for use as a public road designed for vehicular traffic, as
defined by statute and other applicable law, that the road projects subject to this grant are in full
compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards and the Americans with Disabilities access
standards, as the same may apply, and the County Representative is hereby expressly authorized
to certify to such.

Finally, IT IS THE FURTHER FINDING OF THIS COMMISSIONERS COURT
that where necessary, any materials required for the completion of this project shall be solicited
by a standard that is known to be suitable for use in road construction and repair projects, and the
County will require such testing as may be deemetl appropriate to determine that such materials
meet any applicable standards, either by specification or by direct inquiry with the provider or
vendor of such materials. The County Representative is hereby expressly authorized to certify to

such.
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ATTACHMENT B

Amount of Grant Award and Funding Commitments

County of: Jefferson
Amount of Grant Funds Awarded by State: $ 1,140,125
Minimum amount of County Matching Funds*: $ 285,031

* The State Share will be 90% for counties determined to be “economically disadvantaged”
by Transportation Code 222.053. These counties will have a minimum of 10% county
matching funds. The State Share will be 80% for counties not determined to be
“economically disadvantaged” by Transportation Code 222.053. These counties will have a
minimum of 20% matching funds.
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AGENDA ITEM June 9, 2014

Consider, and possibly approve, a Resolution authorizing the County Judge and
Patrick Swain to execute Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form
for Texas Community Development Block Grant Program and receive and file
same.(Cheek Community Project Phase 4 Contract No. 713250.)



COUNTY COMMISSIONER

PRECINCT 4
MARIO WATKINS P. 0. Box 4025 KENNETH MINKINS
Executive Assistant Beaumont, Texas 77704-4025 Superintendent
Precinct 4 — Service Center
TO: Hon. Jeff Branick
County Judge
FROM: Commissioner Everefte
DATE: June 3, 2014
RE: Cheek Sewer Project Phase IV

Please place this item on the Agenda for Monday, June 9, 2014:

Consider and approve a Resolution of Jefferson County, Texas authorizing the submission of the
Depository/Authorized Signatories Form from the Texas Department of Agriculture CDBG
Program (Cheek Community Project Phase 4 Contract No. 713250).

Please also find attached Form A202 Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation
Form for the County Judge and County Auditor to sign. This is not an agenda item.

Thank you.

cc: Mr. Patrick Swain, County Auditor

EA/nr

Jefferson County Courthouse 1149 Pearl Street 4™ Floor  Beaumont, Texas 77701
Office: (409) 835-8443 Facsimile: (409) 784-5803
Service Center 7780 Boyt Road « Beaumont, Texas 77713
Phone: (409) 434-5400 Facsimile: (409) 794-2167

http://www.co.jefferson.tx. us/pretd/index.html



A202

Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form
TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM
DEPOSITORY/AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES DESIGNATION FORM

Grant Recipient JEFFERSON COUNTY TxCDBG Contract No. 713250

The individuals listed below are designated by resolution as authorized signatories for contractual
documents.

Jeff Branick Patrick Swain
(Name) (Name)
County Judge County Auditor
(Title) (Title)
(Signature) (Signature)

In addition to the individuals listed above, the individuals listed below are designated by resolution as
authorized signatories for the Request for Payment Form (Form A203)—(At least two (2) signatories
required).

(Name) (Name)
(Title) (Title)
(Signature) (Signature)
(Name) (Name)
(Title) (Title)
(Signature) (Signature)

NOTE: A copy of a Resolution passed by the city council or county commissioner’s court authorizing the
signatories must be submitted along with this form. Grant Recipients are strongly encouraged to use the

sample resolution provided.
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RESOLUTION

STATE OF TEXAS § COMMISSIONERS’ COURT
§

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON § OF JEFFERSON COUNTY,

TEXAS

A RESOLUTION REGARDING AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES FOR THE TEXAS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM CONTRACT BLOCK GRANT FROM
THE OFFICE OF RURAL COMMUNITY AFFAIRS.

A RESOLUTION OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION
OF THE DEPOSITORY/AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES DESIGNATION FORM; AND
AUTHORIZING County Judge Jeff Branick and County Auditor Patrick Swain TO ACT AS
THE COUNTY'S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL
MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County desires to develop a viable community, including decent housing
and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons
of low-to-moderate income; and

WHEREAS, certain conditions exist which represent a threat to the public health and safety; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of Jefferson County to accept funding under
the CDBG Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners Court of Jefferson County:

1. That a Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form is hereby authorized to be filed on
behalf of the County to the Texas Department of Agriculture.

2. That Jefferson County directs and designates Judge Jeff Branick and County Auditor Patrick
Swain as the County's Chief Executive Officer and Authorized Representative to act in all matters
in connection with this form and the County’s participation in the Community Development
Block Grant Program.

SIGNED this day of ,2014.

JEFF R. BRANICK

County Judge
EDDIE ARNOLD MICHAEL S. SINEGAL
Commissioner Precinct No. 1 Commissioner Precinct No. 3
BRENT A. WEAVER EVERETTE D. ALFRED

Commissioner Precinct No. 2 Commissioner Precinct No. 4
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AGENDA ITEM June 9, 2014

Consider, possibly approve a Resolution for Jefferson County to
transfer to the West Jefferson County Municipal Water District to

assets constructed with Texas Community Development Grant
funds for Hurricane Disaster Recovery.
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STATE OF TEXAS COMMISSIONERS’ COURT

§
§
§

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

BE IT REMEMBERED at a meeting of Commissioners’ Court of Jefferson County, Texas,

held on the day of , 2014, on motion made by .
Commissioner of Precinct No. , and seconded by , Commissioner of
Precinct No. , the following Resolution was adopted:

West Jefferson County Municipal Water District Assets

BE IT RESOLVED that Jefferson County certifies that it applied for and received grant funds for
disaster recovery from the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program to be administered by
the County ; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Jefferson County, Texas has authorized the County Judge,
Jeff R. Branick, to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate these grant funds; and

WHEREAS, these grant funds were utilized by the West Jefferson County Municipal Water District to
construct a new water tank, approximately 36,000feet of new water lines and related new infrastructure
and which are described on Exhibit “A” ( attached and incorporated herein) within their district to
facilitate this recovery program; and

WHEREAS, it was always the intention of Jefferson County and West Jefferson County MWD (the
District) that the District would own, manage and maintain this new infrastructure for the District; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Commissioners Court now formally transfer this new infrastructure
to the District to be included in their inventory.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Commissioners Court of Jefferson County, Texas
does hereby transfer all interest in and to the new water tank, water lines and related infrastructure which
were constructed, within the District with grant funds administered by the County, to the West Jefferson
County Municipal Water District to be hereafter owned and maintained by the District.

Signed this of ,2014.

JUDGE JEFF R. BRANICK

County Judge
COMMISSIONER EDDIE ARNOLD COMMISSIONER MICHAEL S. SINEGAL
Precinct No. 1 Precinct No. 3
COMMISSIONER BRENT A. WEAVER COMMISSIONER EVERETTE D. ALFRED

Precinet No. 2 Precinet No. 4
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TAPPING SADDLE AND WATER METER W/VALVE BOX EA. 10 Voniss e e A - e
FAR SIDE SERVICES INCLUDING 2" SERVICE LINE, 2 i
37 ! 450, i : . X
TAPPING SADDLE AND 2" WATER METER W/VALVE BOX_| EA. 2 00 s 200 | % $ e
"610" LIME STONE ROCK COMPACTED IN PLACE FOR
e=3g 3
ROCK/DIAT DRIVEWAYS - TRUCK MEASURE - T 48.00 116.81 A 11681 | § s 5,606.88
“* 39 FINAL CLEAN UP LF. 34,090 0,25 34,090.00 | 34,090.00 | § - I8 8,522.50
. TRACER WIRE, TEXDOT ROW ONLY (LABOR, MATERIAL &
40 s v 0.23 ! ! - 29180
INSTALLATION) LE, 12,687 2 12,687.00 12,687.00 | § $ 1
41 WATER VALVE MARKING POSTS EA 46 30.00 46.00 46.00 | S - 15 1,380.00
APCO MODEL 200 - 2* AIR RELEASE VALVE WITH
42 ,250. 4 k - 7,500
MANHOLE, INCLUDING FRAME AND COVER £A 6 3409 i 600 | 3 3 e
MATTING THROUGH WETLAND AREAS AS PERSPECIAL i
43 8. ] { . ,280.
PROVISION # 46 LF, 660 b it 660.00 | $ $ 528000
ASPHALT ROAD REPAIR COMPLETE IN PLACE ACCORDING “
a4 ! _ : . 940,
T( SPECIAL PROVISION # 49 sy, 407 200 497.00 497.00 | 5 i
TPDES STORM WATER PERMIT INCLUDING
45 INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, MONITERING, LS. i 7,000.00 1.00 1.00}$ S 7,000.00
REPQRTING AND REMQVA), .
=* 45 MANHOURS HOUR 34 45.00 34.00 | 34.00 | 5 R E 1,530.00
= 47 TRUCK HOURS HOUR 28 17.00 28.00 | 28.00 | $ K 476.00
T BACK HOE / LOADER HOUR HOUR 28 70.00 28.00 | 28.00 | 6 g 1,960.00
s 49 CEMENT STABILIZED SAND BACKFILL TON [0 25.00 e P £ B E :
=< 50 EXTRA CLASS-A CONCRETE - BULK CY. 8 90.00 8.00 | 80035 K 720.00
se gy EXTRACLASS-A CONCRETE - FORMED cY. 8 £0.00 8.00 | B.00 | ¢ B 640.00
. UNSPECIFIED DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS PRICE PER POUND I
52 INSTALLED i k5 1.40 959.00 § 959,00 | $ - s 3,260.60
MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION AS PER SPECIAL i
53 . )
PROVISION ¥ 51 & % 26,000.00 1.00 1001$ $ 2600000
. REMOVE EXISTING BOARD FENCE AND REPLACE WITH
54 5.00 - “ $ - s -
NEW MATERIAL LF. 0
REMOVE EXISTING BARBED WIRE FENCE AND REPLACE
TTEs 2.50 - - 08 - s .
WITH NEW MATERIAL LF. 0 = :
TOTAL WORK DONE THIS ESTIMATE s »

Page 2
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_ OV AHKS [LROVEE] wonniwoc (T T
Project: Waterline to 8oondacks Road Nelghborhood Jeffersan County PO : 52090 ‘.
m : 2/560 feed Tom! /9wl

Owner: Jefferson County
Coptractor: Williamson Construction & Equipment, Inc

DATE: 5
WORKDONE | WORK DONE |WORKDONETO| TOTAL THIS
; ITEM uNIT
NP PREVIOUSLY | THIS ESTIMATE DATE pEgion. f T PRIGNE *
10" PVC WATERLINESDR-26 CLASS-160 INCLUDING TRENCH ErEa =
i 1 ZTo -5 g LF. S 13,30 20,735 | | 20,735 | § - |$ 27577550
8" PVCWWATERLINE SDR-26 CLASS-160 INCLUDING TRENCH . / e |
2 SYSTEM CUT O = 50— oo Lf. p\\. 10820 |S 11.30 10,820 § - 10,820 | $ - 1§ 122,266.00
6" PVC JVATERLINE SDR-26 CLASS-160 (NCLUDING TRENCH [~ i :
ETs e i -
” e ——————— LEgt” 10905 |$ 9.95 10,905 s 10,905 | $ S 108,504.75
i 2" PVC WATERLINE SDR-26 CLASS-160 INCLUDING TRENCH
vt lsarerysystEmcuro- s ik 2 \ 20.00 - |3 - s .
i
DIRECTIONAL BORE AT TAYLORS BAYOU CROSSING: FOR 12"
< 5 |WATERLINE INCLUDING “TRENCH SAFETY", 12“ HDPEDR-11 | LF. 72.00 475 1S - s 34,200.00
CARRIER PIPE AND TRANSITION COUPLINGS
|DIRECTIONAL BORE AT HIGHWAY-73 CROSSING: PIPE-IN-PIPE
FOR 12" WATERLINE INCLUDING "TRENCH SAFETY", 12"
®  |HDPEDR:11 CARRIER PIPE AND TRANSITION COUPLINGS e Azodn =als = [§ sk
W/HDPE-DR 17 CASING PIPE
DIRECTIONAL BORE AT DD6 DITCH CROSSING ALONG OLD T >
’ BIGHILL RD: PIPE-IN-PIPE FOR 12" WATERLINE INCLUDING =
% 7 |“TRENCH SAFETY", 12" HDPE DR-11 CARRIER PIPE AND LF. % .W\J»R&. “ 100 £ 3 - |§ 1200000
TRANSITION COUPLINGS W/HDPE-DR 17 CASING PIPE &wﬁ\\&»ﬁ% &/ %\Q\\\.ﬁ,‘\ o &\ .& s \g rf
% 8 |ROADWAY/DRIVEWAY BORE FOR 2" WATERLINE LF. ( 70 [$ 2000 i o mls A- [$.. 140000 .
o 9 |ROADWAY/DRIVEWAY BORE FOR 6" WATERLINE LF. 3 |ls 3200 B T 3148 2 mA 10,048,00 &‘w\
10 |ROADWAY/DRIVEWAY BORE FOR 8" WATERLINE LE. 160 |5 42.00 160 | $ - |3 “~evaolgo |
% 11 |ROADWAY/DRIVEWAY BORE FOR 10" WATERLINE LF. - 332 |§ 5500 3323 - Is Hm.nmpod.\\\/i\
** 12 |ROADWAY BORE & CASING FOR 10" WATER LINE LF. 105 |§ 7500 105 | § - s 7,875.00
* 13 |10" D.1./M.L. PLUG RESTRAIN W/ "MEGA-LUGS" EA, s |s 26000 BE - s 1,300.00
14 [8"D.L/M.J, PLUG RESTRAIN W/ "MEGA-LUGS" EA. 1 [$ 30000 1[s B 300.00
sk 15 |6 D.L/M,J. PLUG RESTRAIN W/ “MEGA-LUGS" EA. 8 |$  150.00 8ls - s 1,200.00
% 16 |10"%10"x10" P.L/M.J. TEE RESTRAIN W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 5 |$  sooo0 515 - s 4,000.00
- 17 |10x10"« 8" D.I/M.J. TEE RESTRAIN W/ MEGA-LUGS EA, 4 |s 70000 4] - s 2,800.00
18 [8"x8"x 6" D.L/M.J. TEE RESTRAIN W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 2 |$ 60000 B B E 1,200.00
19 |6"x6"x6" TEE MJ.-D.I. W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 2 |$  600.00 B - s 1,200.00
" [ E BOX - .
R _ﬂw GATE VALVE W/ VALVE BOX - AMERICAN 2506, CRS, O.1/[ - S P 2714 I PR
- o m._ “mﬁm VALVE W/ VALVE BOX - AMERICAN 2506, CRS, D.L/ | PN P—— als ~ ls o
“GATE VALVE W/ VALVE BOX - AMERICAN 2506, CRS, D.1.,
8 2 N__wﬂ HAREEV VALY BEECADHER, i, 1 EA. 10 |$  825.00 10($ - |s 8,250.00
23 |10"x8" RED, M.1-D.l, W/MEGA-LUGS EA. 1 |$ 35000 HE B E 350.00
. 24 |8“x6" RED. M.J.-D.l. W/MEGA-LUGS EA. 6 |5 30000 AE - Is 1,800,00
25 [10°x6* RED. M.J.-D.l. W/MEGA-LUGS EA. 1 |$ 30000 1]s B 300,00
26 |10°%8" CROSS M.1-D.l. W/MEGA-LUGS EA. 1 |s 1,500.00 B - s 1,500.00
27 |6" CROSS M.J.-D.I. W/MEGA-LUGS EA. 1 |s 60000 13 A 500.00
% 28 |6"45 DEG. BEND M.J.-D.l. W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 22 |$ 22500 214 - |3 4,950.00
@ 29 [8"22.5 DEG. BEND M.J.-D.I. W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 0 [$ 22500 - N A ;
% 30 |8"11.25DEG. BEND M.L-D.I. W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 0 |$ 22500 . BRE - s -
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MONTHLY INVOICE

Project: Waterline to Boondocks Road Neighborhood

Owner: Jefferson County

Jefferson County PO : 52090
Bid Package: IFB 11-052/KJS

Contractor: Williamson Canstruction & Equipment, Inc.
DATE: INVOICE NO.: :
WORK DONE | WORK DONE | WORK DONETO| TOTAL THIS
NO. ITEM UNIT | QuUANTITY | uNIT PRICE
= PREVIOUSLY | THIS ESTIMATE | DATE PERIOD | OTALTODATE
*% @ 31 |6"11.25 DEG. BEND M.J-D.l. W/ MEGALUGS EA 1 |s 20000 1[s . 200.00
% 32 |10"22.5 DEG. BEND MJ-D.\. W/ MEGALUGS A 0 |s 30000 . - I8 - Is .
@ 33 |10" 11.25 DEG. BEND M.1.-D.J. W/ MEGA-LUGS EA. 0 |$ 30000 : 1S 1 -
STANDARD FIRE HYDRANT UNIT - RESTRAIN W/ "ME
*s M et sr.wquur {HanER EA. 70 |$ 310000 70 2008 . |s  217,00000
[REMOVE EXIST. 10" PLUG AND CONNECT PROPOSED 107
x 35 |WATERLINE TO EXISTING 10" WATERLINE Ls. 3 |'s 150000 3 s . |s 450000
MATERIALS & LABOR ‘
CONNECT EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO PROPOSED 107 -
36 |WATERLINE INCLUDING 10"X1" SADDLE, CORPORATION EA. 14 |$ 60000 14 14 - |s 840000
STOP & CURB STOP ,
CONNECT EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO PROPOSEDE | 1 | T T
% 37 |WATERLNE INCLUDING 6"X1" SADDLE, CORPORATION STOP | E.A, 12 |$ 30000 12 12]s - |s 360000
& CURB STOP
CONNECT EXIST. 2" WATERLINE TO PROP. 10" WATERLINE
38 |INCLUDING TAP&SADDLE AND VALVE LS. 1 |$ 180000 1 1l - |s 180000
SHEET 10 OF 47)
CONNECT EXIST. 2" WATERLINE TO PROP. 10" WATERLINE
39 |INCLUDING TAP&SADDLE, ROADWAY BORE FOR 2* Ls. 1 |$ 350000 1) 1] - |s 350000
\WATERLINE, TEE D.1.-M.. AND COUPLINGS (SHEET 08 OF 47) :
NEAR SIDE SERVICES INCLUDING 17 SERVICE LINE W/WATER . i
* Ak +* . L
* 0 1METER, METER BOX & APPURTENANCES EA 2 I3 40000 = 7215 $  28800.00
FAR SIDE SERVICES INCLUDING 1" SERVICE LINE W/WATER ]
*& N -
41 | \ETER, METER BOX & APPURTENANCES il =2 | diene % 215 3 3520000
% 42 |10"X1" SADDLES EA. %6 |$ 12000 26 %S s 31000
% 43 |8"X1" SADDLES EA 0 |$ 7500 40 203 Is 300000
5 44 W._xu_. SADDLES EA 8 s 50.00 38 | 38|$ - 1S 1,900.00
"§10" LIME STONE ROCK LOOSE DUMP AND SPREAD &
£33 N ; f - §
*> _|THICK FOR ROCK/DIRT DRIVEWAYS 1 w g T | i LA
*+ & 46 |FINALCLEAN UP LF. 42085 |5 040 42,085 | 42,085 | $ ~ s az08s0
v+ o a7 |TRACERWIRE (LABOR, MATERIAL & INSTALLATION] TXBOT | | - i e - mom iy S Ry
ROW ONLY
= 48 | WATER VALVE MARKING POSTS EA 47 |5 4000 47 47| - |s 188000
3" AR RELEASE VALVE (APCO MODEL-200] WITH MANFOLE,
49 | NCLUDING FRAME AND COVER EA 2 [¥ umm ¢ o Ak SR
“* & 50 |MANHOURS HOUR 80 |s 2000 805 ~ |s 160000
** o 51 |TRUCKHOURS HOUR I E 20.00 - - s - s -
#% & 52 |BACK HOE / LOADER HOUR HOUR 0 |s 3000 : A I :
#* @ 53 |CEMENT STABILIZED SAND BACKFILL TON 0 |s 2500 - - 1 I ;
** 4 54 |EXTRA CLASS-A CONCRETE - BULK Y. 0 1§ 7500 ; S A .
** & 55 |EXTRACLASS-A CONCRETE - FORMED cv. 0 |s  1oo00 ; 1 B g
UNSPECIFIED DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS PRICE PER POUND )
Kk o . . o i
* 56 | NsTALLED LB 500 |% 1.00 500 500 | § $ 500,00
NPDES STORM WATER PERMIT INCLUDING INSTALLATION,
57 |MAINTENANCE, MONITERING, REPORTING AND REMOVAL | = e 1fs ©f¥ 4as0000
ASPHALT ROAD REPAIR COMPLETE IN PLACE ACCORDING 10
# 58 |uspeCciAL PROVISION # 41" A ¢ j° m $ ?
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MONTHLY INVOICE # 12 final AIA DOCUMENT G702 (instructions on reverse side) Page one of one Pages
TO OWNER; Jefferson County, TX PROJECT: 200.000 Elevated Water Storage Tank APPLICATION NO.: 12 Eﬂ.ﬁ_
1149 Pearl Street TDRA - DR5010218 Period FROM: 11172013 Distribution {o:
Beaumont, TX 77704 GLO - 10-5291-000-5299 PERIOD TO: 12/6/2013 H OWNER
P.C. No. 55110 Eng PROJECT NO:  dp 110-37 - ARCHITECT
Ix |conTRACTOR
X |ENGINEER
FROM CONTRACTOR: Maguire Iron, Inc. VIA ENGINEER; d.p. Consulting Engineers, Inc. CONTRACT DATE:  10/19/2012 .
P.O. Box 1445 3727 Doctors Drive Calender Days: 341 |
Sioux Falls, SD 57101-1446 Port Asthur, TX 77642 Calender Days Used: 341

CONTRACT FOR: Elevated Water Reservoir Construction

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract.
Continuation Sheet, AlA Document G702, is attached.

5

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM...
2. Net Change by Change O_dm..m
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE A_.Sm .u + mv
4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO Ub.wm:.
(Column G on G703)

5. RETAINAGE:

0% of Completed Work

(Columns D + E on G703)

b. Maintenance Guarantee Fund $ -
(Column F on G703)

Total Retainage (Line 5a + Sbor

Total in Column | of G703)... .

6. TOTAL EARNED LESS mmdp_z\ymm

{Line 4 less Line 5 Total)

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

(Line 6 from prior Certificate)...

8. CURRENT PAYMENT acm .

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, _ZOchZQ Wm._..ZZb,Om

(Line 3 less Line 6) 3 =

$ 861,895.00

$ 861.895.00
$ 861,895.00

$ -
$ 861,895.00

$ 772,425.00
$  89,470.00

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS |DEDUCTIONS

Total changes approved in

previous months by Owner $ -

Total approved this Month $ - 3 -
TOTALS | - 5 -

NET CHANGES by Change Order $ -

CONTRACTQR; GUIRE IRON, INC.

Date: \ 4 |®.\\ W

By:

oue B 5T

OWNER'S APPROVAL: Jefferson County

By Date:

7

Aol o) 3] S/895 &
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/y/g,y oz
/ K

.

Schedule of Values
PROJECT 200,000 Elevated Water Storage Tank WORK COMPLETED TO:  12/6/2013
APPLICATION NO.: 12 Final
Eng PROJECT NO: dp 110-37
ITEM Scheduled Unit Unit Contract Work Compieted Total C: and
NO. Description of Work Quantity Prica ef Total Previous Requasts (E This Requaost (F) Stored Malerials (G Stored to Date (E+F+G) %

(A ) {8) (C) {D) Me. Cuanlity Amount Quantity Amount Quantity | Amount | Quantity Amaount Completed

1 f {Mobilzation and Demokilzation 1 $50,000.00 LS $50.000.00 1 $50,000,00 0 $0.00 50.00 1 $50.000.00 | 100.00%

2 \ [Clear end Grub Site 1 $10.000.00 LS $10.000.00 1 $10.000.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 $10,000.00 | 100.00%
3} [200.000 Elevated Water Starage Tank

/ a|Dravings, Bonas, Insurance 1 $50,000.00 LS $50,000.00 1 $50,000.00 [ $0.00 50.00 1 _$50,000.00 | 100.00%

b|Foundation 1 $335,200,00 LS $335,200.00 1 $335,200.00 Q 50.00 $0.,00 1 $335.200.00 | 100.00%

¢|Steel Reteipt 1 $53,724.00 LS $53,724.00 1 $53,724.00 Q 50.00 $0,00 1 $53.724.00 | 100.00%

d|Fabrcation/Steel Delivery 1 $102,981.00 LS $102,981.00 1 $102,981.00 0 50.00 $0.00 1 $102,981.00 | 100.00%

o |Fleld Erection 1 $75.000.00 LS $75,000.00 1 $75,000.00 0 $0.00 £0.00 1 $75,000.00 | 100,00%

| t[Fietd Palating 1 $80,000.00 Ls $80,000.00 1 $80,000.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 $80,000.00 | 100.00%

%, q[Field Electrical 1 $31,095.00 LS $31,095.00 1 $31,095.00 0 $0.00 £0.00 1 $31,095.00 | 100.00%

*4 Yard Plping 115 $50,00 LF $5,750.00 115 $5,750.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 115 $6,750.00 100.00%

Manifold Plping 1 §20,000.00 LS $20,000.00 1 $20,000.00 a $0.00 $0.00 1 $20,000.00 | 100.00%

€ 30" Concrete Culvert C 76 40 $200,00 LF $8,000.00 40 $8 000.00 a $0.00 $0.00 40 $8,000.00 | 100.00%

7 ~nm_..8 W/Double Swing Gata Opening 745 $15.00 LF $11,920.00 745 $11,920.00 0 $0.00 50.00 745 $11,920.00 | 100.00%

] Double Swing Gate 1 $1,000,00 LS $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 $1,000.00 100.00%

g 1 $2,000.00 LS $2,000.00 1 $2.000.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 $2,000.00 | 100.00%

[i] 150 $50.00 Ton $7,500.60 150 §7,500.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 150 $7,500.00 | 100.00%

11 1 $1,000.60 LS $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 ) $0.00 $0.00 1 $1,000.00 | 100.00%

2 10 $50.00 HR _§500.00 0 $0.00 10 $500.00 $0.00 10 £500.60 100.00%

5 $75.00 HR $375.00 [ $0.00 5 $375.00 $0.00 5 $375.00 100.00%

5 $75.00 HR §375.00 0 $0.00 5 $375.00 $0.00 5 $375.00 100.00%

15 [Bulk Concrete Class - A 300078t 10 $150.00 cY $1.500.00 a $0.00 10 $1.500.00 $0.00 10 $1.500.00 | 100.00%

16 |Extra Class - A Concrete Formed 5 $200.00 cY $1,000.00 1.19 $238.00 3.81 $762.00 $0.00 5 $1,000.00 | 100.00%

17___|Reinforcing Stael 200 $1.00 L8 $200.00 &7 $67.00 133 §133.00 $0.00 200 $200.00 100.00%

| _AtB - |2 Thick Hot-Mix Asphalt Driveway Surface 1 $12.775.00 LS $12.775.00 1 $12,775.00 ¢ $0.00 $0.00 1 $12.775.00 | 100.00%

SUB TOTAL OR TOTAL $857,885,00 $858,250.00 $3,645.00 50.00 $861,895.00 100%

Page 1ol

* See changs order No. 6 & Final for quantity adjustments

Jelferson County, TX - Pay Application 12 Final




Ron Westphal _

From: Ron Westphal <ronaldw®@co.jefferson.tx.us>
Sent: Monday, June 02, 2014 9:06 AM .
To: 'Commissioner Brent Weaver - Precinct No. 2'; 'Commissioner Eddie Arnold - Precinct

No. 1'; 'Commissioner Everette Alfred - Precinct No. 4'; 'Commissioner Michael Sinegal -
Precinct No. 3'; "County Judge Jeff Branick’; Kenneth Minkins; 'Mario Watkins, Prct 4
Asst.; 'Mark Redwine, Prct.3 Foreman'; 'Mike Trahan, Prct 2 Foreman'; 'Robbie Griffith,
. Prct 1 Foreman' et

Subject: Plat of Cutter's Ridge - Prct #1 - BMT ETJ

’

Attachments: Cutters Ridge - BMT ETJ.pdf
Gentlemen,

Attached is a plat of Cutter’s Ridge, located off of Brooks Road in Precinct No. 1, this property also lies in the Beaumont
ETI.

This plat meets all of the County requirements and | will be placing | on the agenda for Monday, Jupe 08, 2014.
If you have any questions regarding this plat please contact me.
Sincerely,

Ron Westphal

Ronald Westphal

Jefferson County Engineering
1149 Pearl 5th Floor
Beaumont, TX 77701

Offc. 409 835-8584

Fax. 409 835-8718

email: ronaldw@co.jefferson.ix.us



RICH WITH OPPORTUNITY

BEAUMON

e E X <« A-+S

May 28, 2014
PD#- 026/14

RON WESTPHAL

JEFFERSON COUNTY ENGINEERING
1149 PEARL 5TH FL

BEAUMONT TX 77701

ETJ plat
Dear Mr. Westphal:

Please see the enclosed minor plat of Cutters Ridge Estate. This plat is located in the City of
Beaumont’s ETJ (extra-territorial jurisdiction) and was therefore submitted to my office under
the “one stop” agreement with the county. Please place this plat on the County Commissioner’s
agenda at your earliest convenience.

If you have any questions or I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.
My office is located in City Hall at 801 Main St., my phone number is 409-880-3764 or you can
email me at Irideau(@ci.beaumont.tx.us

Thank you,
Leslie Rideau -
Planner I ' 5262720

Planning Division e (409) 880-3764 e Fax (409) 880-3133

P.O. Box 3827 e Beaumont, Texas 77704-3827
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NCI OR FORMERLY 3 e
: ACHALL GAUS 3 = 3 ¥ anes ST
CALLED 23500 ACRES E
CLERKS FLE > H —_—

g NO , - 3
FOWND 1/2° FOUND 1/2". 2007023343 JCRP.R. 5 895625 E 661.03 Founn 1/2° FELIX 5T
- :Eanm“./, IRON Fohy - (CALLED 5 298°25" £ 681.07) o 1o
nosﬂo..ﬁﬂmﬁoz M peuy4' L renmy VALEN RD
KNUW ALL MEN BY THISE PRESENTS, THAT EL} E EVAHS AND BINH THUONHG LLIOWG, OWHERS OF LOT 10 & LOT 38,
CUTTERS RDGE ESTATES, JEFTERSON COUNTY, TEXS AS COMIEYED To M, £ E WS, BY CLERKS PLE 1o, 2008016450 SBECT
.CRPR. AND AS COMVEYED TO ME. D3 THUOWG LUONG, BY CLERK'S FILE HO. 2012017 365 JLRPR., DO HERERY Bz
SUBDIVIDE LOT 1A AND LOT A, CUTTERS RDGE ESTATES, 0 BE Ioiovn AS LOT 10 & LOT 30, CUTTERS RIDGE ESTATES,
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAT SIOWM HEREDN, SUBJECT T0 ANY AND ALL FASEMENTS OR RESTRCTIONS -
WERETD FORE GRANTED AND DO WERCHY DEDICATE T0 THE PUBLIC AND EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREDN, H oy,
@
Z e o
7 pur}
WITNESS A1Y HAND, THIS N.mhpiom 294 a2 dd BROOKS RD 7 __w j.ﬁ.
o — : o
Ll E EVANS — OWHER LDT 34 5 ) m
i [
R E
B B e s 1 - a0 2k ;
BEFORE ME. THE UNDERSIGED AUTHORTY, DM T P EARED 5
KDL TOUE T B PERSCI WHOSE HALEE IS SUESTED T0VTHE. FORCO0HG, HSTRUMENT AND Sgg
ACKHOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FORt THE PURPOSES AND COMSIDERATION THEREN STATED. LOT 38 w
oV MY HAID AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS THE =
oy g} | XN 3 11.24 ACRES ’ m )
g 10368 BRODKS RD .mmw' &
o = X
WM N 8952'00° E 152.13" W_ a%u
o o1 roeuLy e a &
CALLED 1390 ACRES luth 5 . (")
CLERK'S FILE e ..am st o T
RERAR. mm 8 VICINITY MAP
=z 2
S N.T.S.
NOW OR FORMERLY
Mm N CALED a2z AcRES
= > CLERKS FRLE No.
u . ‘erazs AN AMENDED MINOR PLAT OF
m LOT 1A & LOT 3A
BEFORE ME. THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSOHALLY APREARED fEhi THUONT 1ugHn % UTTERS EST
UM 1D e To 8 PERSON WIOSE A s SUBSCREED TO THE FOREGONG DESTRUDIT 20 2 S G RIDGE ATES
ﬂuﬁoﬁ.._._..unna THAT mﬁqﬂ_dm!ﬁ:MM FURPOSES AHD CONSIERATION THERENI STATED. o . b (CLERK'S FILE NO. 2012016507, JC.RPR)
MY H oF POST
R 1 1D P ST OF OFFCE TIES THE M_\wﬁh\n 1o Eomn sl JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
h 5 8§9%52°00" W 295.50
o (CALLED 5 e9aroo” w 302.50)
in
g Sk INTO
S| LoT 1B |28
Z | 249 ACRES J”
UL LD SURVEYOR I THE STATE OF TEXAS CERTIFY THAT THIS PUT HAS 10316 B mmbWr _lo.._l._wmn—lo.._.. wm
BE] PREPAED R AND. ACTUAL SURVEY O1f e GRoUNG D, THAT AL CORICRS WERE FOUN) O SET AS NOTED AiD R
TIWT UG PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS SAD SURVEY O M
& o g i 7| JREIEI p—— CUTTERS RIDGE ESTATES
i3 CALLID 207 ACRES CALLED 207 ACRES
,.vnu ¥ i -1 Sp cERib | oum i o JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
1RON RoD mw 2003065005 PAGE 343
TH0S ReGSTRATON NG, 47 mmmmmum W ano&. @
CALLED 5 893WI6" W 150.08° f ' SUBYDRHOTES:
s -5 8959°26" W |75.79 1, THE FURPOSE_OF TS AMEVOED LINOR PLAT 15 T0 BICREASE TUE AOT SOE OF LT 14
NOW Of FORMERLY m \‘ (CALLD 3. 2020207 Wy 72200 u“ m—.u-wlm WAS COMPLETED WITHOUT A EREDE%E EASEMENTS AND ﬂd’rw ENCUMBRANCES
F.an__nhﬁhu.t...e%am. 3 gﬂv. EXsT OH ’.uwnxuv.sn.r:z. hm:.%ﬁﬁﬂo:dﬁ PLAT. .
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: June 4, 2014

TO: Honorable Judge Jeff Branick
Commissioner Eddie Arnold
Commissioner Brent Weaver
Commissioner Michael Sinegal
Commissioner Everette “Bo” Alfred

FROM:; Mark Dubois

RE: Inter-local Agreement with Cities of Beaumont and Port Arthur on asset
sharing of the 2014 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program Award

Please consider and approve an Inter-local Agreement between Jefferson County, and the
Cities of Beaumont and Port Arthur itemizing asset sharing to be received from the 2014
Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program Award. The Jefferson County Sheriff’s
Office will receive $18,241 in grant funding from this program this year and will require
no county matching funds, Total received by all agencies is $121,604.

This grant is based on annual crime statistics and is awarded to the law enforcement
agencies in each county. The City of Beaumont is required to be the host applicant due to
the size of the city and crime rate. Jefferson County receives a negotiated additional

- portion of the funding allocated to the cities within the county as a result of providing the
Correctional Facility, Crime Laboratory, warrant service, and extradition of offenders.
The funding will be utilized by the Sheriff’s Office for funding technology enhancement
within the department.

The attached ILA is for your review only. Kelvin Wilson with BPD will deliver the
original to be signed after Court and City Council’s approval,

Should you need further information please call,
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Resolution No.

The State of Texas i
County of Jefferson o
City of Beaumont, Texas K Know All by These Present

City of Port Arthur, Texas |

Inter-Local Agreement
Between the County of Jefferson, Texas; City of Beaumont, Texas; and City of Port Arthur, Texas
2014 Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program Award

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 2014, by and between
The County of Jefferson, Texas acting by and through its governing body, the Commissioners
Court; the City of Beaumont, Texas acting by and through its governing body, the City Council;
and the City of Port Arthur, Texas acting by and through its governing body, the City Council,
witnesseth:

WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in paying for the performance of
governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or those payments from current revenues
legally available to that party: and

WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the best interests of all
parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division of costs fairly compensates the
performing party for the services or functions under this agreement: and

WHEREAS, the total funding allocation is $121,604; and the City of Beaumont, Texas, and the City of Port
Arthur, Texas, agree to provide Jefferson County, Texas $18,241 from the JAG award and the City of
Beaumont, Texas, and the City of Port Arthur, Texas agree to allocate the remaining funds as follows:

$70,341 to the City of Beaumont, Texas, and $33,022 to the City of Port Arthur, Texas.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County, Texas, the City of Beaumont, Texas, and the City of Port Arthur, Texas,
believe it to be in their best interests to reallocate the JAG funds.

NOW THEREFORE, Jefferson County, Texas, the City of Beaumont, Texas, and the City of Port
Arthur, Texas agree as follows: _

Section 1.

The City of Beaumont, Texas and the City of Port Arthur, Texas agree to provide Jefferson County, Texas
$18,241 from the JAG award; and the City of Beaumont, Texas and the City of Port Arthur, Texas agree to
allocate the remaining funds as follows:

$70,341 o the City of Beaumont, Texas; and $33,022 to the City of Port Arthur, Texas.

Section 2.
Jefferson County, Texas agrees to use the funding for the Technology Enhancement Program until 2017,

The City of Beaumont, Texas agrees to use the funding for the Technology Enhancement Program until
2017,

The City of Port Arthur, Texas agrees to use the funding for the Technology Enhancement Program untit
2017.
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Secftion 3.

Each party to this agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing services under this
Agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise from the furnishing of the services by
the other party.

Section 4.
The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain a right by virtue of this Agreement.

Section 5.

By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations express or implied other
than those set out herein; further, this Agreement shall not create any rights in-any party not a signatory
hereto.

Section 6.

The City of Beaumont agrees to act as the fiscal agent in applying for, dispersing, monitoring, and reporting
for this JAG funding.

City of Beaumont, Texas

CITY MANAGER

City of Port Arthur, Texas

CITY MANAGER

Jefferson County, Texas

COUNTY JUDGE

*By law, the District Attorney's Office may only advise or approve contracts or legal documents on behalf of
its clients. 1t may not advise or approve a contracts or legal document on behalf of other parties. Our view of
this document was conducted solely from the legal perspective of our client. Our approval of this document
was offered solely for the benefit of our client. Other parties should not rely on this approval and should
seek review and approval by their own respective attorney(s).
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PAT KENAUTH
First Assiztant

DATE:

DELIVER TO:

SENT FROM:

4n97845893 CIVIL PAGE  BAl/A84
i E@EE‘WE
MAY 9 8 2014
CORY J. H. CRENSHAW —
CRIMINAL DISTRICT ATTORNEY /

Jefferson County Courthouse
1001 Pearl $treet-3rd Floor
Beaumont, Tekas 77701-3545
{409} 835-8550
FAX: {40€) 835-8573

FAX COVER SHEET

5/29/2014

Judge Jeff Branick 839-2311
Commissioner Arnold 835-8628
Commissioner Weaver 722-1916
Commmissioner Sinzgal 983-8303
Commissioner Alfired 784-5803
Tim Funchess

Steve Wiggins — Assistant District Attornry

RE: Request by Retired County Peace Officer to Purchase Duty Weapon

Our FAX number is (409) 784-5893, Qur telephone number is (409) 835-8550.
If you experience trouble with this transmission or receive this FAX by mistake, please

call (409) 835-8623.

Including this cover sheet, there are _d_ pages total in this transmission.

NOTES:
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PAT KNAUTH
First Assistant

May 29, 2014

Hon. Jeff Branick
Jefferson County Judge
FAX: 409-839-2311

Commissioner Eddie Arnold
Precinct One
FAX: 409-835-B628

Commissioner Brent Weaver
Precinct Two
FAX: 409-722-1916

CIVIL PAGE

CORY J. H. CRENSHAW

CRIMINAL DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Jefferaon County Courthouse
1001 Pearl Street-3rd Floor
Beaumont, Texas 77701-3545
(409) 835-8550
FAZ: (4019) B35-8573

Commissioner Everette D. Alfred
Precinct Four
FiaX: 409-784-5803

Commissioner Michael Sinegal
Precinct Three
FAX: 409-983-8303

RE: Request To Purchase County Issued Firearm By Retired County Peace Officer:

GENTLEMEN,

Pursuant to §170.002 of the Local Government Code, and §614.002, et seq. of
the Government Code, Steven V, Thrower, a commissioned criminal investigator and honorably
retired peace officer formerly with the Jefferson County Criminal District Attorney’s Office is
requesting to purchase his county issued service handgun. In support of this request to purchase
the handgun, former Criminal Investigator Steven V., Thrower would show this court the

following:
(1) he is a retired peace officer commissioned by the Jefferson County Criminal
District Attorney’s Office;
(2) the firearm he requests to purchase had i>een previously issued to him by the
county to perform his duties as a Texas deace officer; and
{3) the firearm is not a prohibited weapon as defined by §46.05 the Texas Penal

Code.

az/a4q
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The fair market value of the bandgun is estimated to be approximately $200-
$250, taking into account the age, use and overall conclition. As is demonstrated by his
signature on the attached verification, the requesting retired peace officer affirms that he has
never purchased another issued weapon from Jefferson County.

Unless there are any objections or reservations concerning purchase of this weapon by the
officer, upon payment by the officer to the Jefferson County Treasurer of $200.00, the
Treasurer shall issue a receipt to retired peace officer Steven V. Thrower to complete the
purchase of his duty-issued weapon. This purchase will be so recorded in the records of the
Criminal District Attorney’s Office. '

Please contact me if you need more information, have any questions, or if T can be of further assistance.

. Wiggins
District Attorney

¢ Treasurer Tith Funchess
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STATE OF TEXAS H

I

COUNTY OF BURNET H
VERIFICATION

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority, personally appeared Steven
V. Thrower, who afier being by me duly sworn upon his oath deposes and
states as follows:

“My name is Steven V. Thrower and I have read the foregoing request
to purchase my duty-issued handgun from the Jefferson County Criminal
District Attorney’s Office. I swear and affirm that [ meet all the criteria and
statutory requirements to purchase my previously issued service handgun as
provided for by §170.002 of the Local Government Code and §614.002 et.
seq. of the Government Code. The handgun is a model 1911 .45 caliber
handgun, serial number 884797

SWORN and subscribed befors me on this Z fE /z\_i day of
At , 2014,

b

Steven V. Thrower

“)..C.

Notary Public In And For The State™

Commission Expires
FEBRUARY 24, 2017

e o
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AGENDA ITEM June 9, 2014

Consider, possibly approve, and authorize retired Criminal District Attorney Investigator to
purchase the service handgun issued to him as a Peace Officer, for the amount of $250.00,
pursuant to Resolution of Commissioners Court and as authorlzed by Chapter, 614,002,
614.051, and 614.053, Texas Government Code.
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NECEIVER
P\ JUN ¢ 4 2014 V\)

PAT KNAUTH CRIMINAL DISTRICT ATTORNEY
First Assistant Jefferson County Gourthouse
1001 Poard Styeet-3rd Floor
Bexumont, Taxas 77701-3545
(409} B35-8550
PAX: (409) 335.58573

FAX COVER SHEET

DATE: 6/4/2014

DELIVER TO: :

Judge Jeff Branick 7 839-2311
Commissioner Armold 835-8628
Commissioner Weaver . 722-1916
Commissioner Sinegal 983-8303
Commissioner Alfred 784-5803
Tim Funchess

SENT FROM: Kathleen Kennedy, Chief Civil Division

RE: Request by Retired County Peace Qfficer to Purchase Duty Weapon

Our FAX number is (409) 784-5893. Crur telephone number is (409) 835-8550,

If you experience tronble with this transmission or receive this FAX by mistake, please
call (409) 835-8623. |

Including this cover sheet, there are _4_ pzigeﬁ total in this transmission.

NOTES:
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CORY J. H. CRENSHAW
PAT KENAUTH CRIMINAL DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Firat Assistant Jefferson Sounty Courthouse

1001 Pear] Stieet-3rd Floor
Bedumont, Tedas 77701-3545
(409) 835-8560 + .-
FAX: (409) E35.8573

June 4, 2014

Hon. Jeff Branick Commissioner Everette D, Alfred
Jefferson County Judge Precinct Four

FAX: 409-839-2311 FAX: 409-784-5803
Conunissioner Eddie Arnold Commissioner Michael Sinegal
Precinct One Precinct Three

FAX: 409-835-8628 FAX: 409-983-8303

Commissioner Brent Weaver

Precinct Two

FAX: 409-722-1916

RE:

Request To Purchase County Issued Firearm By Retired Connty Peace Officer:

GENTLEMEN,

Pursuant to §170.002 of the Local Govarnment Code, and §614,002, et gex, of

the Government Code, Steven L. Wiggins, a commissioned criminal itivestigator and honorably
retired peace officer former(y with the Jefferson County Criminal District Attorney’s Office 15
requesting to purchase his county issued sevvice handgun. In support of this request to purchase
the handgun, former Tnvestigator and Assistant District Attorney Steven L. Wiggins would
show this court the following: o

Q)

(2)

he i3  retired peace officer commissioned by the Jefférson County Criminal
District Attorney’s Office:

the firearm he requests to purchase had been previonsly issued to him by the

~ county to perform his duties as a Texas peace officer; and

(3)

gm firearm is not a prohibited weapon as defined by §46.05 the Texas Penal
ode,
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The fair market value of the handgun iz estimated to be approximately $350-
$400, taking into account the age, use and overall condition. As is demonstrated by his
signature on the attached verification, the requesting ratired peace officer affirms that he has
never purchased another issued weapon from Jefferson County.

Unless there are any objections or reservations concerning purchase of this weapon by the
officer, upon payment by the officer to the Jeffarson County Treasurer of $350.00, the
Treasurer shall issue a receipt to retived peace officet Steven L. Wiggins to complete the
purchage of his duty-issued weapon. This purchase will be so recorded in the records of the
Criminal District Attorney’s Office. ‘

B3/84

Please contact me if you need more information, have any questions, or if T can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

cc. Treasuter Tim Funchess ' ~ Kathleen M. Kennedy
Chief Civil Attorney
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STATE OF TEXAS H
H
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON H

YERIFICATION

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority, personally appeared Steven
L. Wiggins, who after being by me duly sworn upon his cath deposes and
states as follows: '

“My name is Steven L. Wiggins and 1 have read the foregoing request
to purchase my duty-issued handgun from the Jefferson County Criminal
District Attorney’s Office. I swear and affirm that T meet all the criteria and
statntory requirements to purchase my previously issued service handgun as
provided for by §170.002 of the Local Government Code and §614.,002 et
seq. of the Government Code. The heamdgnn is a model 1911A1 .45 caliber
handgun, serial number 1088572.”

- SWORN and subscribed before me on this Lfm day of
JUNE) , 2014, -

<\..w.) Steven L. Wighifs

N, id o

, Notary Public In And For The State
. Of Texas

' 9-8lo-8014

My Commission Expires

““““““““““““

s‘% I Notary Pubfic Stata of Texas

T W mE Commizsion Expitss
K «‘ﬁ HEPTEMRER 26, 2014

o
!

!guw'%ﬁ TINA M. CABENA

e
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Regular, June 09, 2014

There being no further business to come before the Court at this time,
same 1s now here adjourned on this date, June 09, 2014
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